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Information for shareholders

Annual General Meeting

The 2009 Annual General Meeting of 

Sponda Plc will be held in the Helsinki 

Room at Finlandia Hall (Mannerheimintie 

13, 00100 Helsinki, door M3 or K3) on 

Wednesday, 25 March 2009, starting at 

2.00 pm. Instructions for registering for 

the AGM are given on Sponda’s website 

at www.sponda.fi .

To attend the meeting, shareholders 

must be entered in the company’s share-

holder register maintained by the Euro-

clear Finland Ltd no later than 13 March 

2009.

Dividend payment

The Board of Directors proposes to the 

Annual General Meeting that no dividend 

be paid for the fi nancial year 2008. The 

reasons for the proposal are the uncer-

tain state of the fi nancial markets and de-

velopments in Sponda’s equity ratio.

Changes of name and address

Shareholders are kindly requested to 

notify their bank or the Euroclear Fin-

land Ltd, whichever holds the sharehold-

er’s book-entry securities account, of any 

changes of address.

Financial information

Sponda publishes its interim reports in 

2009 on the following dates:

Interim report 

Jan–Mar / 2009  Thursday, 7 May 2009

Interim report

Jan–Jun /  2009  Thursday, 6 August 2009

Interim report 

Jan–Sep / 2009  Thursday, 5 November 2009

Sponda publishes all its material for inves-

tors in Finnish and English. The material 

is available on its website www.sponda.fi . 

Releases can be ordered at www.sponda.

fi  › In English › Investors › Order releases, 

or by contacting:

Sponda Plc

Corporate Communications

P.O. Box 940

FI-00101 Helsinki, Finland

tel. +358 (0)20 43131

e-mail: tuija.hakama@sponda.fi .

Sponda Plc

P.O. Box 940

FI-00101 Helsinki

Street address:

Korkeavuorenkatu 45

FI-00130 Helsinki

Telephone +358 (0)20 431 31

www.sponda.fi 

fi rstname.lastname@sponda.fi 

Sponda’s Investor Relations

The main task of Sponda’s Investor Re-

lations function is to provide the market 

with suffi  cient, accurate information so 

that investors can assess the com pany’s 

appeal as an investment today and in the 

future. IR ensures that the com pany’s 

communications are balanced, timely and 

transparent.

Sponda’s Board of Directors is respon-

sible for publication of the company’s in-

terim and annual fi nancial statements. The 

President, the Chief Financial Offi  cer and 

the Vice President, Communications and 

IR are responsible for communications 

with Sponda’s investors. The quiet period 

begins three weeks before the publication 

date of the fi nancial results. This means 

that Sponda does not issue comments 

during this period and does not meet rep-

resentatives of the capital markets.

Information on the banks and stock-

brokers who have announced that they 

conduct investment analyses of Sponda’s 

business operations is provided on the 

company’s website at www.sponda.fi . The 

list may be incomplete. Sponda takes no 

responsibility for the assessments con-

tained in these analyses.

 

Investor relations and communications

Robert Öhman 

Chief Financial Offi  cer

Telephone +358 (0)20 431 3320

robert.ohman@sponda.fi 

Pia Arrhenius

Vice President, 

Communications and Investor Relations

Telephone +358 (0)20 431 3454

pia.arrhenius@sponda.fi 

Anita Riikonen

Communications Manager

Telephone +358 (0)20 431 3470
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PORTGATE LOGISTICS AREA IN VUOSAARI HARBOUR, HELSINKI



Sponda is a real estate investment company 
that owns, leases and develops offi  ce, 
retail and logistics property in the largest 
cities in Finland and Russia.



case 01
KENZO, 188 M² RETAIL PREMISES, MANNERHEIMINTIE 2, HELSINKI
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The Kenzo store, which opened in Novem-

ber 2008, is the fi rst to be opened by the 

chain in Finland, and the fi rst Kenzo lifestyle 

store in the world. The range of goods in-

cludes not just the clothing collections for 

women and men and accessories but also 

interior decor products.

“The decision to establish the store was 

taken in spring 2008 and we found suitable 

premises easily. Kenzo’s stores are all located 

in prime locations, so the excellent location 

of the store at Mannerhei mintie street was 

an important criteria in the choice. The size 

of the store was another important factor,” 

says managing director Taneli Heikkinen.

Kenzo follows a strict concept in the de-

sign of all its stores. The interior décor for 

the Helsinki store was created by Kenzo’s 

Italian interior decor architects in coopera-

tion with the company’s artistic director An-

tonio Marras. The total refurbishment of the 

premises was completed under Heikkinen’s 

direction in record time. Sponda participat-

ed in the facelift of the property facade.

Kenzo – Fashion sets the terms
French fashion house Kenzo’s boutique displays luxury not just in the products but also in

the decor. Even the smallest details are carefully designed. The result is spacious premises, where 

white walls decorated with plaster patterns and a black wooden fl oor create a modern, Eastern look.



Sponda in brief
Sponda is a real estate investment company that specializes in leasing business premises

and developing and owning properties. By developing business premises into attractive, 

tailored business environments, Sponda promotes the customer’s success. 

 

Sponda’s offi  ce, retail and logistics prop-

erties are located in the largest cities in 

Finland and Russia. The properties in Fin-

land are mainly located in the Helsinki met-

ropolitan area and in Oulu, Tampere and 

Turku. In Russia Sponda owns properties 

in St Petersburg and Moscow.

The company’s investment properties 

have a leasable area of 1.5 million square 

metres, comprising 152 offi  ce and retail 

properties and 57 logistics properties. The 

investment properties had a fair value on 

31 December 2008 of EUR 2.9 billion.

Sponda is a fi nancially stable real estate 

investor with a long-term commitment, 

and as such we off er our customers reli-

able, long-lasting partnership. Our exten-

sive property portfolio provides an an-

swer to the space requirements of large 

and small companies. One option is new 

premises, precisely tailored to the custom-

er’s needs, in one of our new-build prop-

erties. 

With its innovative, customer-orient-

ed solutions, Sponda actively creates best 

practices in the sector and acts with re-

sponsibility in developing the environment 

and the cityscape.

Sponda’s Customer Service Centre, 

a national centre, supports the compa-

ny’s regional business units in Finland. The 

company also has offi  ces in St Petersburg 

and Moscow.

Th e business units

Sponda is organized into four business 

units as of 1 January 2009: Investment 

Properties, Property Development, Real 

Estate Funds and Russia.
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Sponda enhanced its operations by in-

troducing a new organization structure at 

the beginning of 2009. Sponda combined 

its offi  ce and retail premises unit and the 

logistics property unit into a single business 

unit, aiming to improve the management 

of the company’s operations and to raise 

cost effi  ciency. Name of the new business 

unit is Investment Properties.

In connection with this reorganization 

and due to the change in Sponda’s strate-

gy, the name of the Russia and the Baltic 

Countries unit, which focuses on business 

in Russia, was changed to Russia as from 

the beginning of 2009.

The Investment Properties business unit 

specializes in leasing Sponda’s offi  ce, retail 

and logistics properties in Finland and in buy-

ing and selling properties. The properties 

are located in the largest cities in Finland.

The Property Development business unit 

focuses on marketing and implementing 

new property projects based on custom-

er needs. Activities concentrate primarily 

on Sponda’s undeveloped sites and build-

ings needing renovation.

The Real Estate Funds business unit owns 

and manages holdings in retail, offi  ce and 

logistics properties through real estate 

funds. The real estate funds operate in 

medium-sized towns in Finland.

The Russia business unit operates in 

Russia by leasing, managing and develop-

ing business premises for companies and 

organizations operating in that country. 

Sponda’s properties in Russia are located 

in Moscow and St Petersburg.

KENZO’S BOUTIQUE IN HELSINKI



 Total revenue increased to EUR 224.3 (210.9) million.•

 Net operating income rose to EUR 166.8 (152.8) million.•

 Operating profit was EUR 126.2 (256.7) million. The change•

in value of properties in 2008 was EUR -36.0 (92.9) million  

which includes change in yield requirements of EUR -93.1

million and development gains on property development  

projects of EUR 43.3 million.

Profit after tax in 2008 was EUR 26.6 (136.6) million.•

Earnings per share (EPS) were EUR 0.24 (1.27).•

Cash flow from operations per share was EUR 0.78 (0.81).•

 The fair value of the investment properties amounted•

to EUR 2,907.5 (2,534.9) million.

Net assets per share totalled EUR 7.86 (8.40).•

EPRA net assets per share were EUR 9.64 (10.04).•

 The economic occupancy rate was 31 January 2008•

88.5 (91.2) %.

 The Board of Directors proposes to the AGM that •

no dividend be paid for the 2008 financial year.

Financial Review
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KEY FIGURES (IFRS)   

Total revenue, Meur   224.3   210.9  117.4  103.06  99.21

Operating profi t, Meur   126.2   256.7  103.9  65.48  17.07

Profi t before taxes, Meur   38.7   184.4  65.4  39.16  -9.53

Cash fl ow from operations/share, Eur   0.78   0.81  0.56  0.57  0.53

NAV/share, Eur   7.86   8.4  7.45  7.25  7.44

EPRA NAV/share, Eur   9.64   10.04  9.54   

Earnings/share, Eur   0.24   1.27  0.61  0.37  0.04

Return on investment, %   4.71   10.05  7.19  **  5.57  1.5

P/E ratio   12.89   6.45  19.68  21.21  176.89

Equity ratio, %   31.75   32.3  20.19  44.91  47.11

Gearing, %   80.68   174.93  334.32  107.08  98.84

Dividend, Eur   0.00 * 0.5  0.4  0.5  0.5

Payout ratio, %   0.00 * 39.49  65.6  133.42  1,231.8

Eff ective dividend yield, %   0.00 * 6.12  3.33  6.29  6.96

* Board’s proposal
** The key fi gure has been calculated using the quarterly weighted average fi gures in the balance sheet.

RESULT OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL POSITION IN 2008 (COMPARED WITH YEAR 2007)
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Office and Retail  69%

Logistics  17%

Property Development  0%

Real Estate Funds  7%

Russia and the Baltic Countries  7%

NET OPERATING INCOME
BY BUSINESS UNIT 2008 



Chief Executive’s Review 

 

For Sponda, 2008 was a year of strong 

growth. Property development projects 

that were completed during the year in-

creased our business premise off ering in 

Finland and our rental income. We also 

continued to expand in the Russian prop-

erty market, where we achieved the tar-

gets set for investment. We exceeded our 

fi nancial targets for 2008. 

The business environment for the prop-

erty market changed signifi cantly during 

2008. Early in the year property vacancy 

rates improved and rents developed fa-

vourably. Property transactions were also 

at a high level. The situation changed half 

way through the year, when the global fi -

Sponda reacted quickly to the change in 

the state of the market half way through 

the year by adjusting its operations. We 

started to boost the company’s capital ad-

equacy by selling property in Finland. Dur-

ing the last part of the year Sponda sold 

properties for some EUR 70.1 million. We 

also succeeded, in an extremely challeng-

ing fi nancing market, in refi nancing our 

loans that were maturing.

Our property development projects 

made progress according to plan. All the 

new properties planned for 2008 were 

completed on schedule, which is proof of 

the high level of our project management 

expertise. Sponda’s most important prop-

erty development project, and the biggest 

in the history of Sponda, was completed 

in Vuosaari Harbour, where we built lo-

gistics premises and offi  ces for companies 

operating in the harbour. The costs for the 

projects stayed at the planned level and 

nancial crisis began to hinder fi nancing for 

the property sector. The volume of prop-

erty transactions declined, pressure start-

ed to reduce property values, and compa-

ny share prices fell.

Change in market requires
ability to adapt rapidly 

During 2008 our total revenue increased 

signifi cantly and we achieved our targets 

for leasing and cash fl ow. Our property de-

velopment investments in 2008 were EUR 

204.6 million. The positive trend contin-

ued in the occupancy rates for offi  ce and 

retail properties in Finland, which have ris-

en steadily since 2006. In 2008 our occu-

pancy rate for offi  ce and retail properties 

rose more than the general market level. 

vourably. Property transactions were also

at a high level. The situation changed half 

way through the year, when the global fi -

t

ued in the occupancy rates for offi  ce and 

retail properties in Finland, which have ris-

en steadily since 2006. In 2008 our occu-

pancy rate for offi  ce and retail properties 

rose more than the general market level. 
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Kari Inkinen

the actual profi ts on property develop-

ment matched the targets. 

We continued to expand in Russia. Our 

property purchases concentrated on Mos-

cow, where we purchased two shopping 

centres and one offi  ce property. We al-

so continued to develop our organization 

in Russia and established a new offi  ce in 

Moscow. With this stronger organization 

we are better equipped to respond to the 

challenges of the market in Russia. I have 

fi rm faith in the Russian property market 

and I expect a good return on our invest-

ments in the future.

Sponda’s real estate fund operations 

grew as planned during 2008. During the 

year we established a new fund to invest 

in logistics properties and we increased 

the property assets of our funds. Real es-

tate fund operations have become an ex-

tremely profi table business for the compa-

ny, and they already form a signifi cant part 

of Sponda’s business operations.

Sponda held its fi rst capital markets day 

in November 2008, and this proved even 

more popular than we expected. At the 

event Sponda gave an overview of its busi-

ness activities, including those of its Real 

Estate Funds and Russia business units, to 

investors and analysts.

Customer satisfaction directs 
how we develop business models

We look after the condition and quality of 

business premises, because we wish to of-

fer our customers eff ective surroundings 

for carrying on their business. We invest-

ed EUR 26.6 million in property mainte-

nance during the past year. We seek to 

improve the satisfaction of customers by 

continuously developing our business. In 

2008 we focused on developing the cus-

tomer strategy, and the development of 

business models and training of personnel 

continue in 2009.

During 2008 we also initiated a corpo-

rate responsibility project, which defi nes 

our corporate responsibility policy and the 

current state of the company. These form 

the basis for creating everyday tools for 

developing the company’s operations to-

wards greater corporate responsibility. 

Leasing operations growing 
in importance 

The weakening real economy may bring 

threats to the property sector and cast 

a cloud over leasing prospects for 2009. 

Property occupancy rates are expected 

to fall, and there are pressures to reduce 

rents, especially in the outlying areas of cit-

ies. There is also pressure to reduce prop-

erty values. Some 66 per cent of Spon-

da’s properties is located in the Helsinki 

central business district and Ruoholahti, 

where rental levels and the value of prop-

erty are not expected to fall as sharply.

The change in the market means that 

leasing operations have grown in impor-

tance in the real estate business and will 

continue to grow, which strengthens Spon-

da’s position. As a long-term Finnish play-

er we have a good knowledge of the local 

property market, and this creates good op-

portunities for us to succeed in a diffi  cult 

market. We believe that despite the chang-

es in the environment, the rental income 

from our properties will remain stable.

The pressure on the fi nance market 

means that we will not be making any ma-

jor investments in the coming year, and 

any other investments we do make will 

be fi nanced by selling property in Finland. 

The main focus for our operations is now 

on leasing operations and active custom-

er service. This is supported by the change 

in our organization that came into eff ect 

at the start of 2009, where we combined 

our units specializing in offi  ce and retail 

properties and in logistics properties to 

form a single business unit. Through this 

change we aim to improve the manage-

ment of our operations, the fl exibility of 

the organization and the company’s cost 

effi  ciency. At the same time we revised 

our strategy, giving up the Baltic Coun-

tries as an object for real estate invest-

ment and concentrating our property in-

vestment operations, in line with our cur-

rent strategy, on Finland and Russia. 

My warm thanks to all Sponda person-

nel for their fl exibility and uncompromis-

ing eff orts in 2008. The way our personnel 

adapted to the change in our operations 

showed that our organization possesses 

the ability and will even for rapid changes. 

I would also like to thank our customers 

and shareholders for their trust and all our 

stakeholders for successful partnership. 
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case 02
REAKTOR INNOVATIONS, 790 M2 OFFICE PREMISES, MANNERHEIMINTIE 2, HELSINKI
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Creative use of space at Reaktor

“The premises are a vital part of our 

business operations and must display the 

same high quality as the rest of our oper-

ations. The main criteria in designing the 

premises were quality, comfort, function-

ality and adaptability,” states Reaktor CEO 

Vesa Lauronen, who was actively involved 

in the design of the premises. 

Reaktor’s offi  ces were renovated in line 

with the company’s wishes. Due to the 

company’s growth, extra premises from 

an upper fl oor were added later to the 

original 370 square metre offi  ces.

The premises can be adapted with mov-

able glass doors. A special feature is the ga-

rage door that functions as a space divid-

er in the conference room. The fi nishing 

touch is given by the 177 square metre 

sauna area, which is mainly used for recre-

ation purposes by staff  and customers.

“Cooperation with Sponda has been 

very smooth, for as a landlord they are 

customer-oriented. It was important for 

us to be able to renovate the offi  ce to 

make it look like Reaktor and suitable for 

our work.”

For Reaktor Innovations, an expert company in the software sector and chosen as best workplace in Europe

in 2008, people always come fi rst. The offi  ce, in the center of Helsinki, is designed to be a pleasant,

well-functioning work environment. The high quality premises also serve as the company’s business card.
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Business concept Sponda’s business con-

cept is to own, lease and develop offi  ce, 

retail and logistics properties, making them 

into business environments that promote 

the success of customers. Sponda operates 

in the largest cities in Finland and Russia.

Strategy Sponda’s strategic goal is to seek 

growth and profi tability through custom-

er-focused operations and active proper-

ty development and by expanding prop-

erty development and investment activi-

ties in Russia.

In 2008 Sponda achieved its growth tar-

get for Russia, raising the share of its re-

al estate investments in Russia to 10–20 

per cent of the company’s balance sheet.

Due to the prevailing state of the mar-

ket, Sponda is not making any major in-

vestments in 2009. Any investments will 

be fi nanced by selling some of the prop-

erty portfolio in Finland.

Sponda revised its strategy at the be-

ginning of 2009 and no longer considers 

the market in the Baltic Countries as a 

strategic area for real estate investment. 

According to its previous strategy, Spon-

da’s goal was to expand its property de-

velopment and investment activities into 

the Baltic Countries. Having examined the 

Strategy
Sponda’s goal is to be the fi rst choice of commercial premises customers. This will be achieved 

through a customer-oriented business approach, active property development, and by expanding

property development and investment activities in Russia.

property market in the region and the op-

portunities it off ered, Sponda has aban-

doned this goal. 

Vision Sponda’s vision is to be the fi rst 

choice of business premise customers.

Sponda’s values Our values are part of our 

every day work. How we act towards our 

customers and each other. Important val-

ues for Sponda are innovation, profession-

alism and reliability.

DUCAT I I  -O
FFICE COMPLEX IN MOSCOW
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" Due to the prevailing 
state of the market,
Sponda is not making any 
major investments in 2009.“ 

Innovation

Sponda grows and develops through 

innovations and by questioning 

the old way of doing things. For us, 

innovation means seeing the oppor-

tunities, understanding the needs of 

our customers, and thinking up so-

lutions – being actively inventive. 

We aim to do things better and be 

trail-blazers – to see more than oth-

ers and perceive things before eve-

ryone else.

Professionalism

At Sponda professionalism means 

continuous learning, so that we are 

the best at what we do. It is am-

bition and uncompromising pro-

fessional pride. It is having insight, 

 experience, ideas and communica-

tion. The benefi ts we bring our cus-

tomers – the added value we gener-

ate – make us valued partners.

Reliability

We do what we promise our custom-

ers. Always. When we notice that a 

customer has a problem, we take up 

the matter straight away, even if the 

customer has not noticed it yet. We 

eliminate risks before they become 

a problem. We observe good busi-

ness practice in all our activities. We 

work openly and uprightly, as befi ts 

a reliable partner.



Offi ce and retail properties 

leases, purchases and sells offi  ce

and retail premises in Finland.

Thanks to active leasing 

operations, the occupancy rate 

improved more than 

the general market rate

Net operating income MEUR 115.1

Occupancy rate 92.3%

Offi  ce and retail premises 890,000 m2

42%  Helsinki, CBD

24%  Helsinki, Ruoholahti

16%  elsewhere in Helsinki 

   metropolitan area 

 6%  Tampere

 2%  Turku 

 1%  Oulu

Logistics properties 

leases, purchases and sells 

logistics premises in Finland.

The completion 

of the PortGate logistics 

complex in Vuosaari Harbour 

towards the end of the year 

signifi cantly increased Sponda’s 

logistics premises off ering.

Net operating income MEUR 28.5 

Occupancy rate 77.4%

Logistics premises 570,000 m2

Properties located mainly 

in Helsinki metropolitan area. 

Russia and the Baltic Countries 

leases and purchases 

commercial premises in Russia. 

Sponda increased its property 

holdings in the Moscow region 

and established its own offi  ce 

in Moscow.

Net operating income MEUR 12.0

Occupancy rate 86.3%

Offi  ce, retail and logistics 

premises 53,000 m2

Land areas 66 hectares

14% St Petersburg *

86% Moscow *

*) by area
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Business operations
The strategy of profi table growth was a strong guiding factor in Sponda’s business in 2008.

A record number of property development projects were completed, real estate fund activities

grew in strength, and growth continued in Russia.

  

Sponda owns, leases and develops offi  ce, 

retail and logistics premises in the largest 

cities in Finland and Russia. Its operations 

are based on long-term ownership and 

leasing, and focuses in Finland on the Hel-

sinki Metropolitan Area, Tampere, Turku 

and Oulu, and in Russia on St Petersburg 

and Moscow.

Sponda’s strengths – a customer-cen-

tric approach, skilled personnel, and 

an extensive property portfolio – en-

able the company to offer customers 

premises that exactly meet their needs. 

Sponda’s largest customer segments 

are in the retail trade, service indus-

try, and banking and investment sector.

Growth in line with
strategy in 2008

Sponda’s total revenue is derived from 

rental income. The company’s total reve-

nue grew by 6.4 per cent in 2008 to EUR 

224.3 million, and net operating income by 

9.1 per cent to EUR 166.8 million.

Net rental income and the occupancy 

rates for offi  ce and retail properties con-

tinued to develop positively. The occu-

pancy rates for logistics properties were 

depressed by the slow progress in leas-

ing the premises completed at the end of 

the year in Vuosaari Harbour. At the end 

of 2008 Sponda had an occupancy rate of 

88.5 per cent (2007: 91.2 per cent). Due 

to the changes in the state of the market 

towards the end of the year Sponda rein-

forced its capital adequacy by selling prop-

erty in Finland. During the year Sponda 

sold property in Finland for EUR 122.9 

million and purchased property for EUR 

210.6 million. 

In March 2008 Sponda signed agree-

ments for a 5-year EUR 100 million cred-

it facility and a 7-year EUR 50 million cred-

it facility, for fi nancing the company prop-

erty development investments. In Octo-

ber 2008 Sponda signed an agreement 

for a EUR 150 million refi nancing pack-

age. Some of this syndicated loan was used 

to pay off  the EUR 100 million loan that 

matured in November 2008.

Sponda’s property development 

projects progressed according to plan in 

2008, and during the year most of the 

company’s current projects were complet-

ed. Offi  ce buildings developed by Sponda 

were built in Ruoholahti and the Kalasata-

ma district in Helsinki. A new retail prop-

erty was fi nished in Itäkeskus, Helsinki. The 

largest of Sponda’s property development 

projects was completed in Vuosaari Har-

bour, where Sponda built the PortGate 

logistics complex. In the fi rst phase of the 

project a 70,000 square metre logistics 
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Property development 
carries out and markets 

property development projects.

Property development operations 

grew strongly and during the year 

most of Sponda’s property develop-

ment projects were completed, 

including the PortGate logistics 

complex in Vuosaari Harbour.  

Investments MEUR 204.6

Balance sheet value of property 

development portfolio MEUR 184.2

Undeveloped land areas and 

potential property development 

sites are located mainly in the 

Helsinki metropolitan area.

Real estate funds 

owns and manages holdings 

in retail, offi  ce and logistics 

properties through real estate 

funds.

Sponda increased the size of its 

real estate funds and established 

a new fund, Sponda Fund II. 

Sponda Fund I reached its target size.

Total revenue MEUR 13.2

Net operating income MEUR 11.3

Properties are located 

in medium-sized cities in Finland, 

including Jyväskylä, Lappeenranta 

and Hämeenlinna. 
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area and the 15,000 square metre Gate 

Centre were completed. During the year 

Sponda also signed a contract to build the 

Vuosaari Service Center, serving the com-

panies operating in the harbour. Develop-

ment investments in 2008 rose to EUR 

204.6 million (94.7).

Sponda also continued to expand in Rus-

sia. In 2008 Sponda increased its property 

holdings by purchasing two shopping cen-

tres in the Moscow region and the Ducat 

II offi  ce complex in the centre of Moscow. 

During the year Sponda purchased prop-

erty in Russia for a total of EUR 187.1 mil-

lion, and at the end of the year the proper-

ty portfolio in Russia stood at EUR 258.3 

million. Sponda reinforced its presence in 

the Russian market by establishing its sec-

ond offi  ce in the country, in Moscow.

Sponda increased the number of its re-

al estate funds and their size. During 2008 

" Sponda’s property 
development projects 
progressed according 
to plan, and during the year 
most of the company’s current
projects were completed.“
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a new fund, Sponda Fund II, was estab-

lished and Sponda Fund I reached its tar-

get size.

Changes in strategy

and business structure

In 2008 Sponda’s operations were organ-

ized in fi ve business units, namely Offi  ce 

and Retail Properties, Logistics Properties, 

Russia and the Baltic Countries, Proper-

ty Development and Real Estate Funds. 

Sponda reorganized the business struc-

ture at the beginning of 2009 by combin-

ing the units that focused on offi  ce and re-

tail properties and on logistics properties 

into a single business unit. The new unit 

is called Investment Properties. With this 

change Sponda seeks to improve control 

of the company’s operations, raise cost-ef-

fi ciency and enhance customer service.

The company’s strategy was also revised 

at the beginning of 2009, when Sponda 

ceased to consider the Baltic countries as 

a strategic investment area. According to 

its current strategy, Sponda’s property in-

vestment operations concentrate on Fin-

land and Russia. In connection with this 

change, the name of the company’s Russia 

and Baltic Countries unit was changed and 

the unit is now called simply Russia.

Sponda’s business operations have been 

divided into four business units as from 

1 January 2009. The Investment Properties 

unit is responsible for leasing, purchasing 

and selling business premises in Finland. 

The Russia unit leases and purchases of-

fi ce, retail and logistics premises in Russia. 

The Property Development unit carries out 

property development projects and mar-

kets them. All management of real estate 

funds and the ownership of fund holdings 

take place in the Real Estate Funds unit.

Sponda’s Customer Service Centre, a 

national centre that supports the business 

units, serves customers in all matters relat-

ing to the leasing of business premises. 

Sponda’s 2008 stock exchange and press re-

leases are published on the company’s Inter-

net site at www.sponda.fi .

SPONDA'S PROPERTIES
BY BUSINESS UNIT 31 DEC 2008

Office and retail properties 69%

Logistics properties 16%

Property Development 6%

Russia and the Baltic Countries 9%

Fair value 2,907.5 Meur

Office and retail properties 59%

Logistics properties 38%

Russia and the Baltic Countries 3%

LEASABLE AREA BY PROPERTY TYPE
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Logistics properties   6.5 – 8.7  7.9 – 8.5  8.0 – 8.8  

 
Weighted average yield requirement for the total portfolio 6.7%.
* Includes offi ce and retail properties and logistics properties.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES OF SPONDA 1.1. – 31.12. 2008, MEUR 

Rental income  211.1  155.0  37.9  2.0  16.2

Maintenance expenses  -55.6  -39.9  -9.4  -2.2  -4.1

Net operating income  155.5  115.1  28.5  -0.1  12.0
 

Investment properties 1 Jan 2008  2,534.9  1,883.9  327.6  246.2  77.2

Acquisitions 2008  210.6  8.3  18.6  0.0  183.7

Investments, property development  275.0  61.1  5.2  205.2  3.4

Other transfers between segments  13.5  188.6  134.9  -310.0  0.0

Sales 2008  -82.8  -82.2  0.0  -0.6  0.0

Change in fair value  -43.7  -57.4  -23.6  43.4  -6.0

Investment properties 31 Dec 2008  2,907.5  2,002.2  462.8  184.2  258.3

Change in fair value, %  -1.7  -3.0  -7.2  17.6  0.0

Annual net operating income/ 
investment properties 31 Dec 2008*  6.8  6.3  8.5   10.1

* Development properties excluded

Maintenance and contractual investments  26.6  22.1  4.1  0.1  0.3

Property development  248.4  39.1  1.1  205.1  3.1

Acquisitions  210.6  8.3  18.6  0.0  183.7

Sales  -82.8  -82.2  0.0  -0.6  0.0

Investments  402.8  -12.7  23.8  204.6  187.1
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SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

Rental level, %    +/-1%      2.1

Rental level, €/m2/month    +/-1 €/m2/month     15.5

Economic occupancy rate    +/-1%-unit      2.5

Operating expenses    +/-1%      0.6

Property tax    +/-1%      0,1

All the above factors also affect the fair values of the investment properties.
The impact of changes in fair value of properties is not included in the result.
Sensitivity analysis of the interest levels is available on the page 55.
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Business environment
The global recession hampered investment projects in the property investment sector 

in Finland and Russia towards the end of 2008. Demand for commercial and logistics premises 

remained stable throughout the year.

The pace of economic growth in Finland 

slowed down considerably in 2008 from 

2007. This was largely due to the econom-

ic downturn caused by the global crisis in 

the fi nancial markets. This weakened the 

outlook for many business sectors espe-

cially in the second half of the year. Ac-

cording to Statistics Finland, the volume 

of Finland’s gross national product rose 0.9 

per cent in 2008. Average infl ation in 2008 

was 4.1 per cent.

The owning and leasing of offi  ce, re-

tail and logistics properties is a sector that 

follows behind the business cycle, so the 

eff ects of the global recession were not 

particularly visible during 2008. Rent lev-

els continued to develop favourably. High-

er infl ation in the review year meant that 

index-based increases in rents had raised 

rental income by the end of 2008. Occu-

pancy rates also improved encouragingly. 

Towards the end of 2008, however, the 

impact of the global fi nancial crisis started 

to be felt in investment projects in the real 

estate sector. It became more diffi  cult to 

make new investments, because fi nancing 

was not available. The number of real es-

tate transactions also declined signifi cant-

ly after summer 2008. The total volume 

of real estate transactions in Finland was 

EUR 3.7 billion in 2008, which is EUR 2.3 

million less than in 2007. Business slowed 

down considerably in the second half of 

the year. The fi nancial crisis is also making 

the market in Russia more challenging.

International investors accounted for 

46 per cent of the volume of Finland’s 

property market in 2008, or 29 per cent 

less than in 2007. Finland’s property mar-

ket has attracted international investors, 

since they obtain a fairly high yield by in-

ternational standards from properties in 

 Finland.

Judging from the economic indicators, 

2009 can be expected to be a challenging 

year for the real estate sector. The cost 

cutting measures being carried out dur-

ing 2009 at customer companies will re-

duce demand for premises in Finland and 

Russia, which will have a direct impact on 

vacancy rates. If infl ation also remains low, 

rents will not rise during 2009. The saf-

est investments, and those least suscep-

tible to economic fl uctuations, are still 

quality offi  ce and retail premises located 

in the central business districts of cities.

Demand for offi  ce premises

grew moderately

Demand for offi  ce premises grew slight-

ly during 2008, which was refl ected in a 

moderate improvement in occupancy 

rates. Vacancy rates for offi  ces in the Hel-

sinki Central Business District (CBD) fell 

during the review year to 3.7 per cent. The 

vacancy rate in the whole Helsinki metro-

politan area was 9.3 per cent, in Turku 8.4 

per cent, Tampere 6.0 per cent and Oulu 

4.6 per cent.

Even though offi  ce construction contin-

ued at an active pace in the Helsinki met-

ropolitan area in 2008, rent levels rose, 

especially in the Helsinki CBD, where the 

rent for higher quality offi  ces was EUR 

348 per square metre a year. According 

to Catella Property Group the rental lev-

els of prime offi  ce premises in the Hel-

sinki Central Business District in the fi rst 

half of 2009 will remain at the same level 

as at the end of 2008. The average rent 

for the entire Helsinki metropolitan area 

in 2008 was EUR 204 per square metre a 

year, and in Turku it was EUR 132, in Tam-

pere EUR 160 and in Oulu EUR 156 per 

square metre a year. 

TRANSACTIONS IN FINLAND

International

Local

* Aleksia sale approx. 1,100 Meur
** Sponda – Kapiteeli deal 1,300 Meur
*** Capman’s hotel portfolio deal, 800 Meur

Source: Catella Property Group
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It is estimated that some 75,000 square 

metres of new offi  ce space will be com-

pleted in the Helsinki metropolitan area in 

2009. As a result the occupancy rate for of-

fi ce premises is expected to decline slightly. 

However, the occupancy rate in the Helsinki 

CBD is likely to remain at its present level.

Rental income rising from
prime retail premises

The occupancy rate for retail premises 

has remained extremely high. In the Hel-

sinki metropolitan area, for example, the 

occu pancy rate for retail premises was 2.9 

per cent last year. New premises are also 

expected to fi nd users and customers in 

2009.

Strong demand fuelled a consistent rise 

in rents in 2008, especially for prime retail 

premises. The rent level for prime retail 

premises in the Helsinki Central Business 

District was approximately EUR 1,080 per 

square metre a year. During the review 

year rent levels for prime retail premises 

ranged in Turku between EUR 480 and 

EUR 840 per square metre a year, while in 

Tampere the comparable fi gures were EUR 

600–1,000 and in Oulu EUR 540–1,000.

  

Demand stable for
logistics properties

Demand for logistics properties remained 

very stable in 2008 and rent levels rose 

slightly. This was due mainly to the commis-

sioning of modern property. The rent level 

for logistics premises in the Helsinki met-

ropolitan area was on average EUR 90 per 

square metre a year in the review year.

The occupancy rate for logistics premis-

es has remained high. At the end of 2008 

the vacancy rate for logistics properties in 

the Helsinki metropolitan area was 2.9 per 

cent. The occupancy rate is expected to 

decline somewhat during 2009. The mod-

ern warehouse and logistics centres com-

pleted last year in the Helsinki metropoli-

tan area are expected to attract custom-

ers especially from old premises that are 

in poorer condition.

Financial crisis moulds

Russian market 

Russia is a young market for the real es-

tate investment sector and has very few 

assets for investment considering the size 

of the country and its economy. Several 

international real estate investment com-

panies operate in the Moscow and St Pe-

tersburg markets.

The global fi nancial crisis has altered the 

Russian property market, however. Devel-

opment projects have been suspended be-

cause of fi nancing diffi  culties, and sales have 

also slowed down for completed property. 

Many properties are up for sale. 

In the fi rst half of 2008 demand was 

greater than supply in the Moscow and 

St Petersburg leasing markets. After the 

summer, demand focused on smaller, high 

quality premises, and leasing market activ-

ity is expected to be quieter in 2009 than 

in the previous year. Vacancy rates for high 

quality offi  ces were low in the Moscow 

and St Petersburg regions. Rent levels for 

prime offi  ce premises rose in Russia last 

year, but it is expected that there will be 

pressure to bring down the rents for of-

fi ce and retail premises in 2009. 

Source: Statistics Finland, Catella Property 

Group, KTI Finland (Institute for Real Estate 

Economics): Market Review, January 2009

RENTAL LEVELS IN THE HELSINKI 
METROPOLITAN AREA

Retail premises, Helsinki CBD (average)

Office market, Helsinki CBD (average)

Warehouse and industrial premises, HMA

Source: Catella Property Group
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Spacious premises and eff ective solutions

Honkatalo has excellent transport con-

nections with all parts of Finland, which 

is important for Russian Cargo Service, a 

forwarding agent specializing in transport 

to Russia.

“After our old terminal had become too 

small, we found new premises quickly and 

close by. In our new 1900 square metre 

terminal we have warehousing, fi ve load-

ing bays and a load processing area, where 

the incoming and outgoing goods inspec-

tions are carried out. The spacious yard 

The most important features of the business premises of forwarding agents are the size of the premises 

and their location. Expanding logistics company Russian Cargo Service leased a new, larger terminal 

in the Honkatalo logistics and offi  ce complex, located in Hakkila, Vantaa in the summer of 2008.

and ramp ensure that truck traffi  c fl ows 

smoothly,” states Russian Cargo Service 

terminal manager Taavi Kuusk.

Typical features of Russian Cargo Serv-

ice’s operations are a rapid fl ow of goods 

and small batches, so the premises have 

to permit effi  cient operations in all stages 

of the work. Kuusk says that the terminal 

meets the company’s needs very well.

RUSSIAN CARGO   
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case 03
  SERVICE, 2,360 M2 WAREHOUSE, TERMINAL AND OFFICE PREMISES, ITÄINEN VALKOISENLÄHTEENTIE 18, VANTAA
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Offi  ce and Retail Properties

Offi  ce and retail properties form the main 

part of Sponda’s property portfolio. The 

properties are located in the largest cities 

in Finland: in Helsinki Metropolitan Area, 

Turku, Tampere and Oulu. Sponda is one 

of the most important providers of offi  ce 

premises in the Helsinki metropolitan area 

and the Tampere region. 

Most of the unit’s properties, 42 per 

cent, are located in the Helsinki’s cen-

tral business district, in the most popu-

lar business locations in the Helsinki met-

ropolitan area.  In Ruoholahti, which after 

the central business district is one of the 

most highly regarded locations, Sponda is 

the biggest provider of business premis-

es. Sponda owns approximately 170,000 

Sponda’s Offi  ce and Retail Properties unit leases offi  ce and retail premises and also buys and sells properties, 

in accordance with the company’s strategy. As from the beginning of 2009, Offi  ce and Retail Properties and 

Logistics Properties together form Sponda’s largest business unit , called Investment Properties.

square metres of offi  ce and retail premis-

es in Ruoho lahti.  

 The business unit was reorganized at 

the beginning of 2008, when the leasing 

operations for shopping centre proper-

ties were brought together in the Shop-

ping Centres unit, part of Offi  ce and Retail 

Properties. The purpose of this reorgan-

ization was to strengthen the company’s 

market position, and to concentrate the 

specialist knowhow of the needs of shop-

ping centre tenants in the same unit.

Sponda’s primary goal is to offer its 

customers innovative, individual business 

premise solutions that promote their busi-

ness. Professional, experienced personnel 

have a thorough knowledge of the compa-

ny’s business premise off ering and of cus-

tomer needs.

Business premise solutions take into ac-

count the way that companies carry out 

their work and the tools they use, and 

Sponda also off ers property services that 

support the customer’s business. Eff ective 

planning of business premises can raise ef-

fi ciency in the work environment and in-

crease job satisfaction among the compa-

ny’s personnel. 

Sponda seeks to identify changes in the 

space requirements of customers as early 

as possible, and to provide the most suit-

able premises from the company’s exten-

sive business property portfolio for the 

changed needs of the customer. It may al-

" Offi  ce and retail properties 
unit met its targets in 2008 for 
occupancy rate, total revenue
and net operating income."

OFFICES OF MEDIA AGENCY HAPPI IN HELSINKI

 



so be possible to meet the new space re-

quirements by developing the customer’s 

current premises.

 

Positive developments

in occupancy rate

At the end of 2008 Sponda owned 146 

offi  ce and retail properties, which had an 

area of 890,000 square metres and a fair 

value of EUR 2 billion.

The occupancy rate of offi  ce and retail 

properties has developed positively since 

2006. The unit met its targets in 2008 for 

occupancy rate, total revenue and net op-

erating income. The occupancy rate of the 

properties rose 1.3 percentage units, stand-

ing at 92.3 per cent at the end of the year. 

The unit had 1,001 tenant customers and 

2,075 leasing agreements. The biggest cus-

tomers of Offi  ce and Retail Properties were 

the Finnish State, Sampo Bank Plc, Kesko 

Group and Nordea Bank Finland Plc.

Three of Sponda’s office and retail 

premise projects were completed in Hel-

sinki in 2008. All three properties are ful-

ly leased. 

The main tenants in the 13,500 

square metre offi  ce building completed 

in Porkkalankatu in Ruoholahti are Al-

tia Corporation and Diacor Terveyspal-

velut Oy, which operates a medical cen-

tre and hospital on the property. To the 

new 9,200 square metre offi  ce building 

in Lautatarhankatu in Helsinki’s Kalasata-

ma moved Suomen Lähikauppa Oy and 

 TrygVesta Forsikring A/S, which operates 

in Finland under the name Nordea Gener-

al Insurance. The largest of the new build-

ings completed is the 21,500 square metre 

retail premises located in Itäkeskus, which 

has been fully leased to HOK-Elanto.

The Itäkeskus Prisma store will open in the 

premises in March.

The premises being vacated by Altia in 

the Salmisaarentalo building in Helsinki are 

being renovated for use by the Helsinki 

Court of Appeal, which will move into 

its new premises in spring 2010. Modern 

premises were built for the Helsinki Dis-

trict Court in the Salmisaarentalo’s old in-

dustrial property already in 2004.
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REAKTOR INNOVATIONS’ OFFICES IN HELSINKI

Construction of the offi  ce and shopping 

centre in the City-Center complex pro-

gressed according to plan. Several design 

and clothing stores are located in the new 

retail premises. The shopping centre will al-

so house a wide range of restaurant ser vi-

ces and furnishing stores. The development 

project is being carried out in phases and the 

whole project will be completed in 2012. 

The next major construction phase in 

the City-Center project is estimated to get 

underway towards the end of 2009, with 

the construction in the inner court of the 

offi  ce building for Evli Bank Plc.

New offi  ce property

in Turku Science Park

During 2008 Sponda purchased the 4,000 

square metre High Tech Centre I offi  ce 

property in the rapidly developing Turku 

Science Park, which is designed primarily 

for high tech companies. 

The unit’s biggest investment project cur-

rently in progress is the Elo shopping centre, 

which will open in spring 2009 in Ylöjärvi, 

near Tampere. The shopping centre will 

contain altogether 24,500 square metres 

of leasable retail premises. The main tenant 

will be the K-Citymarket store and there 

will also be numerous clothing stores and 

cafeteria and restaurant services.

Sponda sold offi  ce and retail properties 

for a total of EUR 104.8 million during 

the year.

Major investments
in maintenance

A total of EUR 22.1 million was invested 

in maintaining offi  ce and retail properties. 

Sponda modernizes properties and car-

ries out systematic maintenance of prop-

erties so that it can off er its customers high 

quality, modern business premises. 

Major property refurbishments were 

carried out in Tampere and Helsinki. In 

Tampere, some of the retail premises in 

the Ratinanlinna offi  ce and retail proper-

ty were converted for offi  ce use. In Hel-

sinki, the premises in the property in Pieni 

 



Roobertinkatu street were renovated be-

fore the Cancer Society of Finland moved 

into its new offi  ces in April 2008. 

In Helsinki, Sponda renovated the listed 

facades of two properties built at the start 

of the 1900s. Repairs to the facades and 

windows were carried out at the histor-

ical property in Korkeavuorenkatu street 

that serves as Sponda’s head offi  ce and the 

property in Ehrensvärdintie road that is 

used by the Elias school.

The reorganization carried out at the 

beginning of 2009 will help the introduc-

tion of standard business models. Stand-

ard, high quality business models will ena-

ble Sponda to respond even more eff ec-

tively to the challenges of customer ser-

vice and leasing operations.
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EXPIRY OF LEASE AGREEMENTS,
OFFICE AND RETAIL PROPERTIES

30
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% of rental income
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PROFIT FROM LEASING OPERATIONS, OFFICE AND RETAIL, MEUR

Rental income    155.0  154.4  84.7  73.4  74.2

Operating expenses    -39.9  -40.6  -21.6  -18.9  -18.9

Net operating income    115.1  113.8  63.1  54.5  55.3

Fair value of properties    2,002.2  1,883.9  2,073.0  966.4  988.5

Yield %    6.3   5.9  5.8  5.6  5.6
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20 LARGEST OFFICE AND RETAIL PROPERTIES

Helsingin Salmisaarentalo Koy  Porkkalankatu 13  Helsinki  48,764

Kaupintie 3 Koy  Kaupintie 3  Helsinki  44,103

Helsingin Itämerenkatu 21 Koy  Itämerenkatu 21  Helsinki  32,458

Helsingin Kaivokatu 8 Koy/K127  Kaivokatu 8  Helsinki  30,392

Kilon Ritari  Kutojantie 2  Espoo  27,869

Arkadiankatu 4 – 6 Koy  Arkadiankatu 6  Helsinki  25,369

Unioninkatu 20 – 22 Koy  Unioninkatu 20-22  Helsinki  24,931

Helsingin Vanhanlinnantie 3 Koy  Vanhanlinnantie 3  Helsinki  20,050

Upseerinkatu 1 Koy  Upseerinkatu 1-3  Espoo  19,809

Kasarmikatu 36 Koy  Kasarmikatu 36  Helsinki  17,008

Kumpulantie 11 Koy  Kumpulantie 11  Helsinki  16,272

Länsi-Keskus Koy  Pihatörmä 1  Espoo  15,835

Ratapihantie 11 Koy  Ratapihantie 11  Helsinki  15,553

Tampereen Naulakatu 3 Koy  Naulakatu 3  Tampere  14,408

Joensuun Kehityskeskus Koy  Jukolankatu 18  Joensuu  13,933

Helsingin Porkkalankatu 20 Koy  Porkkalankatu 20 A  Helsinki  12,897

Ruoholahden Tähti  Porkkalankatu 22  Helsinki  12,844

Helsingin Valimotie 25 A Koy  Valimotie 25  Helsinki  11,743

Ruoholahden Itämerentalo Koy  Tammasaarenlaituri 3  Helsinki  11,401

Näsilinnankatu 39 – 43 Koy  Näsilinnankatu 41  Tampere  11,379

PR
OPE

RT
Y

LO
CAT

IO
N

AREA
 M

2 , 

TO
TA

L

Y N 2

SPONDA PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2008    27



28    SPONDA PLC ANNUAL REPORT 20082222888888 822228 288222228 2222828     SPOPOOOSPOS NDNDNDNDNDDAAANDNDAAAA PLC ANNNNUNUUUUUNNNUNUN AALALLL L ALLLLLLLL RRRRREPEPEPR PRRR OOOOOOOORRRRORRRRTTTTTTTORORTORRRRTTTTOORRRRRRRTTOOORRRTOOORRORTROOOORRRRROORR 22 202020 008080

Sponda is the biggest supplier of logis-

tics premises in the Helsinki metropoli-

tan area. The company’s property port-

folio contains adaptable business premis-

es with excellent transport connections 

for the needs of diff erent sized companies. 

Logistics premises can be tailored to cus-

tomer needs, for example by building cold 

storage and freezer warehousing. Spon-

da’s largest logistics properties are locat-

ed in Vuosaari and Konala in Helsinki and 

in Hakkila in Vantaa.

The premises provided by Sponda for its 

customers take into account the special re-

quirements of the logistics sector and the 

individual needs of customer companies. 

The business premise solutions promote 

the business operations of customers. The 

expertise of Sponda’s customer account 

managers that specialize in logistics prop-

erties is based on in-depth local knowl-

edge and extensive experience of the lo-

gistics sector and the property business.

The Logistics Properties unit achieved 

its targets for total revenue and net op-

erating income. During the year the unit 

Logistics Properties
Sponda’s leasing, purchasing and selling of logistics properties takes 

place in the Logistics Properties unit , which as from the beginning of 2009 

is part of Sponda’s new Investment Properties business unit .

acquired two fully leased manufacturing 

properties in Helsinki, in the Malmi air-

port area. The manufacturing properties 

have a combined area of 12,000 square 

metres. 

At the end of 2008 Sponda owned 56 

logistics properties, which had a total area 

of 570,000 square metres and a fair val-

ue of EUR 462.8 million. The occupancy 

rate of the logistics properties stood at 

77.4 per cent at the end of the year. The 

occupancy rate was depressed by the slow 

progress in leasing the premises complet-

ed at the end of the year in Vuosaari har-

bour. The unit had 327 tenant custom-

ers and 428 leasing agreements at the end 

of 2008. The biggest customers of Logis-

tics Properties were Fujitsu Services Oy, 

Containersteve Oy and Nordea Bank Fin-

land Plc.

Vuosaari Harbour was

most important project

The most signifi cant event in 2008 was 

the completion of the premises in the 

PortGate logistics complex in Vuosaari 

Harbour. The 130,000 square metres of 

premises in the logistics area are being 

built in two phases. November 2008 saw 

the completion on schedule of the 70,000 

square metre fi rst phase of the logistics 

premises and the 15,000 square metre 

Gate Centre. The Gate Centre compris-

es a 13-storey offi  ce building – a landmark 

for the harbour – parking facilities and a 

passenger terminal. 

Sponda is committed to the long-term 

development and leasing of the PortGate 

logistics complex. Particular attention 

was paid to fl exibility when designing the 

premises. The buildings in the logistics ar-

ea are based on 5,500 square metre units, 

which can be combined or divided and fi t-

ted out in diff erent ways to create a vari-

ety of diff erent sized premises. The logis-

tics premises in the area are also suitable 

for small and medium-sized companies, for 

premises can be leased in units as small as 

900 square metres. 

Having logistics premises in the har-

bour gives companies savings in costs and 

in time, since loads arriving in the har-

bour no longer need to be transported to 

more remotely located buff er warehous-

es. Containers can be transported by har-

bour vehicles to the terminal straight from 

the ship, which simplifi es and speeds up 

the processing of goods. Further benefi ts 

 

PORTGATE LOGISTICS PREMISES IN VUOSAARI HARBOUR, HELSINKI



come from the cooperation between the 

companies operating in the harbour area 

and from the wide range of services avail-

able in the area. 

Another new building was for the 

Honkatalo logistics centre in the Akseli 

business park in Vantaa. The 5,000 square 

metre extension completed in May 2008 

is fully leased. At the end of 2008 Sponda 

owned altogether 67,500 square metres 

of logistics premises in the business park. 

Located close to the Helsinki-Vantaa air-

port, the outer ringroad Kehä III and the 

Lahti motorway, Honkatalo off ers logis-

tics companies excellent facilities, which 

are further supported by a wide range of 

services in the business park, such as cus-

toms and forwarding services.

The 18,000 square metre property va-

cated by Alko in Heidehof in Vantaa was 

converted for use by several companies. 

Repairs and alterations were also carried 

out at several of Sponda’s logistics prop-

erties.

In addition to normal property main-

tenance, Sponda also aims to modern-

ize and make its properties more practi-

cal. When refurbishing properties, Spon-

da pays particular attention to their ener-

gy effi  ciency. 

1 
ye

ar
s

2 
ye

ar
s

3 
ye

ar
s

4 
ye

ar
s

op
en

-e
nd

ed

ov
er

 6
 y

ea
rs

6 
ye

ar
s

5 
ye

ar
s

EXPIRY OF LEASE AGREEMENTS,
LOGISTICS PROPERTIES

% of rental income
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0
5 LARGEST LOGISTICS PROPERTIES   

Vuosaaren Logistiikkakeskus Koy  Seilorinkatu 1  Helsinki  64,501

Messukylän Castrulli Koy  Etu-Hankkionkatu 1  Tampere  43,167

Ruosilantie 16 Koy  Ruosilantie 16  Helsinki  40,727

Vantaan Vanha Porvoontie 231 Koy  Vanha Porvoontie 231  Vantaa  35,946

Vantaan Honkatalo Koy  Vanha Porvoontie 229  Vantaa  35,165
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PROFIT FROM LEASING OPERATIONS, LOGISTICS PROPERTIES, MEUR

Rental income    37.9  32.0  28.7  29.6  25.0

Operating expenses    -9.4  -7.8  -6.5  -6.6  -5.8

Net operating income    28.5  24.2  22.2  23.0  19.2

Fair value of properties    462.8  327.6  245.6  252.3  233.0

Yield %    8.5   8.4  8.9  9.1  8.2

20
08

20
07

20
06

20
05

20
04



G
A

T
E

 C
EN

T
R

E 
IN

 V
U

O
SA

A
R

I 
H

A
R

B
O

U
R

, H
EL

SI
N

K
I

Property Development

Through its property development activ-

ities Sponda aims to expand its business 

premise portfolio by utilizing the company’s 

undeveloped sites and building rights and 

by renovating existing properties. Sponda 

also actively searches the market for po-

tential property development sites.

Property renovation extends the life of 

buildings, and makes it possible to convert 

buildings for diff erent usage in line with 

customer space requirements.

Property fl exibility is a key factor when 

designing business premises. Sponda aims 

to anticipate the changes in usage require-

ments for new premises during the plan-

ning stage and to build multipurpose prop-

erties with a long life. Before starting up 

property development projects, at least 

Sponda seeks growth and profi tability through active property development.

Projects consist primarily of undeveloped sites and buildings needing renovation

owned by Sponda in the Helsinki metropolitan area.

50 per cent of the premises in a new 

building must be leased and the author-

ities must have issued the necessary plan-

ning and building permits.

Carrying out property development 

projects requires a wide range of skills and 

knowhow. Sponda is an expert property 

developer and reliable builder and has al-

so been successful in winning projects put 

out to competitive tender.

Sponda’s strengths in its property de-

velopment operations include the ability 

to create innovative business premise so-

lutions that take into account the needs 

of the tendering party and clients and ad-

dress cityscape aspects. This knowhow 

is based on long-term experience in the 

property sector.

To retain its competitive edge in the 

property development market and to 

ensure the high quality of all its opera-

tions, Sponda is continuously developing 

its processes. 

Sponda’s property development oper-

ations expanded strongly in 2008, and by 

the end of the year all the development 

projects in progress had been completed, 

apart from the City-Center complex. The 

value of Sponda’s property development 

portfolio stood at EUR 184.2 million at 

the end of 2008. Land areas accounted for 

EUR 81.9 million of this and the remaining 

EUR 102.3 million was tied up in property 

development projects in progress. Capital 

expenditure rose from EUR 94.7 million in 

2007 to EUR 204.6 million in 2008.
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Major projects at 
Vuosaari Harbour completed 
on schedule

The biggest of Sponda’s property develop-

ment projects completed during 2008 is 

the PortGate logistics centre in Vuo saari 

Harbour, the fi rst phase comprising the 

15,000 square metre Gate Centre and the 

logistics area which will have a total area of 

70,000 square metres. The projects, which 

started up in spring 2007, progressed ac-

cording to plan and were completed on 

schedule, in time for the opening of the 

harbour, which took place in November 

2008. Construction of the second section 

of the logistics area depends on demand 

but it will be built by the end of 2014. Port-

Gate is the largest property development 

project in Sponda’s history.

In spring 2008 Sponda also signed a con-

tract to build the Vuosaari Service Center, 

which will serve companies operating 

in the harbour. The Center comprises a 

building with offi  ces and staff  facilities and 

a service and repair workshop building. 

Construction began in April 2008, and 

some of the buildings were completed in 

November 2008. The Vuosaari Service 

Center will be completely ready by the 

end of February 2009.

City-Center a major

new build project

Another major property development 

project is the City-Center complex locat-

ed in the heart of Helsinki, where Sponda 

is developing a new-style offi  ce and shop-

ping centre. Construction of the complex 

began in 2006 and the project should be 

completed in 2012. City-Center is func-

tioning throughout the building project, 

which sets special challenges for construc-

tion. Despite the exceptional conditions, 

progress has been according to plan. 

Work on the City-Center section on 

the corner of Kaivokatu street and Kes-

kuskatu street was completed in spring 

2008, with the old offi  ces being replaced 

by a dozen or so new store units. The next 

major above-ground construction stage 

at the City-Center is estimated to get un-

derway towards the end of 2009, with the 

building of a new offi  ce building in the in-

ner court of the complex and converting 

the parking deck into retail premises. 

The next construction phase will also 

include the creation of the light shaft in 

the complex, which will allow daylight in-

to the lowest level of the building, down 

to the tunnel level. Construction of the 

" Th e biggest project completed
during 2008 is the PortGate
logistics centre in Vuosaari Harbour.“
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underground service facilities will contin-

ue at the same time.

Flexibility and energy savings

in new projects

In addition to its major projects, Sponda 

is also carrying out several other property 

development projects in the Helsinki met-

ropolitan area. 

Sponda built a 13,500 square metre 

offi  ce building in Ruoholahti and a 9,200 

square metre offi  ce building in Kalasata-

ma (fi sh harbour), both in Helsinki. The 

fully leased buildings were completed on 

schedule by the end of 2008.

The fl exible premises in the Ruoholahti 

offi  ce building are being adapted for hos-

pital use, as Diacor Terveyspalvelut Oy 

opened a medical centre and day hospi-

tal in the building. Sponda worked closely 

with Suomen Lähikauppa Oy in develop-

ing the property in Kalasatama. Particular 

attention was paid to the acoustics in the 

premises and to noise reduction. 

The end of 2008 also saw the comple-

tion of the 21,500 square metre Prisma 

store built by Sponda in Itäkeskus, Hel-

sinki. The property also has heated park-

ing for 665 cars. Construction at Itäkeskus 

started in May 2007. Building systems have 

been used to raise the energy effi  ciency of 

the property. The high pressure fans used 

to heat the parking premises give addition-

al energy savings.

 

GATE CENTRE IN VUOSAARI HARBOUR HELSINKI



THE BIGGEST PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS COMPLETED IN 2009

Prisma retail property, Itäkeskus, Helsinki  100%  21,500 m2

Offi  ce property, Porkkalankatu, Helsinki  100%  13,500 m2

Offi  ce property, Lautatarhankatu, Helsinki  100%  9,200 m2

PortGate logistics centre, 1st phase, Vuosaari Harbour, Helsinki  n. 40%   Logistics premises 70,000 m2 

    Offi  ce premises15,000 m2 

   Vuosaari Service Center* 4,300 m2

* Vuosaari Service Center will be completely ready by the end of February 2009. 
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services and growth-oriented business, in 

Länsi-Pasila, Helsinki. The Forum Virium 

Center will provide a unique meeting place 

and opportunities for networking for digital 

sector companies. Leasing negotiations for 

the property are in progress and one re-

quirement for starting up the project is that 

50 per cent of the premises are leased.  

Planning of the Ratina shopping centre 

in Tampere and the Vaasa shopping cen-

tre continued in 2008. The start-up agree-

ment relating to planning for the Vaasa 

project was signed in November 2008 and 

the application for building permission for 

the Ratina centre is being processed.

In Vantaa Sponda is planning to build a 

Business Village in the Aviapolis area, and if 

this goes ahead it will off er companies of-

fi ce, meeting and congress premises.

Product development

enhances operations

According to 2008 economic forecasts, 

building costs are coming down. This cre-

ates opportunities to improve the profi t-

ability of property development projects. 

Product development also offers new 

ways to enhance business models, which 

help Sponda to off er its customers highly 

developed, individual solutions. 

Sponda’s shopping centre projects that 

are planned and in progress will be a main 

feature of Sponda’s property development 

operations in 2009.

The 5,000 square metre new section 

of the logistics centre in the Honkatalo 

area in Akseli, Vantaa was completed in 

May 2008. 

Several projects in planning stage

Sponda has plans for several property devel-

opment projects in the Helsinki metropoli-

tan area and in Tampere, Turku and Vaasa. 

A new service station is planned in 

Turku for Turku Cooperative Retail Soci-

ety. Construction of the ABC service sta-

tion and S-market store should begin in 

spring 2009, and the estimated comple-

tion date is in spring 2010.

It is planned to build the Forum Virium 

Center, a landmark for developing digital 

” Property fl exibility 
is a key factor for Sponda when 
designing business premises.”



PRODUCTION PREMISES OF MOVENTAS IN JYVÄSKYLÄ
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Real Estate Funds

Sponda’s Real Estate Funds unit aims to 

create additional profi tability for the com-

pany by developing new fund products 

and expanding its existing funds.  

Sponda’s real estate funds for interna-

tional and Finnish institutional investors 

provide an easy way to invest in real estate. 

The indirect form of investment releas-

es the resources of investors, for Sponda 

manages its funds.

Sponda manages

four real estate funds

Sponda’s strength in real estate fund ac-

tivities lies primarily in its skilled person-

nel, who have a good knowledge of lo-

cal real estate markets and of the needs 

of tenants. In-depth knowhow in manag-

ing property portfolios is supported by 

Through its real estate funds, Sponda invests in offi  ce, retail and logistics

properties located in medium-sized towns in Finland, outside the company’s

core geographical operating area.

 

Sponda’s advanced processes and systems, 

which make it possible to manage large 

property portfolios effi  ciently.

Sponda has a minority holding in three 

funds: Sponda Fund I, Sponda Fund II and 

First Top LuxCo.

Sponda Fund I invests in logistics proper-

ties outside the Helsinki metropolitan area. 

At the end of 2008 the properties owned 

by the fund had a value of EUR 199 million.

Sponda owns 46 per cent of Sponda Fund I.

Sponda Fund II mainly invests in logis-

tics, warehouse and industrial properties 

in medium-sized towns in Finland. The 

fund has a target size of EUR 200 million, 

and at the end of 2008 the value of the 

property investments made by the fund 

stood at EUR 82 million. Sponda has a 44 

per cent holding in the fund.

The size of First Top LuxCo, which spe-

cializes in offi  ce and retail premises, stood at 

EUR 107 million at the end of 2008. Spon-

da owns about 20 per cent of the fund. 

Sponda also manages the property and 

assets of the WH 2005 / NIAM III East 

Holding Oy fund. The size of the fund at 

the end of 2008 was just under EUR 300 

million. 

Growth in funds
during 2008

During 2008 Sponda actively increased 

the size of its real estate funds and their 

number. Making purchases was hindered 

by the prevailing strong demand in the 

property market early in the year, which 

tailed off  half way through the year with 

the change in the economic situation. De-

" During 2008 Sponda 
actively increased the size 
of its real estate funds." 



PROFIT FROM LEASING OPERATIONS, REAL ESTATE FUNDS, MEUR

Total revenue      13.2  14.5  2.7

Operating expenses      -1.8  -4.5  -1.4

Net operating income      11.3  10.0  1.3

20
08

20
07

20
06

spite the activity in the property market 

early in the year, Sponda Fund I achieved 

its target size of EUR 200 million in spring 

2008.

A new real estate fund, Sponda Fund II, 

was set up in February 2008. When it was 

set up, the property owned by the fund had 

a value of some EUR 70 million. The prop-

erty portfolio at that point comprised the 

Moventas production plants in Karkkila and 

Jyväskylä. During the year the fund grew by 

purchasing the old Kivääritehdas (rifl e fac-

tory) property in Jyväskylä and four of Vaa-

san & Vaasan bakery properties.

The occupancy rate for the WH 2005 / 

NIAM III East Holding Oy real estate fund 

managed by Sponda rose during 2008. 

The occupancy rate remained at high lev-

el  even though property with a value of 

some EUR 100 million was sold from the 

fund during the year.

Economic downturn brings 
attractive investment opportunities

The economic situation means that more 

high quality, low cost properties are com-

ing on the market. Sponda Fund II, which 

invests in logistics properties, still has 

growth targets for 2009 and has invest-

ment capacity for which fi nancing has been 

arranged. This means that the fund will 

also be able to take advantage of attractive 

investment opportunities in the future.



Sponda has expanded its operations in 

Russia, aiming at growth and profi tability 

in line with its strategy. The unit achieved 

its target by raising its property holdings in 

Russia during 2008 to EUR 258.3 million. 

Sponda’s strong regional knowhow helps 

in understanding the Russian market and 

makes it easier to observe the changes tak-

ing place in the market. The unit’s person-

nel consists of experienced Finnish and lo-

cal experts in business in Russia, who are 

familiar with the Russian culture and know 

how things are done in the country.

At the end of 2008 Sponda owned nine 

properties in Russia. Of these, two offi  ce 

properties, two shopping centres and one 

land area are located in Moscow. In St Pe-

tersburg Sponda owns two offi  ce proper-

ties, a logistics centre and one land area. 

Russia and the Baltic Countries

offi  ce space and 1,300 square metres of 

retail space. 

Sponda is planning logistics projects for 

the land areas it owns in the Leningrad and 

Moscow districts. Sponda is currently ap-

plying for building permits for both sites, 

and the permits for the fi rst phases of the 

projects will probably be obtained during 

2009. Sponda also carried out property 

development and refurbishment projects 

in Russia at the Ancor and Ducat II offi  ce 

buildings in Moscow and at the NRC of-

fi ce building in St Petersburg. 

Second offi  ce in Russia

Towards the end of the year Sponda re-

inforced its presence in the Russian mar-

ket by establishing a second offi  ce in Rus-

sia. Sponda now serves customers in St Pe-

tersburg and in Moscow. With the new of-

fi ce Sponda is further increasing its market 

knowledge of the Moscow region.

Sponda’s Russia and the Baltic Countries unit leases, manages and develops business premises in Russia.

The name of the unit was changed after Sponda ceased to consider the Baltic Countries as a strategic 

property investment area, and as from 2009 the new name of the unit is Russia.

The high quality offi  ce premises, in cen-

tral locations and renovated in accordance 

with western requirements, provide cus-

tomers with excellent facilities for their 

business operations. 

Property assets grew

in line with strategy

During 2008 Sponda increased its prop-

erty holdings in Russia by purchasing the 

Sun Paradise I and Sun Paradise II shopping 

 centres in Moscow for altogether USD 109 

million. The shopping centres have a total 

of 15,500 square metres of leasable retail 

premises, and both are fully leased. 

In July 2008 Sponda purchased the Duc-

at II offi  ce property in the centre of Mos-

cow for some USD 185 million. Ducat II is 

in a central location a few kilometres from 

Red Square. The fully leased property has 

14,300 square metres of leasable A-grade 
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The Russia unit achieved its investment 

targets for 2008 with new purchases of 

property. The occupancy rate declined at 

the end of 2008 to 86.3 per cent after 

Sponda obtained 100 per cent owner-

ship of the Ancor offi  ce property in Mos-

cow in December 2008. Active leasing of 

the property could only begin after the 

transfer of ownership rights. At the end of 

2008 Sponda had 210 tenant customers in 

Russia and 262 leasing agreements. 

Many new business premises were com-

pleted in Moscow and St Petersburg dur-

ing the year, which temporarily reduced 

the occupancy rate in the Russian prop-

erty market. The fi nancial crisis has also 

aff ected the property development mar-

ket in Russia, and a considerable number 

of property development projects in Rus-

sia have been postponed due to problems 

with fi nancing. This is expected to even 

out the leasing situation and raise demand 

for existing business premises.

Sponda observes the same business prin-

ciples in Russia as in Finland and aims to of-

fer its customers in Russia the same stand-

ard of services as in Finland. This holds true 

also for corporate responsibility. The diff er-

ences between the business environments 

present challenges, but they do not prevent 

companies from observing the same princi-

ples and setting the same targets.

Profi tability a main focus in 2009

Due to the state of the global fi nancial 

market and of the property market in 

Russia, Sponda will not be making major 

investments in Russia in 2009. 

Sponda will focus in Russia primarily on 

boosting profi tability, by paying greater at-

tention to operative activities and to se-

curing cash fl ows and by developing its 

business operations. Sponda also aims to 

boost profi tability through savings in main-

tenance and management costs.

PROFIT FROM LEASING OPERATIONS, 

RUSSIA AND THE BALTIC COUNTRIES, MEUR    

Rental income      16.2  1.9  0.0

Operating expenses      -4.1  -0.4  0.0

Net operating income      12.0  1.5  0.0

Fair value of properties      258.3  77.2  10.7

Yield %      9.5   10.4  0.0
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case 04
VUOSAARI HARBOUR, 70,000 M2 LOGISTICS PREMISES, 15,000 M2 OFFICES, 4,300 M2 VUOSAARI SERVICE CEN    
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Vuosaari becomes main port for foreign trade

Vuosaari Harbour was commissioned in 

November 2008, and Finnsteve had moved 

all its Helsinki operations to  Vuosaari by the 

end of the year. The company’s new head 

offi  ce is located in the 13-storey offi  ce build-

ing that serves as a landmark for Vuosaari 

Harbour.

“Management and administration could 

function outside the harbour, but it was 

important for us to be close to operations. 

That helps us stay more in touch with what 

is going on,” says Finnsteve managing direc-

tor Hans Martin.

Key factors when choosing a port are 

the effi  ciency of port operations, location 

and onward connections. Vuosaari has ex-

Developing the PortGate logistics complex in Vuosaari Harbour is the biggest investment in Sponda’s history. 

Particular attention was paid in its design to fl exibility and environmental impact. Port operator Finnsteve has 

leased an import terminal and offi  ce premises from Sponda.

  TER, KOMENTOSILTA 1, HELSINKI

cellent land connections. Operations are 

made even smoother by having logistics 

premises in the harbour, since loads do 

not need to be transferred elsewhere to 

buff er storage.

“This cuts out unnecessary driving, re-

duces the environmental impact of our 

operations and increases cost effi  ciency.”



40    SPONDA PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2008

  

Sponda’s business operations are planned 

and assessed from the viewpoints of fi nan-

cial, social and environmental responsibil-

ity. Sponda carries out its business trans-

parently, complying with legislation and 

other regulations. As a major player in its 

fi eld, Sponda must answer to several dif-

ferent stakeholders – investors, sharehold-

ers, the authorities and personnel as well 

as to subcontractors and the media.

Vision and goals for corporate responsibility
Sponda’s goal is to operate transparently, observing the principles

of sustainable development. The company aims to be the fi rst choice

of customers, skilled personnel and investors.

The programme to evaluate operations 

and steer them towards greater responsi-

bility which began in autumn 2008 is based 

on a thorough analysis of the business en-

vironment and the company’s own oper-

ations. The defi nition of the vision for cor-

porate responsibility is that Sponda is the 

most reliable, profi table and responsible 

player in the real estate sector, implement-

ing sustainable development.

Sponda is developing various proce-

dures for assessing responsible operations 

and for the broadest possible examination 

of responsibility issues, covering all func-
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tions. Systematic application of responsibil-

ity issues to everyday operations is begin-

ning in 2009. This includes setting corpo-

rate responsibility goals, appointing peo-

ple to be responsible for these issues, and 

personnel training.

All-inclusive approach

to corporate responsibility

Financial responsibility means creating fi -

nancial wellbeing and meeting the expec-

tations of shareholders and other stake-

holders. To achieve these, the company 

must have profi table, effi  cient and com-

petitive business operations, and must 

observe the principles of good corporate 

governance and apply eff ective risk man-

agement. Financial responsibility is a pre-

requisite for developing other areas of 

corporate responsibility.

Social responsibility means effective 

ways of working with Sponda’s stakehold-

ers. Key issues are the wellbeing of per-

sonnel and providing for the development 

of personnel expertise. Other important 

aspects of social responsibility include re-

lations with other stakeholders and the 

immediate surroundings and proving cus-

tomers with suitable, safe premises.

Environmental factors play a major role 

in the real estate and construction sector. 

Environmental responsibility means sus-

tainable management of matters relating 

to the environment. It also includes plan-

ning and implementing the effi  cient use of 

energy, protecting water systems and the 

soil, acting to restrict climate change, and 

responsible use of materials. Environmen-

tal responsibility means not only assess-

ing the environmental impact of Sponda’s 

own operations and infl uencing this but 

also off ering customers information and 

eco-friendly solutions.

Despite the diff erences between the 

cultures of Russia and Finland, Sponda 

has the same business models and goals 

in both countries. This is also true for cor-

porate responsibility. Sponda observes the 

same corporate responsibility guidelines in 

Russia as in Finland, despite the challeng-

es arising from the diff erences in the busi-

ness environments.

PREMISES OF THE NORWEGIAN UNIVERSITY CENTRE IN ST. PETERSBURG
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Stakeholder groups

Personnel Altogether 141 people worked 

at Sponda at the end of 2008. Sponda is a 

responsible employer, off ering excellent, 

safe working conditions, a secure liveli-

hood, and the opportunity for person-

al development at work. Skilled, motivat-

ed and committed personnel are an im-

portant resource for Sponda: the com-

pany’s aim is the ongoing development of 

employees and ensuring their wellbeing, 

so that the business can continuously im-

prove.

Customers Sponda’s largest customer 

groups operate in the service, retail, and 

banking and investment sectors. Custom-

ers expect Sponda to provide individu-

al business premise solutions that  meet 

the customer’s needs and support sustain-

able development. The customer base is 

heterogeneous, in terms of requirements 

and geographical location. To maintain 

high quality customer service it is neces-

sary continuously to study the state of af-

fairs and put eff orts into customer rela-

tions activities.

Investors and owners At the end of 2008 

Sponda had 7904 registered sharehold-

ers. Public sector entities owned 2.0 per 

cent of the shares, nominee registered 

37.8 per cent, companies 47.2 per cent, 

private households 10.5 per cent, non-

Sponda’s diverse business environment and its position in society mean that the company has many 

stakeholder groups. In its operations Sponda seeks to take into account the expectations of these diff erent 

stakeholder groups and to respond to them in the best way possible.

  

profi t-making organizations 1.4 per cent, 

and fi nancial and insurance institutions 1.0 

per cent of the share stock. Altogether 

0.2 per cent of the shares were in foreign 

ownership.

Financiers Sponda has long-term, con-

fi dential relationships with its fi nanciers, 

which are mainly Nordic banks. Financiers 

include Nordea, Danske Bank, Skandinavis-

ka Enskilda Bank and Pohjola Bank plc.

Subcontractors Sponda’s most impor-

tant subcontractor is Ovenia Oy, which 

is responsible for the upkeep and main-

tenance of properties. Ovenia has an im-

portant role for customers and Sponda 

in respect of environmentally benign op-

erations. Sponda requires all its subcon-

tractors and partners to have transparent, 

responsible operations that take environ-

mental factors into account.

Media The media form an important 

stakeholder group and are a key means 

of communication about Sponda’s activi-

ties to other stakeholder groups. Eff ective 

management of media relations is based 

on active, reliable and open communica-

tion about the company’s operations.

Society and the authorities Sponda’s oper-

ations are developed in cooperation with 

the authorities. By maintaining good re-

lations with the authorities, the compa-

ny aims to ensure that it complies with 

statutory and other offi  cial requirements, 

to infl uence offi  cial regulations, and to ac-

tively monitor developments in regula-

tions. Good relations with the authorities 

are also of key importance for business 

in Russia.

Organizations Sponda is actively involved 

in RAKLI (The Finnish Association of 

Building Owners and Construction Cli-

ents), EPRA (European Public Real Estate 

Association) and INREV (European Asso-

ciation for Investors in Non-listed Real Es-

tate Vehicles). Sponda also joined a real es-

tate forum operating in Russia: the Associ-

ation for European Businesses.

Other stakeholder groups Sponda works 

together with other stakeholder groups 

such as educational institutions and R & D 

organizations. Each year Sponda provides 

opportunities for university students, for 

example, to work on a thesis related to 

the real estate sector. 

" Sponda requires all its subcontractors 
and partners to have transparent, 
responsible operations that take environmental 
factors into account."
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Financial responsibility
Financial responsibility means ensuring that business operations 

are effi  cient, profi table and competitive and generating fi nancial wellbeing

for diff erent stakeholders.

Responsible, transparent management 

of fi nances is one of the cornerstones 

of success.  Financial responsibility means 

responding to the yield expectations of 

owners, providing and securing jobs, pay-

ing taxes and generating economic well-

being for society. The fi nancial result also 

has an impact on customers and subcon-

tractors.

Financial responsibility also means ob-

serving good corporate governance prac-

tice and managing risks (more details on 

corporate governance and risk manage-

ment are given on pages 52 and 53 of the 

annual report). 

Financial impact

of business operations 

Sponda’s operations generate financial 

wellbeing through the cash fl ows between 

the company and its stakeholders. These 

include rental income from clients, pur-

chases from suppliers, personnel salaries, 

dividends for shareholders, and invest-

ments to make the business grow. Spon-

da’s operations also have an indirect im-

pact, for example on the business of cli-

ents and suppliers.

Customers

More than 90 per cent of Sponda’s total 

revenue comes from rental income, and 

about six per cent from management fees 

for real estate funds and from Sponda’s 

share of their profi ts.  Sponda aims to pro-

vide the best possible business environ-

ment for the business operations of cus-

tomers and the most eff ective customer 

relationship on the market. 

Personnel

Sponda’s employee expenses totalled EUR 

12.4 million in 2008. Sponda employed at 

the end of 2008 altogether 141 people, 

and 16 of these worked at the offi  ces 

in Russia. In addition the company gives 

employment indirectly to many people 

through property maintenance and cap-

ital expenditure on property. Personnel 

belong to a bonus scheme with bonuses 

that are linked to the company’s targets.

Service suppliers

Sponda purchases from partners and sub-

contractors services and functions that 

are not part of Sponda’s core business. 

These include building management ser-

vices, construction and maintenance ser-

vices, and certain administrative functions. 

Sponda requires all its subcontractors and 

partners to have operations that are trans-

parent and responsible and take environ-

mental issues into account.

Financiers

Sponda’s net fi nancial costs totalled EUR 

87.5 million in 2008. At the end of the year 

the company had EUR 1,828.3 million in 

interest-bearing loans and an equity ratio 

of 32 per cent. In October Sponda refi -

nanced a EUR 150 million loan that was 

maturing in an extremely diffi  cult fi nan-

cial market, which demonstrates the con-

fi dence that banks have in the company.

Shareholders 

At the end of 2008 Sponda had altogeth-

er 7,904 shareholders, and 37.8 per cent 

of these were nominee registered. The 

company’s cash fl ow from operations per 

share was EUR 0.78. The Board of Direc-

tors proposes to the AGM that due to 

the uncertain state of the fi nancial mar-

kets no dividend be paid for the 2008 fi -

nancial year.

Public sector

Sponda paid EUR 9.5 million in taxes in 

2008. The company received EUR 23.9 

million in income from state-owned en-

terprises and companies in the form of 

rent.

Support of non-profi t activities 

Sponda donated the money reserved for 

traditional Christmas greetings to protect-

ing the Baltic Sea. The donation supports 

the WWF’s Operation Mermaid, a ma-

jor campaign by WWF Finland for saving 

the Baltic Sea.

Investments 

Capital expenditure on property mainte-

nance amounted to EUR 26.6 million dur-

ing the year. These investments ensure the 

well-being of tenants and provide the best 

possible conditions for business opera-

tions. Altogether EUR 248.4 million was 

invested in the Group’s property devel-

opment during the year.

CASH FLOWS BETWEEN STAKEHOLDERS, IFRS  

Customers    + Revenues  224.3  100.0  210.9  100.0

Suppliers   - Purchases  -62.0  -27.6  -62.2  -29.5

Personnel   - Personnel expenses  -12.4  -5.5  -12.2  -5.8

Shareholders   - Dividends  -55.5  -24.7  -44.7  -21.2

Financiers   - Net fi nancing costs  -87.5  -39.0  -72.3  -34.3

Public sector   - Taxes  -9.5  -4.2  -7.4  -3.5
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SPONDA PLC'S OFFICES IN HELSINKI

 

Social responsibility

At Sponda, social responsibility is primari-

ly responsibility for the company’s person-

nel and for their wellbeing. Everyday work 

is governed by the company’s values and 

business principles.

Sponda off ers its personnel interesting 

work and also indirectly provides employ-

ment for its partner network, for exam-

ple in developing, designing and maintain-

ing properties.

Sponda actively keeps in touch with 

its customers and provides safe business 

premise solutions that promote the busi-

Social responsibility means eff ective ways of working with diff erent stakeholder groups. One of the most 

important stakeholder groups is the company’s own personnel, and Sponda aims to look after the continuous 

development of their skills and wellbeing at work. 

ness of clients. In its relationships with sub-

contractors Sponda values honesty, abides 

by its contracts, and complies with the pur-

chasing criteria guiding the company’s pur-

chasing process.

Sponda participates in social discussion 

for example through RAKLI (The Finnish 

Association of Building Owners and Con-

struction Clients) and with its own active 

external communications. 

Sponda’s social responsibility goals in 2009 

are to update and clarify the human resource 

policy to bring it in line with the company’s 

growth and international expansion, and to 

defi ne the policy for internal communica-

tions in relation to corporate responsibility 

issues. The company will increase its exter-

nal communications, to customers, subcon-

tractors, partners and the media.

Sponda also shares in social responsibil-

ity by contributing to environmental con-

servation. In 2008 the money reserved for 

traditional Christmas greetings was donat-

ed to the WWF’s Operation Mermaid, a 

major campaign by WWF Finland for sav-

ing the Baltic Sea.
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The Baltic Sea is an important area for 

Sponda’s operations. One of Sponda’s larg-

est business properties is located on the 

shore of the Baltic Sea in  Vuosaari Har-

bour, and in addition Sponda is a prop-

erty investor in the largest coastal city on 

the Baltic Sea, St Petersburg. That is why 

Sponda wishes to play its part in support-

ing the conservation of the Baltic Sea by 

donating funds to equip oil spill combat 

teams and for preventing oil damage to 

the Baltic Sea.

Human resources
Human resources management at Sponda 

is governed by the human resources strat-

egy, which is based on the company’s busi-

ness strategy, and by the company’s values: 

innovation, reliability and professionalism.

The priorities in human resources man-

agement in 2008 were developing skills to 

support growth and improving the work 

climate. Customer orientation was anoth-

er focus, developing a standard customer 

relations strategy that aims to develop in-

novative, customer-focused solutions for 

managing customer relations. Work on 

developing the customer relations strat-

egy continues in 2009, when a personnel 

training programme will get underway. 

The implementation of Sponda’s human 

resources strategy is assessed through the 

results and development interviews, com-

petitor comparisons, investments in per-

sonnel development and the annual per-

sonnel surveys.

Personnel in 2008

At the end of 2008 Sponda Group em-

ployed altogether 141 people (216 at the 

end of 2007). Of these, 125 (124) were 

employed at Sponda Plc and 16 at the 

Group’s Russian companies.

The average age of Sponda’s personnel 

is 45.8 years. Some 48 per cent of employ-

ees are women and 52 per cent are men. 

Approximately one third of the employees 

(35 per cent) have academic degrees and 

16 per cent a polytechnic degree. Sponda 

Plc recruited altogether 14 people during 

2008. Altogether 13 people terminated 

their employment.

In 2008 there were 2.9 training days per 

employee and training costs accounted for 

3 per cent of salaries. 

Personnel value Sponda as an 
employer and a work community 

An extensive personnel survey was car-

ried out at Sponda in October 2008. In 

the survey respondents assessed their sat-

isfaction with their own work, their busi-

ness unit, the quality of supervision, and 

the company as a whole.

KEY FIGURES 

FOR GROUP’S PERSONNEL 

Average number of employees  137  219

Average age  45.8  45.4

Days lost through sickness in average  4.4  2.3

Training days in average  2.9  3.3

20
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20
07

" Th e priorities in human resources 
management in 2008 were
developing skills to support growth 
and improving the work climate." 
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As in the previous year the results of 

the survey are excellent , and the response 

rate, 97 per cent, was high. The results of 

the personnel survey are examined each 

year at company and unit level. The ef-

forts put into personnel wellbeing, super-

visor work, appraisal discussions and com-

munication on the strategy can be seen in 

terms of better results.

According to the survey, the satisfac-

tion of almost all personnel groups has 

increased at Sponda and personnel val-

ue their work highly. Personnel have con-

fi dence in the company’s management and 

the visions for the future held by manage-

ment. In 2008 Sponda intensifi ed especial-

ly communication of the company’s strat-

egy to personnel.  

The goal in 2009 is to maintain the ex-

cellent overall result achieved  and to de-

velop cooperation between units.

In connection with the personnel sur-

vey, a customer satisfaction survey of in-

ternal services was conducted for the 

fi rst time. According to the survey, per-

sonnel at Sponda are overall more satis-

fi ed with their company’s internal services 

than personnel at other Finnish companies  

on   average. 

The main channels used for communi-

cating with personnel at Sponda are the in-

tranet and the quarterly meetings for per-

sonnel giving information on the compa-

ny’s results. 

Customer needs direct the 
development of skills

Customer expectations and needs set 

the direction for developing the skills and 

know how of Sponda personnel. Sponda’s 

core skills are customer relations manage-

ment, property development, real estate 

investment and innovation in developing 

business environments. 

Sponda supports and encourages per-

sonnel in personal development and par-

ticipating in further education. Joint train-

ing programmes are arranged for person-

nel based on the needs arising at appraisal 

discussions and from the human resourc-

es strategy, or personnel may be off ered 

the opportunity to participate in training 

outside the company.

The training programme in supervisor 

work and management was completed 

early in 2008. This focused on develop-

ing management principles and business 

methods. During the training the founda-

tions were laid for renewing the custom-

er relations strategy.

Sponda operates an incentive bonus 

scheme which is based on the company’s 

common goals and on personal targets for 

PERSONNEL GROUPS 31 DEC 2008 
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University education  35%

Polytechnic qualification 16%

College education 46%

Other 2%

EDUCATIONAL STRUCTURE
31 DEC 2008

Men  52%

Women  48%

SEX RATIO 31 DEC 2008 AGE RATIO 31 DEC 2008
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each employee. Key factors aff ecting the 

bonus in 2008 are profi tability, growth in 

property investments and the develop-

ment of operations.

Investing in personnel wellbeing

Wellbeing at work and commitment to 

work are key elements in Sponda’s hu-

man resources strategy. Sponda provides 

comprehensive occupational health ser-

vices. To ensure sound ergonomics for 

new and existing employees, the occupa-

tional health service makes regular visits 

to the workplace. Sponda and the occu-

pational health service together make an-

nual plans for future eff orts to help per-

sonnel maintain their work fi tness.

Sponda supports the occupational 

health and wellbeing of its personnel with 

physical exercise vouchers, which person-

nel make active use of. Sponda also has a 

programme for wellbeing and maintaining 

work fi tness, which helps those with more 

years of working life behind them to main-

tain work fi tness.

" Customer expectations
and needs set the direction 
for developing the skills and 
knowhow of Sponda personnel.“
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The real estate sector generates about 

one third of Finland’s greenhouse gas 

emissions. Construction, repairs, and the 

maintenance and use of properties all have 

an impact on the environment. What kind 

of buildings and properties are used for 

business is a key issue in limiting climate 

change. 

As a responsible property owner, Spon-

da considers it important to take into ac-

count the environmental impact of its 

properties both when purchasing a prop-

erty and when it is in use. Sponda factors in 

customer requirements and environmen-

tal aspects when designing and construct-

ing buildings and business premises.

Important choices are made
in the planning stage

Major decisions are taken in building 

projects at the start of the feasibility study 

and planning stage that will aff ect the en-

ergy effi  ciency of the property, its envi-

ronmental impact and its eff ectiveness as 

a healthy work environment, throughout 

Environmental responsibility
The real estate sector plays a major role in fi ghting climate change

and promoting the wellbeing of the environment. Sponda takes

environmental aspects into account in the design and use of properties. 

 

the life span of the building. The choices 

made during construction or when carry-

ing out repairs – everything from prepar-

ing the ground and the choice of materi-

als to technical systems and furnishings – 

have an impact on the life of the property 

and on the possibility of making energy-ef-

fi cient choices.

Sponda has put together planning guide-

lines for designing offi  ce buildings, which 

aim to create fl exible, adaptable and ener-

gy effi  cient buildings that form good phys-

ical surroundings for the users’ work envi-

ronment. The guidelines portray the de-

sired quality with the aid of technical ar-

guments and system descriptions, and in 

many areas their values exceed the gen-

eral level required in building codes and 

regulations.

The guidelines have been adapted for 

retail properties, for which specifi c appli-

cations for individual properties have been 

developed in cooperation with the future 

users of the building. Examples of these 

are utilizing the condensation heat from 

refrigeration equipment to preheat the air 

conditioning in parking facilities and the use 

of renewable energy sources.

Most of the environmental impact 
occurs during use

Viewed over a 50 year period, some 80% 

of a property’s environmental impact oc-

curs during operation, management and 

maintenance. The single largest factor 

is electricity consumption, which causes 

some 40 per cent of the environmental 

impact during the life cycle of a building. 

Sponda works with clients to develop and 

implement solutions that enable clients to 

meet their own environmental responsi-

bility. Energy recovery and district cool-

ing systems are some examples of these. 

Sponda keeps its clients informed, for ex-

ample about ways to reduce energy con-

sumption.  

An important role is played by Ovenia 

Oy, which is responsible for the mainte-

nance and upkeep of Sponda’s proper-

ties. Cooperation with Ovenia is being 
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strengthened during 2009 so that cus-

tomers can be off ered more detailed in-

formation about environmental issues and 

solutions that give better opportunities for 

monitoring environmental impact and re-

ducing this. 

Energy monitoring systems at proper-

ties are being standardized, so that all the 

fi gures are obtained from the same sys-

tem. This will also make it possible to op-

timize energy usage. Waste management 

at properties will also be monitored more 

closely, in cooperation with waste manage-

ment companies. 

Aiming at energy effi  ciency  

Sponda improves energy effi  ciency at prop-

erties by upgrading and replacing the tech-

nical systems and equipment on the prop-

erties. Heat recovery equipment, for ex-

ample, can give signifi cant energy savings.

The Prisma property in Itäkeskus, Hel-

sinki is being completed at the start of 

2009. During the design and construction 

of the property, particular attention has 

been paid to energy effi  ciency, and this has 

been increased through the use of tech-

nical building systems. The condensation 

heat from refrigeration equipment is used 

to heat the parking facilities, and ventilation 

in the parking facilities is governed by the 

level of exhaust fumes in the air. Powerful 

air curtain heaters in the main entrances 

give further energy savings.

Greater investment in
the environment in 2009 

During 2009 Sponda is introducing the 

”Sponda 10+” scheme. Ten properties 

have been chosen for the pilot project in 

the scheme, in which Sponda and the users 

of the property aim to identify areas where 

energy can be saved. The costs saved in this 

way will be re-invested in the property, so 

the clients will also benefi t fi nancially from 

the scheme. Sponda’s head offi  ce is one of 

the properties in the pilot scheme.

One goal for 2009 is to further develop 

the main guidelines for new projects. This 

will utilize the feedback received about 

" Sponda works with clients to develop 
and implement solutions that enable clients 
to meet their own environmental responsibility."

completed projects and will examine how 

implementing the guidelines has aff ected 

the environmental impact of buildings dur-

ing their use.     

Greater attention is being paid in Russia 

to environmental issues. Water, electrici-

ty and gas consumption are monitored at 

the properties owned by Sponda in Rus-

sia. Sponda works closely with the author-

ities in environmental issues.
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case 05
DUCAT II ,  14,300 M2 A-GRADE OFFICE PREMISES, 1,300 M2 RETAIL PREMISES, GASHEKA 7, MOSCOW
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Many international companies operate in the high quality premises of

the Ducat II offi  ce complex. Ducat II is part of a cluster of three modern

offi  ce buildings, where the companies operating in them have space to grow.

Companies consider Ducat II, in an out-

standing location some three kilometres 

from Red Square, to be a highly desirable 

property. They appreciate not just the loca-

tion but also the high quality, well maintained 

offi  ces and the other services available. 

The Moscow offi  ce of international law 

fi rm Baker Botts has been located in Duc-

at II since 2004. According to Steven Ward-

law, partner in charge for the offi  ce, many 

factors help make it such a good property:

“The location, parking facilities, eff ective 

security services and the excellent restau-

rant on the ground fl oor make Ducat II the 

right offi  ce premises for us. It is also im-

portant for our work as an international 

law fi rm that we can use the premises in 

the evening and at the weekend.” 

Modern offi  ce building in Moscow
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Risks and risk management

Ultimate responsibility for risk manage-

ment lies with Sponda’s Board of Direc-

tors, which decides on risk management 

goals, defi nes the risk management policy 

and monitors key risks. The specifi c task 

of the Executive Board is to organize risk 

management. It is the specifi c task of the 

business units and corporate functions to 

arrange for risk management to be mon-

itored and reported as part of the oth-

er reporting systems. The internal audit 

checks that the risk management system 

functions eff ectively.

Sponda’s annual planning process in-

cludes carrying out a risk survey, which 

identifies key risks and estimates their 

number. Processing the strategy and the 

annual plan includes assessing the re-

sponse to key risks and examining the 

need to change risk management targets 

and the risk management policy. Approv-

ing the annual plan involves deciding on any 

revisions to risk management targets and 

the risk management policy. The Group’s 

instructions and guidelines and the oper-

ations handbook are updated on the basis 

of the decisions made aff ecting risk man-

agement.

Group level reports on risks are given 

to the Board of Directors annually in con-

nection with the risk survey. Risk report-

ing at executive board and business oper-

ations levels is part of the business man-

agement system.

Risks relating to Sponda’s

business operations

The key risks identifi ed in the risk survey 

for 2009 are:

The fair value of properties
may change
The value of properties usually follows 

economic trends. Many factors aff ect the 

value of properties, such as interest rates, 

infl ation, economic growth, business en-

vironment, availability of credit, proper-

ty taxation, demographic factors and the 

level of construction activity. In addition, 

changes in supply and demand may have 

The objective of risk management is to 

identify the key uncertainties relating to 

achieving targets, to measure and assess 

previously identifi ed uncertainties, and to 

decide on the response to these uncer-

tainties. Sponda’s key risks are classifi ed as 

strategic risks, operative risks, damage/as-

set risks and fi nancing risks.

Risks are considered a normal part of 

business operations. They are assessed 

from two viewpoints, that of exploiting 

the opportunities they contain and of re-

ducing and eliminating the risks.

Risk management organization

Risk management is integrated into Spon-

da’s strategy process, business control sys-

tem and business processes. Responsibility 

for risk management is defi ned in accord-

ance with business responsibility. Howev-

er, each company employee is responsi-

ble for identifying risks that threaten to 

prevent the company from achieving its 

targets and for informing the company of 

them.

 

The key elements of Sponda’s risk management are the Group’s ability and desire to take risks, identifying

the key risks to which the Group is exposed, and the approved risk management policy. Risk management

is part of everyday operations and of the management of business operations.

The fair value of properties
may change

Sponda prepares for possible decline in fair value of properties, which in turn has a negative impact 

on company’s equity ratio, for example by divesting properties and by minimizing and postponing 

investments.

Tenants ability to pay rent
may weaken

Sponda follows regularly possible changes in customers’ ability to pay rent. Major part of Sponda’s 

customers has deposited 3–6 months’ rent guarantee at the beginning of the lease period.

Sponda’s tenants are divided evenly in diff erent sectors, for example public sector and retail and 

banking sectors.   

Risks relating to the availability 
of funds and to interest costs

Sponda reduces the refi nancing risk by using credit agreements of varying durations, employing a 

number of funding sources and maintaining the company’s reputation as a trustworthy debtor. The 

interest rate risk from fl oating rate fi nancing is reduced with interest rate derivatives.

Developments in the Russian 
property market in an unstable 
economic situation

Sponda receives about half of its rental income in Russia in US dollars. About half is in roubles, and 

a large part of this is tied to the dollar’s or euro’s exchange rate. The company’s rouble risk is redu-

ced because a major part of the unit’s expenses are denominated in roubles. It is Sponda’s policy to 

hedge 6 months cash fl ow in Russia. The investments in Russia are fi nanced in euros through the 

parent company’s balance sheet.
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a signifi cant impact on the value of prop-

erties, regardless of general trends in the 

economic factors aff ecting regional prop-

erty markets.

In the current state of the market, the 

value of properties is expected to fall in 

2009. As a result, Sponda’s operation-

al profi t may vary, and economic factors 

and local market conditions may both have 

a signifi cant impact on this.

Tenants' ability to pay rent
may weaken
Many of Sponda’s properties are leased 

in part or entirely to large business cus-

tomers. At the end of 2008 Sponda had 

3,046 leasing agreements and 1,794 cus-

tomers. The Group’s 10 largest tenants ac-

count for 31.3 per cent of the company’s 

rental income, and the largest customer 

sectors are retail, banking and the public 

sector. If Sponda loses one or more ten-

ants, or they become insolvent, this may 

result in a considerable loss of income. If 

a property is vacant for a long period, this 

may harm the value of properties, Spon-

da’s fi nancial position and the profi t of its 

operations.

Risks relating to the availability
of funds and to interest costs
The current state of the fi nancial mar-

ket has made it considerably more diffi  -

cult to obtain fi nancing, and credit terms 

have tightened. This may aff ect Sponda’s 

fi nancial position and business operations 

in 2009. Changes in margins and interest 

levels may have a major impact on proper-

ty operations and the valuation of proper-

ties. Financial risks and their management 

are presented on pages 54 and 55 of the 

annual report. The sensitivity analysis of 

the interest rate risk is presented on page 

55 of the annual report.

Developments in the Russian
property market in an unstable
economic situation

As part of its strategy, Sponda has expand-

ed its operations to Moscow and St Pe-

tersburg. Some 9 per cent of the compa-

ny’s property assets were located in Rus-

sia at the end of 2008. The diff erences be-

tween Russian and Finnish legislation and 

the way the authorities operate in the two 

countries may cause extra risks for Spon-

da. The current unstable economic sit-

uation may also weaken the solvency of 

Sponda’s tenants and reduce their space 

requirements. If this occurs, it could have 

a harmful impact on the company’s fi nan-

cial position and the profi t of its opera-

tions. The expanding business operations 

in Russia increase Sponda’s currency risk. 

Sponda hedges its foreign currency cash 

fl ow for the next six months.

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

Rental level, %    +/-1%      2.1

Rental level, €/m2/month    +/-1 €/m2/month     15.5

Economic occupancy rate    +/-1%-unit      2.5

Operating expenses    +/-1%      0.6

Property tax    +/-1%      0,1

All the above factors also affect the fair values of the investment properties.
The impact of changes in fair value of properties is not included in the result.
Sensitivity analysis of the interest levels is available on the page 55.
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Financing and fi nancial risk management

The main principles of the treasury strate-

gy are having a broad base of fi nanciers, a 

diversifi ed range of fi nancing instruments, 

a debt portfolio with evenly spread ma-

turity dates, and managed hedging of in-

terest rate risks. Sponda’s objective in its 

fi nancing operations is to arrange unse-

cured credit.

Sponda’s long-term financing pro-

gramme include syndicated credit facili-

ties totalling EUR 800 million, bonds to-

talling EUR 259 million, and loans from fi -

nancial institutions amounting to EUR 636 

million. The company manages its liquidi-

ty and short-term fi nancing needs with a 

EUR 350 million commercial paper pro-

gramme and unused binding short-term 

credit limits.

The company’s treasury operations 

are centrally handled by its treasury unit, 

which is responsible for fi nancing and fi -

nancial asset management.

Financial risks

and their management

The purpose of risk management is to 

minimize any negative impact of changes in 

the capital market on the company’s prof-

its and cash fl ow. Sponda’s Board of Direc-

tors sets the objectives for risk manage-

ment, defi nes the risk management poli-

cy, and is responsible for monitoring risk 

management.

The company’s treasury unit is respon-

sible for the practical application of risk 

management within the framework of the 

risk management policy. The internal au-

dit function is responsible for auditing the 

eff ectiveness of the risk management sys-

tem. Financial operations are reported to 

the Board of Directors regularly.

Sponda’s main fi nancing risks are inter-

est rate risks, risks related to the availabil-

ity of fi nancing, exchange rate risks and 

credit risks.

According to Sponda’s risk manage-

ment policy, the hedge ratio for interest 

rate risk has to be at least 60 per cent 

and at most 100 per cent. At the end of 

2008 the hedge ratio for the debt portfo-

lio was 58 per cent. Fixed-rate loans and 

interest-rate derivatives are used to bal-

ance the eff ect of changes in market in-

terest rates. Sponda has not entered into 

derivative agreements for trading purpos-

es. The purpose of its interest-rate swaps 

and interest options is to hedge the com-

pany’s future interest fl ows.

Changes in the exchange rate between 

the Russian rouble and euro and between 

the US dollar and the euro can affect 

Sponda’s fi nancial position and its oper-

ations. Sponda’s reporting currency is the 

euro and all balance sheet items for for-

eign properties as well as all income and 

expenses generated by them are convert-

ed to euros. Investments in Russia are fi -

nanced in euros. Sponda hedges the cash 

fl ow from the Russian operations for six 

months.  

The risk relating to the availability of 

financing for Sponda is reduced using 

credit agreements of varying durations, a 

broad base of fi nanciers, credit limits and 

by maintaining the company’s reputation 

as a trustworthy debtor among its credi-

tors. Sponda’s creditors are protected by 

standard covenants included in fi nancial 

contracts that apply, among other things, 

to the equal status of the fi nanciers, cer-

tain key indicators, and the use of collat-

 

The purpose of Sponda’s fi nancing strategy is to support the company’s

business strategy by acquiring the fi nancing needed to implement the strategy

and by managing Sponda Group’s fi nancial risks.

Syndicated loans  27%

Syndicated revolving credit facilities 16%

Bonds and Floating Rate Notes 14%

Loans from financial institutions 35%

Commercial papers 7%

SPONDA GROUP LOAN INSTRUMENTS 
31 DEC 2008

SPONDA GROUP LOAN MATURITIES
31 DEC 2008
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eral by the company. The most important 

covenants in Sponda’s loans are:

  Interest cover ratio (EBITDA / Net-•

interest cost), which must be at least 

1.75.

  Equity ratio, which must be at least •

28 per cent.

Further information about financing 

programmes is presented on the Inves-

tor Relations pages of Sponda’s website: 

www.sponda.fi .

Financing in 2008

Net cash generated by operating activities 

in 2008 was EUR 140.7 (2007: 211.5 ) mil-

lion. Net cash used in investing activities 

totalled EUR -389.8 (-19.0) million, and 

net cash generated from fi nancing activi-

ties came to EUR 238.0 (-188.7) million. 

Cash fl ow from operations per share was 

EUR 0.78 (0.81).

Sponda’s equity ratio was 32 (32) per 

cnt. At the end of the fi nancial period 

Sponda had interest-bearing debt totalling 

EUR 1,828 (1,663) million, of which EUR 

285 (606) million was short-term debt. 

Financial income and expenses amount-

ed to EUR -87.5 (-72.3) million. Cash and 

cash equivalents totalled EUR 16.0 (27.4) 

million.

The average maturity of Sponda’s loans 

was 3.0 (2.6) years. They carried average 

interest of 4.6 (4.6) per cent and the aver-

age interest-bearing period was 1.7 (2.6) 

years. The interest cover was 2.1 (2.0), and 

the hedge ratio covering the loan capital 

was 58 (65) per cent. Secured loans rep-

resented 1.6 (0.4) per cent of the balance 

sheet total.

Gearing at the end of the year was 181 

(174.9) per cent. 

Main fi nancial arrangements in 2008

Sponda signed a fi ve year bilateral loan for 

EUR 100 million and a seven year bilateral 

loan for EUR 50 million in February 2008. 

The loans were for fi nancing property de-

velopment investments. 

In March 2008 Sponda signed bilateral 

agreements for seven year loans of EUR 

150 million and EUR 50 million. The loans 

were used to fi nance the company’s in-

vestments in property development and 

in Russia. 

In summer 2008 Sponda issued a EUR 

130 million equity bond (a ‘hybrid loan’) to 

Finnish institutional investors. The bond has 

no maturity. The loan was used to fi nance 

the company’s investments and to strength-

en the company’s capital adequacy. 

Sponda refi nanced long-term loans and 

bonds maturing in autumn 2008 with a 

three-year syndicated loan of EUR 150 

million in October 2008. 

FINANCING KEY FIGURES

Net interest income     2.1  2.0  2.5  2.7  3.1

Interest-bearing net debt / Operating profi t     14.4  6.4  19.3  9.4  8.5

Average loan maturity    3.0  2.6  1.7  3.2  3.7

Average interest rate, %    4.6  4.6  4.6  4.2  4.3

Hedging rate of interest risk, %    58  65  74  50  51
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SENSITIVITY TO INTEREST RATE RISK
      

The eff ect of a one percentage point change in short-term market rates 

on the company’s result and the fair value reserve in shareholders’ equity.

One percentage point rise in market rates (Meur)   -7  +22   -5  +33 

One percentage point fall in market rates (Meur)   9  -23   +11  -31

The calculation does not include the impact of any deferred tax liability or credit.
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Investing in a real estate fund

Varma has also invested in a real estate 

fund managed by Sponda.

“We have used real estate funds in in-

ternational investments, and selectively in 

Finland, to augment our portfolio. Sponda’s 

fund that focuses on logistics and industri-

al properties is a good addition to Varma’s 

investment activities.”

A real estate fund off ers the pension 

investor an opportunity to utilize debt fi -

nancing in property market investment.

“Real estate fund investment is often 

based on debt fi nancing. This exposes it 

to a higher risk than our direct portfo-

lios, which are debt free. But successful, 

well-managed use of debt can give higher 

yields,” states Risto Murto.

“Eff ective real estate fund operations 

demand expertise in making and manag-

ing investments, and in managing the fi -

nancing structure.”

Varma Mutual Insurance Company is the biggest private investor in Finland and a major

real estate investor. According to Chief Investment Offi  cer Risto Murto, investing in real estate funds

is a useful addition to the company’s other investment activities.

PRODUCTION PREMISES OF MOVENTAS IN JYVÄSKYLÄ
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Corporate Governance

Sponda Plc is a public limited company reg-

istered in Finland and listed on the NAS-

DAQ OMX Helsinki Ltd. In its decision 

making and administration Sponda ap-

plies the Finnish Companies Act and oth-

er legal provisions governing public limit-

ed companies, and the company’s articles 

of association. Sponda Plc also complies 

with the Insider Guidelines of the NAS-

DAQ OMX Helsinki Ltd and the Corpo-

rate Governance recommendations is-

sued for listed companies, with the excep-

tion that the nomination of the members 

of the Board of Directors and proposals 

concerning their remuneration are made 

by the Nomination Committee of the 

shareholders, rather than a nomination 

and compensation committee appointed 

by the Board of Directors. As required 

by the Finnish Companies’ Act and Spon-

da’s articles of association, control of the 

company and its administration are divid-

ed between the shareholders represent-

ed at general meetings, the Board of Di-

rectors and the President. The President 

is assisted by an Executive Board.

General meetings

The company’s supreme decision-making 

body is the General Meeting of sharehold-

ers. The Annual General Meeting (AGM) 

is held once a year on a date determined 

by the Board of Directors and within six 

(6) months from the end of the previ-

ous fi nancial year. The AGM considers the 

matters stipulated in the Companies’ Act 

and Sponda’s articles of association. These 

include adopting the fi nancial statements, 

deciding on the use of the profi t shown 

in the balance sheet, electing the Board 

of Directors and deciding on their remu-

neration, and appointing the company’s 

auditors and deciding on their remunera-

tion. Sponda publishes the notice of gen-

eral meetings in at least one daily nation-

al newspaper determined by the Board of 

Directors and also on the company’s web-

site. Shareholders wishing to attend a gen-

eral meeting are required to be registered 

in the company’s shareholder register and 

to inform the company of their intention 

to attend the meeting in the manner stip-

ulated in the notice of meeting. Extraordi-

nary general meetings are convened when 

considered necessary by the Board of Di-

rectors or when required by the law.

Nomination Committee

of the shareholders

The Nomination Committee appoint-

ed by the Annual General Meeting pre-

pares proposals for candidate members 

of the Board of Directors and their com-

pensation for the following Annual Gen-

eral Meeting. Representatives of the three 

(3) principal shareholders are elected to 

the Nomination Committee along with 

the Chairman of the Board as an expert 

member. The right to appoint the Com-

mittee members representing the share-

holders belongs to those shareholders 

whose holding of the voting rights carried 

by all the company’s shares is largest on 

3 November preceding the Annual Gen-

eral Meeting. The Nomination Commit-

tee is convened by the Chairman of the 

Board of Directors and the Committee 

elects a chairman from among its mem-

bers. The Nomination Committee is re-

quired to present its proposal to the com-

pany’s Board of Directors no later than by 

2 February preceding the following Annu-

al General Meeting.

The principal shareholders of the Nom-

ination Committee appointed by Sponda 

Plc on 19 March 2008 and their repre-

sentatives were:

• The Finnish State/Ministry of Fi-

nance, 34.3% of the shares and votes, 

represented by Pekka Timonen

• Julius Tallberg-Kiinteistöt Oyj,

3.9% of the shares and votes, repre-

sented by Susanna Renlund,

• Ilmarinen Mutual Pension Insur-

ance Company, 0.7% of the shares and 

votes, represented by Timo Ritakallio.

The Nomination Committee submit-

ted its proposal to the Board of Direc-

tors by the set date, 2 February 2009.

Board of Directors

Under Sponda Plc’s articles of association, 

the company has a Board of Directors with 

between four and seven (4–7) members. 

In 2008 Sponda’s Board of Directors had 

six members who were all non-executive 

directors and independent of the compa-

ny. The members of the Board excluding 

Erkki Virtanen were also independent of 

the major shareholders. Sponda’s Board 

members represent broad experience of 

real estate, industry and fi nance. They are 

elected by the AGM based on the propos-

al of the shareholders’ Nomination Com-

mittee and for one year at a time until the 

following AGM. The Board elects a chair-

man and deputy chairman from among its 

members. The AGM in 2008 elected the 

following to the Board of Directors: Klaus 

Cawén (b. 1957), Tuula Entelä (b. 1955), 
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Timo Korvenpää (b. 1952), Lauri Ratia (b. 

1946), Arja Talma (b. 1962) and Erkki Vir-

tanen (b. 1950).

NO. O
F 

SH
ARES

CHANGE

SPONDA PLC SHARES OWNED

BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AT 31 DECEMBER 2008:

Klaus Cavén 1,000 –

Tuula Entelä  – –

Timo Korvenpää – –

Lauri Ratia  3,600  + 1,800

Arja Talma – –

Erkki Virtanen –  –

The Board meets to a pre-arranged sched-

ule 7–11 times during the year and it holds 

extra meetings as necessary. In 2008 the 

Board met 19 times and the average at-

tendance of Board members was 94 per 

cent. The Board assesses its own per-

formance and working procedures once 

a year.

The Board has established two perma-

nent committees to assist the Board by 

preparing matters for which the Board is 

responsible. These committees are the 

Audit Committee and the Structure and 

Remuneration Committee. The Board is 

responsible for carrying out the duties it 

assigns to the committees. The commit-

tees report regularly to the Board on their 

work. The Board confi rms written rules 

of procedure for the committees. If re-

quired, the Board can appoint other com-

mittees and working groups from among 

its own members to prepare matters for 

the Board’s decision.

The President regularly attends the 

Board’s meetings. The secretary of the 

Board is the SVP, Legal Aff airs and Treas-

ury.

Duties of the Board of Directors

Sponda’s Board of Directors has pre-

pared rules of procedure to guide the 

way it works and for its committees. These 

rules defi ne the tasks and responsibili-

ties of the Board, its chairman and depu-

ty chairman, and of the committees. Ac-

cording to these rules, the Board is re-

sponsible for the company’s administra-

tion and for the appropriate organization 

of its operations. The Board guides and 

supervises the company’s executive man-

agement, approves the company’s strate-

gic objectives and the principles underlying 

its risk management function, and ensures 

the eff ective function of its management 

systems. The Board also approves the an-

nual budget and resolves on signifi cant in-

dividual investments.

The Board of Directors appoints the 

company’s President, and chooses the 

members of the Executive Board based 

on the President’s proposal and decides 

their terms of employment and incentive 

schemes.The Board also resolves on per-

sonnel incentive schemes. 

The Board of Directors forms a quo-

rum when more than half its members 

are present.

Board committees

and working groups

The Board appoints the members and 

chairmen of the committees from its 

members.

The term of offi  ce is one year and this 

ends at the end of the following Annual 

General Meeting after election. Each com-

mittee has at least three (3) members. A 

committee meeting has a quorum when 

the chairman and at least one other mem-

ber are present.

The Audit Committee comprises at 

least three Board members who are in-

dependent of the company and its subsid-

iaries and have suffi  cient knowledge of ac-

counting and fi nancial statement practice. 

As from 19 March 2008 the Audit Com-

mittee comprises the chairman Arja Tal-

ma and the ordinary members Timo Kor-

venpää and Erkki Virtanen. 

The main duties of the Audit Commit-

tee are to evaluate fi nancing reporting 

and risk management and to examine fi -

nancial reviews. In 2008 the Audit Com-

mittee met fi ve times and the average at-

tendance of committee members was 93 

per cent.

The Structure and Remuneration Com-

mittee consists of at least three Board 

members who are independent of the 

Company. As from 19 March 2008 the 

Structure and Remuneration Committee 

comprises the chairman Lauri Ratia and 

the ordinary members Klaus Cawén and 

Tuula Entelä.

The main duties of the Structure and 

Remuneration Committee are to pre-

pare matters relating to the nomination 

of senior management and their remu-

neration and matters relating to strate-

gy and corporate structure. In 2008 the 

committee met fi ve times and the aver-

age attendance of committee members 

was 100 per cent.
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Remuneration paid to

the Board of Directors

The Annual General Meeting confi rms 

the fees payable to the Board of Direc-

tors annually, in advance. In 2008 the 

Board’s members were paid altogether 

EUR 281,500 in fees. The Board has no 

other remuneration schemes.

€/M
ONTH

FEES PAID TO THE BOARD

OF DIRECTORS IN 2008    

To the chairman   5,000

To the deputy chairman   3,000

To each other member   2,600

In 2008 a fee of EUR 600 was paid to 

each board member for each meeting at-

tended.

Th e President

Sponda’s President is appointed by the 

company’s Board of Directors. He man-

ages the company’s day-to-day operations 

in accordance with the instructions and 

stipulations of the Board of Directors. The 

President is responsible for ensuring that 

the company’s accounts comply with legal 

provisions and that the company has suf-

fi cient capital funds for its purposes. The 

President is supported by the Group’s Ex-

ecutive Board, of which he is the chairman. 

Sponda’s President and CEO from 2005 

has been Kari Inkinen.

The employment terms of the President 

are set out in a written contract of employ-

ment approved by the Board. The period 

of notice of the President is six months. 

Should the company terminate the Presi-

dent’s contract of employment, the Presi-

dent is entitled to compensation equivalent 

to twelve months salary. The retirement 

age of the President is 63 and his pension 

is determined in accordance with the Finn-

ish Employees Pension Act (TEL).

The President is paid a total salary. He 

also participates in a long-term share-

based incentive scheme for top manage-

ment which became eff ective on 1 January 

2006. Bonuses paid under this scheme are 

based on cash fl ow from operations per 

share and return on investment and are 

paid in the form of Sponda shares. These 

shares are subject to a restriction prohibit-

ing their disposal within two years of their 

issue. Bonuses are paid annually. In 2008 

the President was paid a salary of EUR 

496,741 and bonus of EUR 361,250, in 

total EUR 857,991.

Th e Executive Board

The Group’s Executive Board prepares the 

company’s annual business strategy and 

budget and monitors their implementa-

tion. The Executive Board also considers 

investments and divestments of strategic 

signifi cance to the whole Group, as well 

as the company’s operational guidelines 

and reporting. As from 1 January 2009 

the Executive Board has seven members: 

the President and CEO, the Chief Financial 

Offi  cer, the SVP, Legal Aff airs and Treasury, 

and the directors of the business areas.

The members of the Executive Board 

are insured with a contribution-based 

group pension insurance. Sponda Plc 

makes an annual insurance payment un-

til the member of the Executive Board 

reaches the age of 63 years. 

The members of the Executive Board 

are covered by the company’s long-term 

share-based scheme adopted on 1 January 

2006. Bonuses paid under this scheme are 

based on cash fl ow from operations per 

share and return on investment and are 

paid in the form of Sponda shares. These 

shares are subject to a restricting prohibit-

ing their disposal within two years of their 

issue. Bonuses are paid annually.

The members of the Executive Board 

held the following amounts of Sponda 

shares on 31 December 2008:

NO. O
F 

SH
ARES

CHANGE

SHARES HELD BY THE EXECUTIVE 

BOARD MEMBERS ON 31 DEC. 2008

Kari Inkinen 41,211 + 21,003

Erik Hjelt 6,752 + 6,752

Ossi Hynynen 10,756 + 10,756

Kari Koivu 6,975 + 6,975

Joni Mikkola 11,325 + 7,814 

Sirpa Sara-aho 10,282 + 10,282

Robert Öhman 12,457 + 7,798

External and internal audits

Auditors
The company has two auditors: a fi rm of 

authorized public accountants and a super-

vising auditor who is an auditor approved 

by the Central Chamber of Commerce. 

The auditors are responsible for examin-

ing the fi nancial statements, and the ac-

counts and administration of the parent 

company and the Group, and for submit-

ting a report on their audit to the Annual 

General Meeting of shareholders.

Sponda Plc’s Annual General Meeting on 

19 March 2008 appointed as its auditors 

Raija-Leena Hankonen, APA and the fi rm 

of authorized public accountants KPMG 

Oy Ab under the supervision of principal 

auditor Kai Salli, APA. The deputy auditor is 

Riitta Pyykkö, APA. Raija-Leena Hankonen 

has been Sponda Plc’s company auditor in 

1998–2000 and 2005–2007, Kai Salli since 

2008 and Riitta Pyykkö since 2006.

The auditing fees paid to the auditors in 

2008 amounted to EUR 137,257. A fur-

ther EUR 191,139 was paid to the audi-

tors for other consulting services.

Internal audit
Sponda’s operational effi  ciency, fi nancial 

performance and risk management are 
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audited internally. The internal audit is 

performed by an expert appointed from 

outside the company and chosen based 

on the expertise required for each assign-

ment. The internal audit reports to the 

President.

Insider management

Sponda complies with the Insider Guide-

lines issued by the NASDAQ OMX Hel-

sinki Ltd. These recommend that insiders 

wishing to trade in the company’s shares 

do so only at times when the market has 

the fullest possible information on mat-

ters that might materially aff ect the share 

price. Accordingly, Sponda’s insiders are 

not permitted to trade in Sponda’s secu-

rities for a period starting 21 days before 

the company publishes its interim or an-

nual results.

The company’s statutory public insiders 

are its Board of Directors, the Executive 

Board and the auditors. Additionally, insid-

er registers are maintained for individual 

companies and projects listing the names 

of the individuals who are in possession of 

insider information by virtue of their du-

ties or positions. The holdings of the com-

pany’s public insiders are available for in-

spection in the insider register maintained 

by the Euroclear Finland Ltd. The regis-

ter of public insiders is also posted on the 

company’s website, www.sponda.fi .

Risk management

At Sponda, the objective of risk manage-

ment is to identify the key uncertainties re-

lating to achieving targets, to measure and 

assess previously identifi ed uncertainties, 

and to decide on the response to these 

uncertainties. Sponda’s key risks are classi-

fi ed as strategic risks, operative risks, dam-

age/asset risks and fi nancing risks.

Risks are considered a normal part of 

business operations. They are assessed 

from two viewpoints, that of exploiting 

the opportunities they contain and of re-

ducing and eliminating the risks.

Risk management organization

Risk management is integrated into Spon-

da’s strategy process, business control sys-

tem and business processes. Responsibility 

for risk management is defi ned in accord-

ance with business responsibility. Howev-

er, each company employee is responsi-

ble for identifying risks that threaten to 

prevent the company from achieving its 

targets and for informing the company of 

them.

Ultimate responsibility for risk manage-

ment lies with Sponda’s Board of Direc-

tors, which decides on risk management 

goals, defi nes the risk management pol-

icy and monitors key risks. The specifi c 

task of the Executive Board is to organ-

ize risk management. It is the specifi c task 

of the business units and corporate func-

tions to arrange for risk management to 

be monitored and reported as part of the 

other reporting systems. It is the specif-

ic task of the internal audit to check that 

the risk management system functions ef-

fectively.

Sponda’s annual planning process includes 

carrying out a risk survey, which identi-

fi es key risks and estimates their number. 

Processing the strategy and the annual 

plan includes assessing the response to key 

risks and examining the need to change risk 

management targets and the risk manage-

ment policy. Approving the annual plan in-

volves deciding on any revisions to risk man-

agement targets and the risk management 

policy. The Group’s instructions and guide-

lines and the operations handbook are up-

dated on the basis of the decisions made 

aff ecting risk management.

Group level reports on risks are given 

to the Board of Directors annually in con-

nection with the risk survey. Risk report-

ing at executive board and business oper-

ations levels is part of the business man-

agement system.

The key risks identifi ed in the risk sur-

vey for 2009 are stated on pages 52–53 

of the annual report.

Fair value of the properties

Sponda’s investment properties are en-

tered in the balance sheet at fair market 

value, and the unrealized change in value is 

also entered in the income statements of 

each reporting period. Sponda calculates 

the fair value of its properties for its inter-

im (quarterly) and annual accounts.

The fair value of the investment proper-

ty portfolio on 31 December 2008 was 

EUR 2,907.5 (31 Dec 2007: 2,534.9) mil-

lion. The parameters and values used to 

calculate the fair value are the rent yield 

based on existing leasing contracts, mar-

ket rent levels in the case of vacant premis-

es, the vacancy rate of the properties, and 

the yield requirement used by the market. 

As these parameters change, so does the 

market value of the properties. 
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Board of Directors

Lauri Ratia
Chairman
MSc (Eng.), born 1946
Chairman and member of Sponda Plc’s  
Board of Directors since 2007
Career history
Lohja Rudus Group, Managing Director, 1994–2006
positions of trust
Edita Plc, Chairman of the Board  
Inspecta Holding Oy, Board member 
Medisize Oy, Chairman of the Board
OJSC LSR Group, St. Petersburg, Board member 
Olvi Plc, Board member
Samesor Oy, Board member (from 31 Jan 2008)
Tecnomen Corporation, Chairman of the Board
VR-Group Ltd, Chairman of the Board 
(from 24 Oct 2008)
owns 3,600 Sponda shares

Timo Korvenpää
deputy chairman
B.Sc. (Econ.), MBA, born 1952
Member of Sponda Plc’s Board of Directors  
since 2006 and Deputy chairman since 2008
Career history
Nokia Corporation, Nokia Networks, 
Senior Vice President and Controller, 2000–2002
Nokia Corporation, Vice President,  
Corporate Treasurer, 1995–2000
positions of trust
Evli Bank Plc, Board member
Metsä Group Financial Services Oy, Board member
Nokian Panimo Oy, Board member 
owns 0 Sponda shares

 

Klaus Cawén 
LL.M., born 1957
KONE Corporation, Executive Vice President
Member of Sponda Plc’s Board of Directors since 2008
Career history
KONE Corporation,  
Member of the Executive Board, 1991–
positions of trust
Glaston Oyj Abp, Board member
Oy Karl Fazer Ab, Board member
Toshiba Elevator and Building Systems Company,  
Board member
owns 1,000 Sponda shares

Tuula Entelä
MSc (Econ.), LL.M., born 1955
SATO Corporation,  
Business Area Director, Deputy CEO
Member of Sponda Plc’s Board of Directors since 2005
Career history
SATO Corporation, Vice President, 
Investment in Housing, 2004–
SATO Corporation, 
Deputy to President and CEO 2003–
SATO Group, Director, 
Investment in Housing1997–2003
SATO Group, Business Area Director,  
Asset Management, 1994–1996
positions of trust
Helsingin Osuuskauppa Elanto,  
Deputy Chairman of the Board
owns 0 Sponda shares

Arja Talma
MSc (Econ.), eMBA, born 1962
Kesko Corporation, Senior Vice President, CFO
Member of Sponda Plc’s Board of Directors since 2007
Career history
Kesko Corporation, Senior Vice President, CFO, 2005–
Kesko Corporation, Vice President,  
Corporate Controller, 2004–2005
Oy Radiolinja Ab, Executive Vice President,  
Finance and Administration, 2001–2003
KPMG Wideri Oy Ab, APA 1992–2001,  
partner 2000–2001
positions of trust
Luottokunta, Board Member (from 24 Apr 2008)
VR-Group Ltd, Board member
owns 0 Sponda shares

Erkki Virtanen
M.Soc.Sc. (Econ.), born 1950
Ministry of Employment and the Economy,  
permanent secretary
Member of Sponda Plc’s Board of Directors since 2008
Career history
Ministry of Employment and the Economy,  
Permanent Secretary, 2008–
Ministry of Trade and Industry,  
Permanent Secretary, 1998–2007
Ministry of Finance, State Budget Chief,  
Budget Department, 1995–1998
positions of trust
Sitra, the Finnish Innovation Fund,  
Board member and Deputy Chairman
owns 0 Sponda shares

 Timo KoRvEnpää    TUULa EnTELä    LaURi RaTia    KLaUs Cawén    aRja TaLma    ERKKi viRTanEn



Kari Inkinen
president and CEo
MSc (Eng.), born 1957
Career history
Kapiteeli Plc, President and CEO 1999–2005
YIT Corporation, Director 1985–1998

YIT Corporation Residential Construction,  
Director 1995–1998
YIT Corporation, Regional Director 1992–1995

positions of trust
Kruunuasunnot Oy, Board member
Rake Oy, Board member
owns 41,211 Sponda shares

Erik Hjelt
senior vice president, Legal affairs and Treasury
LLLic, eMBA, born 1961
Career history
Kapiteeli Plc, SVP Finance and Legal Affairs 1999–2005
Arsenal Asset Management Company Ltd,  
Leading Legal Counsel 1994–1999
Savings Bank of Finland–SBF Ltd, Bank Manager 1993
positions of trust
Ovenia Oy, Board member 
owns 6,752 Sponda shares

Executive Board, 1 January 2009
 

Ossi Hynynen
senior vice president, investment properties
MSc (Eng.), born 1955
Career history
Kapiteeli Plc, President and CEO 2005–2006
Kapiteeli Plc, SVP,  
Office and Retail Property 2003–2006
Kapiteeli Plc, SVP, Real Estate Development 1999–2002
ProPaulig Ltd, Director of Marketing 1993–1999
Haka Ltd, Construction Manager 1988–1993
positions of trust
Ovenia Oy, Chairman of the Board
owns 10,756 Sponda shares

Kari Koivu
senior vice president, Real Estate Funds
MSc (Eng.), Msc (Econ.), born 1966
Career history
Kapiteeli Plc, SVP Sales Property 2003–2006
Solid Information Technology,  
Marketing Manager 2000–2003
Hewlett-Packard Europe,  
Business Development Manager 1997–2000
owns 6,975 Sponda shares

Joni Mikkola
senior vice president, property development
MSc (Eng.), born 1965
Career history
NCC Finland Oy, Marketing Director 2001–2002
SRV Viitoset Oy, Project Manager 1999–2001
NCC Finland Oy, Project Manager 1997–1999
owns 11,325 Sponda shares

Sirpa Sara-aho
senior vice president, Russia 
Born 1963
Career history
Sponda Plc, Regional Manager,  
Russia and the Baltic Countries 2006
Nordea Bank Finland Plc, Director 1985–2005
owns 10,282 Sponda shares

Robert Öhman
Chief Financial Officer
MSc (Econ.), born 1959
Career history
Vattenfall AB, Financial Controller,  
Business Group Nordic, 2005–2006
Vattenfall Oy, Finance Director, 1996–2006
Waste Management Finland Oy,  
Finance Director, 1992–1996
Reuters GmbH, Finance and  
Administration Manager, 1990–1992
Reuters Suomi Oy Ab, Finance and  
Administration Manager, 1985–1990
owns 12,457 Sponda shares

siRpa saRa-aho   KaRi KoivU   ossi  hynynEn   KaRi inKinEn   RobERT Öhman   ERiK hjELT   joni miKKoLa
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Shared premises, individual offi  ces

Group M’s media agencies share a com-

mon entrance foyer and, in contrast to 

other companies in the sector, also have 

a large display window. The premises 

have been divided between the fi ve me-

dia agencies, and the appearance of each 

refl ects their special knowhow.

Group M CEO Veijo Hytti says that he 

Five media agencies, fi ve diff erent images, one property. Group M Finland, a media agency group, started 

operations in Finland at the start of 2009. The group’s media agencies focus on diff erent sectors, and premises 

under the same roof were tailored for each of them that match their individual brands.

culture and way of working,” states Hytti.

Media agency Happi, which belongs to 

the group, has been located in  Unioninkatu 

street since 2005. After the decision was 

taken to establish Group M, more premis-

es were leased. Today the group occupies 

premises on three fl oors around an inner 

courtyard.

was attracted to the premises in part be-

cause of the display window. The excellent 

parking facilities close to Unioninkatu street 

were another factor in choosing the place.

“We have many meetings at media agen-

cies, so we wanted to create a good setting 

for meetings. The interior decor and layout 

tell customers much about the company’s 
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case 07
GROUP M FINLAND, 1,330 M2, OFFICE PREMISES, UNIONINKATU 24, HELSINKI
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Report by the Board  
of Directors 2008

Sponda Group’s total revenue increased to eUR 224.3  million 
(31 december 2007: eUR 210.9 million) and net operating 
income after property maintenance costs and direct costs for 
funds rose to eUR 166.8 (152.8) million.  operating profit was 
eUR 126.2 (256.7) million. the  figure includes a change in val-
ue of the property portfolio of eUR -36.0 (92.9) million, which 
in 2008 comprised mainly a change in the yield requirements 
for investment properties. the economic occupancy rate of 
Sponda’s properties was 88.5 (91.2)%. 

Main events during 2008
Sponda continued to grow profitably in accordance with its 
strategy in the first half of 2008. in response to the global fi-
nancial crisis Sponda then adapted its strategy, and took the 
decision to minimize new capital expenditure and to finance 
this by selling properties in finland. towards the end of the 
year the company focused on strengthening its equity ratio, 
and during the year sold property for a total of eUR 122.9 
million. more than 50% of these sales took place in the final 
quarter of the year. Sponda purchased investment properties 
during the year for altogether eUR 210.6 million.

during 2008 Sponda signed new loan agreements for al-
together eUR 350 million. the loans were used to finance 
property development investments and growth in Russia. on 
top of this, in october 2008 the company signed an agree-
ment for a three-year, eUR 150 million syndicated credit fa-
cility, used to refinance long-term loans that were maturing 
and the bonds issued in 2003.

in June 2008 Sponda issued a eUR 130 million equi-
ty bond (hybrid bond) to finnish institutional investors 
and improved its solvency with this. the bond has no ma-
turity date but Sponda is entitled to redeem the bond in 
five years time. the bond is treated in Sponda’s ifRS finan-
cial statements in its entirety as equity. the issue does not 
dilute the holdings of the company’s current shareholders. 
during 2008 Sponda carried out its strategy of growth in Rus-
sia. at the beginning of march Sponda purchased two shop-
ping centres in moscow for a total of USd 109 million. in July 
Sponda purchased the ducat ii office property in the centre of 
moscow for USd 185 million. at the end of the year Sponda’s 
property portfolio in Russia had a value of eUR 258.3 million.

Real estate fund operations expanded at the beginning of 
2008 when Sponda set up a new real estate fund, Sponda Real 

estate fund ii. the fund has a target size of about eUR 200 
million and mainly invests in logistics, warehouse and industri-
al properties in medium-sized towns in finland. Sponda is re-
sponsible for managing the fund and its properties.

during the year Sponda sold properties in finland that did 
not fit in with its strategy. in the summer the company sold a 
hotel property in the centre of Helsinki for eUR 42 million. in 
october Sponda sold an office and retail property  in tapiola, 
espoo for eUR 28.3 million. in december an office proper-
ty in the centre of Helsinki was sold for eUR 9.1 million and a 
land area in Jokiniemi, Vantaa for eUR 15 million. capital gains 
of eUR 9 million were recorded on the sale of the office and 
retail property in espoo and of eUR 12 million on the sale of 
the land in Vantaa.

Result of operations and financial position
Sponda Group’s profit for the year was eUR 26.6 (31 decem-
ber 2007: 136.6) million and the economic occupancy rate was 
88.5% (91.2). the result is formed as follows:

  total revenue increased to eUR 224.3 (210.9)  million.•
  net operating income rose to eUR 166.8 (152.8) •
 million.
  operating profit was eUR 126.2 (256.7) million. the •
change in value of investment properties in 2008 was eUR 
-36.0 (92.9) million, which includes a change in yield re-
quirements of eUR -93.1 million and development gains of 
eUR 43.3 million from property develop ment projects.
  net financial expenses amounted to eUR 87.5 (72.3) •
million.
  profit after taxes was eUR 26.6 (136.6) million.•
  earnings per share were eUR 0.24 (1.27).•

Financial position
the Group’s balance sheet totalled eUR 3,166.8 (2,898.5) mil-
lion. the property portfolio totalled eUR 2,937.0 (2,572.1) 
million. this comprised investment properties totalling eUR 
2,907.5 (2,534.9) million and trading proper ties classified as 
held for sale totalling eUR 29.5 (37.2)  million. capital expen-
diture on real estate funds was eUR 60.6 (35.0) million.

during 2008 Sponda developed its property assets with the 
purchase of new investment properties totalling eUR 210.6 
(115.1) million. eUR 26.6 (20.7) million was invested in property  
maintenance and property quality improvements, and eUR 
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248.4 (118.2) million in property development. the properties 
sold had a balance sheet value of eUR 82.8 (277.0) million. 

Shareholders’ equity at the end of 2008 totalled eUR 
1,003.0 (934.8) million. the eUR 129.0 million in ‘other 
equity reserve’ is the hybrid bond issued in July. liabilities 
amounted to eUR 2163.8 (1,963.7) million, which com-
prised eUR 1,793.4 (1,284.0) million in non-current liabilities 
and eUR 370.4 (679.6) million in current liabilities. interest- 
bearing liabilities totalled eUR 1,828.3 (1,662.7) million.

provisions, eUR 8.7 (15.1) million, were to cover Sampo 
Bank’s payment claim related to interest in earlier years in full.

Key figures showing Sponda Group’s financial performance:

Key fiGUReS
 
economic occupancy rate, %  88.5   91.2   88.8 1)

total revenue, meUR  224.3   210.9   117.4
net operating income, meUR  166.8   152.8   87.1
net operating income/fair value, %  6.8 2)  6.4 2)  6.2 3)

operating profit, meUR  126.2   256.7   103.9
equity ratio, %  31.8   32.3   20.2
Gearing, %  181   175   334
Return on equity, %  2.7   17.9   8.5 4)

earnings per share, eUR  0.24   1.27   0.61
dividend per share, eUR  0.00 5)  0.50   0.40
total dividend, meUR  –   55.5   44.7
net assets per share, eUR  7.86   8.40   7.45
epRa net assets per share, eUR  9.64   10.04   9.57
cash flow from operations per share, eUR  0.78   0.81   0.56

1) Before acquisition of Kapiteeli. 2) excluding property development. 3) Before acquisi-
tion of Kapiteeli and property development. 4) The 2006 key figures for balance sheet 
items have been calculated using weighted quarterly averages. 5) Board proposal.

Financing
Key changes in the Group’s cash flows:

1–
12

/08

1–
12

/07

GRoUp’S caSH flowS, meUR  

net cash flow from operations  140.7  211.5
net cash flow investment activities  -389.8  -19.0
net cash flow from financing activities  238.0  -188.7
change in cash and cash equivalents  -11.1  3.8
cash and cash equivalents, start of period  27.4  23.6
impact of changes in exchange rates  -0.3  
cash and cash equivalents, end of period  16.0  27.4

Full calculations of cash flows are presented in the notes to the financial statements.

the Group’s interest-bearing loans and borrowings at the end 
of the year totalled eUR 1,828.3 (1,662.7) million. Sponda 
Group’s debt portfolio (nominal values) on 31 december 2008 
comprised eUR 800 million in syndicated loans, eUR 259 mil-
lion in bonds, eUR 136 million in issued commercial papers, and 
eUR 636 million in loans from financial institutions. the com-
pany had eUR 115 in unused credit limits. the credit limits are 
a back-up line for the commercial papers. Sponda Group had 
mortgaged loans of eUR 50.3 million or 1.6% of the company’s 
balance sheet. the average maturity of Sponda’s loans was 3.0 
(2.6) years, and the average interest rate 4.6% (4.6). fixed-rate 
and interest-hedged loans accounted for 58% of the loan port-
folio. the average interest-bearing period of the whole debt 
portfolio was 1.7 (2.6) years. the interest cover ratio, which 
describes the company’s solvency, was 2.1 (2.0).

net financial expenses totalled eUR -87.5 (-72.3) million 
during the year. the main factor in the rise in this figure was 
the increase in the amount of loans. capitalization of the in-
terest expenses for property development projects is begin-
ning in 2009 in accordance with ifRS 23.

Sponda’s equity ratio on 31 december 2008 was 32% (32) 
and gearing was 181% (175). the change in the fair value of 
financial derivatives was eUR -40.6 (9.6) million.

Sponda applies hedge accounting, according to which chang-
es in the fair value of interest rate swaps and interest rate op-
tions that meet the criteria for hedge accounting are recog-
nized in equity in the balance sheet. 

Business conditions – Finland
the office, retail and logistics premises market is a late cycle 
sector, so the impact of the global recession was not very vis-
ible in finland’s property market in 2008. Rent levels contin-
ued to develop favourably, in part because of higher inflation. 
occupancy rates also improved encouragingly.

after summer 2008 the transaction market in the prop-
erty investment sector slowed down, mainly because financ-
ing was not available. the institute for Real estate econom-
ics (Kti) estimated that the total volume of property trans-
actions in finland was just under eUR 4 billion in 2008, com-
pared with some eUR 6 billion in 2007. international investors 
accounted for about 46% of the volume of the finnish  prop-
erty market last year.

Business cycle forecasts indicate that 2009 will be a challeng-
ing year for the real estate investment sector. the cost cutting 

1–
12

/08

1–
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measures being carried out during 2009 at customer compa-
nies will reduce demand for premises, which will have a direct 
impact on vacancy rates. if inflation also remains low, rents are 
not expected to rise in 2009. changes in demand for prem-
ises and in rent levels are expected to be more moderate in 
prime locations, such as the central business district and Ruo-
holahti in Helsinki, than elsewhere in the Helsinki metropoli-
tan area and in finland.

Business conditions – Russia
economic growth in Russia slowed down significantly towards 
the end of 2008. according to nordea, the 8% growth ear-
ly in the year slowed down to 6% in the third quarter. the 
slowdown in growth was due to the fall in the price of oil 
and the global financial crisis. the indicators for retail trade 
and industrial production predict that growth also slowed 
down in the final quarter. in addition to these reasons, in-
vestments by businesses declined, and growth is expected 
to slow down to about one percent in 2009 despite the pro-
grammes of state support. Russia’s central Bank has widened 
the rouble’s currency band, which has resulted in a 30% de-
valuation in the value of the rouble against the euro in the 
past six months.

the global financial crisis has altered the Russia property 
market. development projects have been suspended due to 
financing problems in the second half of 2008, and the buying 
and selling of completed properties has also slowed down. 

in the first half of 2008 demand was greater than supply 
in the moscow and St petersburg leasing markets. after the 
summer, demand focused on smaller, high quality premises, 
and leasing market activity is expected to be quieter in 2009 
than in the previous year. Vacancy rates for high quality offic-
es were low in the moscow and St petersburg regions. Rent 
levels for prime office premises rose in Russia last year, but 
it is expected that there will be pressure to bring down the 
rents for office and retail premises in 2009.

Sponda’s operations in 2008
Sponda owns, leases and develops business properties in the 
Helsinki metropolitan area and the largest cities in  finland, 
and in Russia. Sponda’s operations were organized in 2008 
in five business units: office and Retail properties, logistics 
properties, property development, Real estate funds, and 
Russia and the Baltic countries.

net operating income from Sponda’s property assets 
 totalled eUR 166.8 million at the end of the year (31 de-
cember 2007: 152.8 million). office and Retail properties 
accounted for 69% of this, logistics properties for 17%, Real 
estate funds for 7%, and Russia and the Baltic countries for 
7%. like- for-like rental growth during the past two years 
for the proper ty portfolio that Sponda has owned for two 
years was 6.7% for office and retail property and -0.6% for 
 logistics property. a logistics property in Vantaa was vacat-
ed in the summer and this contributed to the fall in rental in-
come. Rental growth is calculated in accordance with epRa 
recom mendations.

Property portfolio
on 31 december 2008 Sponda had a total of 209 proper-
ties, with an aggregate leasable area of about 1.5 million m².  
of this, some 62% is office and retail premises and 38% 
 logistics premises. 

at the end of 2008 Sponda’s property portfolio was as-
sessed by catella property Group. their official statement, 
including the principles used for calculating the values, can 
be seen on the company’s internet site. 

in 2008 the change in the fair value of Sponda’s investment 
properties was eUR -43.7 (31 december 2007: 92.9) mil-
lion. at the end of the period the entire property portfolio 
had a fair value of eUR 2,907.5 (2,534.9) million.

1–
12

/08

ValUation GainS/loSSeS on aSSeSSinG Sponda’S 
inVeStment pRopeRtieS at faiR ValUe, meUR

changes in yield requirements (finland)    -88.8
changes in yield requirements (Russia)    -4.3
development gains on property development projects   43.3
modernization investments    -26.6
change in market rents and maintenance costs (finland)   34.4
change in market rents and maintenance costs (Russia)   -1.7

Investment properties, total    -43.7
Real estate funds    7.7

Group, total   -36.0
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the changes in Sponda’s investment property assets 
since the beginning of 2008 by business unit were as follows:
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Sponda’S inVeStment pRopeRtieS, meUR

operating income    211.1  155.0  37.9  2.0  16.2
maintenance costs    -55.6  -39.9  -9.4  -2.2  -4.1
net operating income    155.5  115.1  28.5  -0.1  12.0
 
fair value of investment properties at 1 Jan 2008    2,534.9  1,883.9  327.6  246.2  77.2
acquisitions in 2008    210.6  8.3  18.6  0.0  183.7
investments    275.0  61.1  5.2  205.2  3.4
other transfers    13.5  188.6  134.9  -310.0  0.0
Sales in 2008    -82.8  -82.2  0.0  -0.6  0.0
Valuation gains/losses    -43.7  -57.4  -23.6  43.4  -6.0

Fair value of investment properties at 31 December 2008  2,907.5 2,002.2 462.8 184.2 258.3

change in fair value,%    -1.7  -3.0  -7.2  17.6  0.0
annual net operating income / fair value at 31 december % 2008 *)  6.8  6.3  8.5   10.1
yield requirement used in calculating fair value -%     5.2 – 10.0  6.5 – 8.7   9.5 – 10.25
weighted average yield requirement -% for entire portfolio    6.7     
*) excluding property development 

Investments and divestments
Sponda acquired investment properties for altogether eUR 
210.6 million in 2008 and sold properties for eUR 122.9 
million. 

capital expenditure on property maintenance amounted 
to eUR 26.6 million during the year and eUR 248.4 million 
was invested in property development. this was spent on 
the property development projects completed at the end 
of 2008, ie. the logistics complex in Vuosaari Harbour, of-
fice buildings in Ruoholahti and Sörnäinen in Helsinki, a re-
tail property in itäkeskus, Helsinki, and the renovation of the 
city-center complex in the centre of Helsinki.

Office and Retail Properties
the economic occupancy rate for the office and Retail prop-
erties unit improved by more than one percentage point 
from the 2007 figure to 92.3% (31 december 2007: 91.0%). 
the occupancy rate rose significantly especially in the Helsinki 
metropolitan area outside the business centre. contributing 
factors included the property development projects com-
pleted in Ruoholahti, itäkeskus and Sörnäinen  in Helsinki. 

the property portfolio had a fair value at the end of the year 
of eUR 2,002.2 (1,883.9) million, and valuation losses/gains 

from assessing at fair value amounted to eUR -57.4 (72.7) 
million.  office and retail property had a total  leasable area 
of about 890,000 m². the unit’s total revenue, net  operating 
income and operating profit were as follows:

1–
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12

/07
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/06

office and Retail pRopeRtieS, meUR

total revenue  155.0  154.4  84.7
net operating income  115.1  113.8  63.1
operating profit  65.0  197.4  78.0

during 2008 Sponda purchased office and retail property for 
eUR 8.3 million and sold property for eUR 104.8 million. cap-
ital expenditure on property maintenance amounted to eUR 
22.1 million in 2008.

Logistics Properties
the economic occupancy rate for the logistics properties  unit 
was 77.4% (31 december 2007: 91.9%). the  decline was due 
to the completion of the properties in  Vuosaari Harbour at 
the end of november 2008, when the  properties were trans-
ferred from property development to the property portfo-
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lio of the logistics properties unit. the  occupancy rate for the 
harbour properties is approximately  40%.

the properties had a fair value of eUR 462.8 (327.6) mil-
lion at the end of 2008, and valuation losses/gains amount-
ed to eUR -23.6 (23.5) million. the aggregate leasable  area 
of the property portfolio was 570,000 m². the net sales, 
net operating income and operating profit of the logistics 
proper ty unit were as follows:

1–
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loGiSticS pRopeRtieS, meUR

total revenue  37.9  32.0  28.6
net operating income  28.5  24.2  22.2
operating profit  2.8  47.0  24.9

in 2008 Sponda purchased logistics premises for eUR 18.6 
million and capital expenditure on property maintenance to-
talled eUR 4.1 million.

Property development
the balance sheet value of Sponda’s property development 
portfolio at the end of 2008 was eUR 184.2 million. Unde-
veloped land sites accounted for eUR 81.9 million of this, 
and the remainder, eUR 102.3 million, was tied up in prop-
erty development projects in progress. 

altogether eUR 204.6 million was spent on developing 
properties and new purchases during 2008. Sponda assess-
es development projects at fair value after the projects are 
completed, and the company aims to obtain development 
gains of 15% on the investment costs of projects. all of Spon-
da’s property development projects, except for the city-
center complex, were completed by the end of 2008. the 
company achieved the target mentioned above, recognizing 
total gains of eUR 43.3 million on the properties in the in-
come statement. the increase in fair value is based on the 
assessments made by catella property Group at the end 
of the year.

on 22 december 2008 Sponda sold two plots of land 
designated for housing production in Jokiniemi, Vantaa to 
VVo-yhtymä oyj for eUR 15 million. the plots, located on 
tikkurilantie road, have residential building rights of 40,000 
square metres. Sponda recorded a capital gain of some  
eUR 12 million on the sale.

the development projects in progress throughout the year 
in Helsinki in Ruoholahti, Sörnäinen, itäkeskus and  Vuosaari 
Harbour were completed on schedule and on budget by the 
end of 2008. all the properties, apart from the buildings in 
Vuosaari Harbour, were fully leased. 

the current phase of the city-center project, construction 
of the underground service facilities for the city centre service 
tunnel, progressed on schedule. the next phase involves con-
struction of the office building, the retail premises on the third 
floor, and the light shaft into the shopping centre. Sponda and 
the tenant have taken the joint decision to postpone this work 
so that it will start at the earliest towards the end of 2009. for 
this reason, it is now estimated that the renovation of the city-
center complex will be completed in 2012 and the total in-
vestment will be some eUR 110 million. Sponda is continuing 
with the underground work in 2009.

Sponda announced on 20 december 2007 that it had pur-
chased the elovainio shopping centre under construction in 
ylöjärvi for eUR 62 million. the property has financing for 
the construction period, which Sponda has re-organized. 
Sponda will pay for the property after the building is com-
pleted, in april 2009, when the final price for the property 
will be determined. the shopping centre has retail premis-
es with a leasable area of 24,500 square metres and parking 
for 850 vehicles. the property will be purchased fully leased 
and the main tenant will be K-citymarket.

Sponda is developing the Ratina shopping centre in tam-
pere and carrying out development projects in adjacent ar-
eas. a 55,000 m² shopping centre is planned for the area, 
for which the total investment cost is estimated at eUR 200 
million. planning of the project is underway, and the final de-
cision about the investment has not been made. 

Real Estate Funds
Sponda is a minority holder in three real estate funds, first 
top luxco, Sponda Real estate fund i Ky and Sponda Real 
estate fund ii Ky. Sponda is responsible for managing the 
funds and their properties, and receives management fees. 
the property portfolios of all the funds were valued by ex-
ternal evaluators at the end of the year. the change in fair 
value for the whole year was eUR 7.7 million.

the unit’s total revenue, net operating income and oper-
ating profit were as follows:
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Real eState fUndS, meUR

total revenue  13.2  14.5  2.7
net operating income  11.3  10.0  1.3
operating profit  14.3  6.8  1.1

first top luxco (Sponda’s holding 20%) invests in office and 
retail properties outside finland’s largest cities. at the end 
of 2008 the fund’s property investments had a fair value of 
eUR 107 million.

Sponda Real estate fund i Ky (Sponda’s holding 46%) in-
vests in logistics sites outside the Helsinki metropolitan area. 
at the end of december 2008 the properties it owned had 
a fair value of eUR 199 million.

Sponda Real estate fund ii Ky (Sponda’s holding 44%) main-
ly invests in logistics properties in medium sized towns in fin-
land. the fund has a target size for its real estate investment of 
about eUR 200 million and the fair value of its property port-
folio at the end of 2008 was eUR 82 million. after the end 
of the year, three logistics properties were purchased for the 
fund, with a value of some eUR 16 million, from Sponda plc.

in addition to those mentioned above, Sponda is also re-
sponsible for managing the properties in the property port-
folio, with a value of some eUR 300 million, sold in march 
2007 to whitehall Street Real estate limited and niam nor-
dic  investment fund iii.

Russia and the Baltic Countries
at the end of 2008, the economic occupancy rate for the 
Russia and the Baltic countries unit was 86.3% (31 decem-
ber 2007: 100%). the decline in the occupancy rate was be-
cause Sponda obtained final ownership rights to the Zao 
ancor office property in moscow at the end of 2008, and 
was only able to begin active leasing of the premises then. 
the first lease agreements for the property have already 
been signed.

the property portfolio had a fair value at the end of the 
year of eUR 258.3 million, and the change in fair value was 
eUR -6.0 million. the main currency used in property trans-
actions in Russia is the US dollar, so the devaluation of the 
rouble has not had a direct impact on property fair values. 
the change in value was mainly due to the rise in yield re-
quirements. Because of the major uncertainties in the valu-
ation methods, the investment properties were valued with 
an internal valuation by Sponda except for Zao ancor and 

ducat ii, which the company has only owned for a short 
time and which are valued at the acquisition price. these 
two properties form about half of the value of the Rus-
sian portfolio.

capital expenditure in 2008 on property development 
and new purchases totalled eUR 187.1 million. the invest-
ments in Russia are financed in euros through the parent 
company’s balance sheet.

the unit’s total revenue, net operating income and oper-
ating profit were as follows:
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RUSSia and tHe Baltic coUntRieS, meUR

total revenue   16.2  1.9  0.0
net operating income   12.0  1.5  0.0
operating profit   1.3  -0.4  0.0

Sponda receives about half of its rental income in Russia in US 
dollars. about half is in roubles, and a large part of this is tied to 
the exchange rate for the dollar or euro. the company’s rou-
ble risk is reduced because a major part of the unit’s expens-
es are denominated in roubles. it is Sponda’s policy to hedge 6 
months cash flow in Russia.

the name of the Russia and the Baltic countries unit was 
changed to the Russia unit as from 1 January 2009. Sponda in-
vestigated the property markets in the Baltic countries and the 
company’s Board of directors decided that the Baltic markets 
will not be a strategic investment area for Sponda.

Parent company
the Group’s parent company Sponda plc had total reve-
nue, including funds activities, of eUR 130.0 (117.5) mil-
lion in 2008 and operating profit of eUR 70.0 (49.6) mil-
lion. financial expenses totalled eUR 69.4 (50.3) million and 
the company’s result for the period was a profit of eUR 0.2 
(loss of -0.7) million.

Corporate structure
Sponda reduced its holding in ovenia oy, a provider of prop-
erty management services, from 70% to 45%, selling its hold-
ings at the end of 2007 and on 24 January 2008. 

Sponda Group comprises the parent company, the sub-
sidiary Sponda Kiinteistöt oy (formerly Kapiteeli oy), and 
the Group’s mutually owned property companies, which are 
either wholly or majority owned by Sponda plc or Sponda 
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 Kiinteistöt oy. Sponda Group also includes Sponda Russia 
ltd and Sponda asset management oy.

Risk management
Risk management is based on the Group’s capacity and will-
ingness to bear risk, identification of the key risks and the 
approved risk management policy. Risk management is part 
of everyday operations and of the management of business 
operations.

Group level reports on risks are given to the Board of di-
rectors annually in connection with the risk survey. Risk re-
porting at executive board and business operations levels is 
part of the business management system. 

more details about the principles for risk management and 
how it is organized are given in the report, complying with 
Sponda’s corporate Governance recommendation, on the 
company’s internet site and in the annual report. 

Risks relating to Sponda’s business operations
1. the fair value of properties may change
the value of properties usually follows economic trends. 
many factors affect the value of properties, such as inter-
est rates, inflation, economic growth, business environment, 
availability of credit, property taxation, demographic factors 
and the level of construction activity. in addition, changes in 
supply and demand may have a significant impact on the val-
ue of properties, regardless of general trends in the econom-
ic factors affecting regional property markets. 

in the current state of the market, the value of properties 
is expected to fall in 2009. as a result, Sponda’s operational 
profit may vary, and economic factors and local market con-
ditions may both have a significant impact on this.

2. Tenants’ abilitity to pay rent may weaken
many of Sponda’s properties are leased in part or entirely to 
large business customers. at the end of 2008 Sponda had 
3,046 leasing agreements and 1,794 customers. the Group’s 
10 largest tenants account for 31.3% of the company’s rental 
income, and the largest customer sectors are retail, banking 
and the public sector. if Sponda loses one or more tenants, 
or they become insolvent, this may result in a considerable 
loss of income. if a property is vacant for a long period, this 
may harm the value of properties, Sponda’s financial posi-
tion and the profit of its operations.

3. Risks relating to the availability  
of funds and to interest costs
the current state of the financial market has made it consid-
erably more difficult to obtain financing, and credit terms have 
tightened. this may affect Sponda’s financial position and busi-
ness operations in 2009. changes in margins and interest lev-
els may have a major impact on property operations and the 
valuation of properties. more details about financial risks and 
their management are presented in the financial statements 
section. 

4. developments in the russian property market  
in an unstable economic situation
as part of its strategy, Sponda has expanded its operations 
to moscow and St petersburg. Some 9% of the company’s  
 property assets were located in Russia at the end of 2008. the 
differences between Russian and finnish legis lation and the 
way the authorities operate in the two countries may cause 
extra risks for Sponda. the current unstable economic situ-
ation may also weaken the solvency of Sponda’s tenants and 
reduce their space requirements. if this occurs, it could have 
a harmful impact on the company’s financial position and the 
profit of its operations. the expanding business operations 
in Russia increase Sponda’s currency risk. Sponda hedges its 
foreign currency cash flow for the next six months.

Risks and uncertainty factors in the near future 
Sponda believes that the key risks and uncertainty factors 
in the current financial period, due to the recession and fi-
nancial crisis, relate to refinancing, changes in the fair value 
of properties, developments in economic occupancy rates, 
falling market rents, and a decline in rental income resulting 
from the insolvency of tenants.

property values follow the business cycle, and in the cur-
rent state of the market it is possible that the value of Spon-
da’s properties will continue to fall in 2009. this may weak-
en the company’s equity ratio and its profit.

in 2009 the uncertainty in the financial markets may cause 
the price of capital to rise and weaken its availability. in 2009 
Sponda’s refinancing risk arises from the credit limits that 
form a back-up line for the commercial papers and mature 
in the summer. if the risk is realized, this may have a harmful 
impact on Sponda’s financial results and ability to pay a div-
idend.  Sponda reduces the refinancing risk by using credit  
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agreements of varying durations, employing a number of 
funding sources and maintaining the company’s reputation 
as a trustworthy debtor. the interest rate risk from floating 
rate financing is reduced with interest rate derivatives.

the general economic situation in finland and Russia may 
cause the solvency of Sponda’s customers to weaken in 2009, 
which in turn may reduce Sponda’s rental income and in-
crease the vacancy rates in the properties owned by the 
company.

Environmental responsibilities
the real estate sector plays a major role in fighting climate 
change and promoting the wellbeing of the environment. 
Sponda takes environmental aspects into account in the de-
sign and use of properties. 

the real estate sector generates about one third of fin-
land’s greenhouse emissions. construction, repairs, and the 
maintenance and use of properties all have an impact on 
the environment. Sponda has a number of national heritage 
properties in its portfolio that the company maintains with 
special regard for their history. in its property development 
projects, Sponda only uses materials that have the minimum 
m1 emission classification as specified by finland’s Building 
information institute. the aim in repair projects is to reuse 
old building parts and demolition material.

major decisions are taken in building projects at the start of 
the feasibility study and planning stage that will affect the ener-
gy efficiency of the property, its environmental impact and its 
effectiveness as a healthy work environment, throughout the 
life span of the building. the choices made during construc-
tion or when carrying out repairs – everything from preparing 
the ground and the choice of materials to air conditioning and 
furnishings – have an impact on the length of the property’s 
life and on the possibility of making energy-efficient choices.

Sponda has put together planning guidelines for designing 
office buildings, which aim to create flexible, adaptable and 
energy efficient buildings that form good physical surround-
ings for the users’ work environment. the guidelines portray 
the desired quality with the aid of technical arguments and 
system descriptions, and their values exceed in many areas the 
general level required in building codes and regulations.

the guidelines have been adapted for retail properties, for 
which specific applications for individual properties have been 
developed in cooperation with the future users of the building. 

examples of these are utilizing the condensation heat from re-
frigeration equipment to preheat the air conditioning in park-
ing facilities and the use of renewable energy sources.

Viewed over a 50 year period, some 80% of a proper-
ty’s environmental impact occurs during a property’s opera-
tion, management and maintenance. the single largest factor 
is electricity consumption, which causes some 40% of the en-
vironmental impact during the life cycle of a building. Sponda’s 
maintenance services are provided by ovenia oy, which has its 
own environmental policy and an environmental training pro-
gramme for its personnel. ovenia also provides guidance on 
environmental issues to Sponda’s customers, if needed.

Sponda works with clients to develop and implement solu-
tions that enable clients to meet their own environmental re-
sponsibility. energy recovery and district cooling systems are 
some examples of these. Sponda improves the energy effi-
ciency of buildings by upgrading their technical systems and 
equipment. installing heat recovery equipment, for example, 
can give major energy savings.

Sponda keeps its clients informed, for example about ways 
to reduce energy consumption. Sponda also offers its custom-
ers a programme for monitoring energy and water consump-
tion. in large locations with a single user, environmental respon-
sibility can be enhanced by separating absolute net rent from 
the maintenance charges. the share of energy and water con-
sumption is then clearly shown in the customer’s rent.

during 2009 Sponda is introducing the ”Sponda 10+” 
scheme. ten properties have been chosen for the pilot proj-
ect in the scheme, in which Sponda and the users of the prop-
erty will aim to identify areas where energy can be saved. the 
costs saved in this way will be re-invested in the property, so 
the clients will also benefit financially from the scheme. Spon-
da’s head office is one of the properties in the pilot scheme.

one goal for 2009 is to further develop the main guide-
lines for new projects. this will utilize the feedback received 
about completed projects and will examine how implement-
ing the guidelines has affected the environmental impact of 
buildings during their use.

Greater attention will be paid in Russia to environmental 
issues. water, electricity and gas consumption are monitored 
at Sponda’s properties in Russia. Sponda works with the au-
thorities in environmental issues.

Sponda’s own direct environmental impacts relate to energy  
and water consumption and waste.
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Corporate governance
Sponda plc is a public limited company registered in fin-
land and listed on the naSdaQ omX Helsinki oy. in its 
 decision- making and administration Sponda applies the  finnish 
companies act and other legal provisions governing public 
limited companies, and the company’s articles of association. 
Sponda plc also complies with the insider Guidelines of naS-
daQ omX Helsinki oy and the corporate Governance rec-
ommendations issued for listed companies, with the exception 
that the nomination of the members of the Board of direc-
tors and proposals concerning their remuneration are made 
by the nomination committee of the shareholders, rather 
than a nomination and compensation committee appointed 
by the Board of directors. as required by the finnish com-
panies’ act and Sponda’s articles of association, control of 
the company and its administration are divided between the 
shareholders represented at general meetings, the Board of 
directors and the president. the president is assisted by an 
executive Board.

Sponda’s Board of directors has six members: Klaus cawén, 
tuula entelä, timo Korvenpää, lauri Ratia, arja talma and 
erkki Virtanen. the chairman of the Board is lauri Ratia and 
the deputy chairman is timo Korvenpää. all the Board mem-
bers come from outside the company and are independent 
of the company. all the Board members except for erkki 
 Virtanen are also independent of its major shareholders.

Sponda’s Board of directors established two permanent 
committees: the audit committee and the Structure and 
Remuneration committee. the members of the  audit com-
mittee are: arja talma (chairman) and timo Korvenpää and 
erkki Virtanen (ordinary members). the members of the 
Structure and Remuneration committee are: lauri  Ratia 
(chairman) and tuula entelä and Klaus cawén ( ordinary 
members).

Annual general meeting and dividend
the Board of directors of Sponda plc proposes that the an-
nual General meeting be held on 25 march 2009 and pro-
poses to the annual General meeting that no dividend be 
paid for the 2008 financial year.

the reasons for the proposal are the uncertain state of 
the financial market and developments in Sponda’s equity 
ratio. the uncertainty in the financial market means that ar-
ranging new loans and refinancing may in future become 

more difficult. the fair values of properties are expected to 
continue to fall in 2009, which may reduce Sponda’s equity 
ratio. to enable the company to secure its financial position 
in an uncertain market, the Board proposes that no divi-
dend be paid.

Auditors
Sponda plc’s auditors are apa Raija-leena Hankonen and 
 authorized public accountants KpmG oy ab, with apa Kai Salli 
as principal auditor and apa Riitta pyykkö as deputy  auditor.

Nomination committee of the shareholders
the nomination committee of the Shareholders of Sponda  
plc has prepared a proposal for candidate members of the 
Board of directors and their compensation. the mem-
bers represented the three principal shareholders, who on  
1  november 2008 were:

1.  the finnish State, 34.3% of the shares and votes, 
 represented by pekka timonen,

2.   Julius tallberg-Kiinteistöt oy, 3.9% of the shares and 
votes, represented by Susanna Renlund, and

3.  ilmarinen mutual pension insurance company, 
 0.7% of the shares and votes, represented by  
timo  Ritakallio.

the nomination committee will propose to the annual  
General meeting on 25 march 2009 that the number  of 
members of the Board of directors be c onfirmed as  seven 
and that of the existing members Klaus cavén,  tuula en-
telä, timo Korvenpää, lauri Ratia,  arja  talma and erkki Vir-
tanen be re-elected and that martin  tallberg be elected as 
a new member.

the annual General meeting confirms the fees paid to 
the Board members for one year at a time. the nomina-
tion committee of Shareholders has decided to propose 
that the fees paid to the Board members be  unchanged 
and confirmed as follows (figures in brackets are fees paid 
in 2008):

  to the chairman a monthly fee of eUR 5,000 (5,000)•
  to the deputy chairman a monthly fee of eUR 3,000 •
(3,000)
  to the ordinary members a monthly fee of eUR 2,600 •
(2,600)
  a separate fee of eUR 600 (600) to each member for •
 attendance at Board meetings.
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Management and employees
Sponda plc’s president and chief executive officer is  Kari 
inkinen.  the executive Board comprises the president and 
ceo, the cfo, the SVp legal affairs and treasury, and the 
heads of the business units, in total seven persons.

the key figures for Sponda Group’s personnel are as 
 follows:
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Key fiGUReS foR Sponda GRoUp’S peRSonnel

average number of employees in year  137  217  63
number of employees at end of year  141  216  225
Salaries and other remuneration in year, m€  12.4  12.2  7.0

Sponda has personnel in finland and Russia.
Sponda’s employees belong to an incentive bonus scheme, 

under which bonuses are indexed to the company’s targets. 
the company operates a long-term share-based incentive 
scheme for its senior executives that was launched on 1 Jan-
uary 2006. those in the scheme were the members of the 
company’s executive Board in the years 2006 – 2008. Bonus-
es under this scheme are based on cash flow from opera-
tions per share and on return on equity, and Sponda shares 
are bought with these bonuses. these shares carry a restric-
tion forbidding their disposal within two years of their issue. 
the bonus is paid annually.

Sponda’s Board of directors decided to continue the long-
term share-based incentive scheme for its senior executives 
in 2009 – 2011. the terms of the scheme are unchanged.

Sponda’s aim is to ensure equal rights between its male and 
female staff, between the different business units, between 
employees of different ages and with different tasks, and al-
so between full-time and part-time staff. Sponda monitors 
salaries and wages in different professional groups on an an-
nual basis. in 2008 male and female staff received the same 
rate of pay for doing the same job.

The Sponda share
the weighted average price of the Sponda share in 2008 
 period was eUR 5.41. the highest quotation on naSdaQ 
omX Helsinki oy was eUR 8.75, and the lowest eUR 2.32. 
turnover during the year totalled 108.9 million shares or 
eUR 580 million. the closing price of the share on 31 de-
cember 2008 was eUR 3.10, and the market capitalization 

of the company’s share capital was eUR 344 million.
the annual General meeting on 19 march 2008 author-

ized the Board of directors to purchase the company’s 
own shares. the authorization was not exercised during 
the  review  period.
Sponda issued the following flagging announcements in 
2008:

  10 november 2008: Julius tallberg-Kiinteistöt oyj an-•
nounced that its holding of shares represented 5.143% 
of the total number of shares and votes in Sponda plc. 
  12 december 2008: the finnish State and Solidium oy •
announced an arrangement that resulted in the holding 
of the finnish State falling below and the holding of Soli-
dium oy exceeding the thresholds set out in Section 9 of 
chapter 2 of the finnish Securities markets act. on 11 
december 2008 the finnish State transferred the state-
owned shares of Sponda plc to fully state-owned Solidi-
um oy as a capital contribution as set out in the finnish 
company act. following the transfer, the finnish State no 
long held any Sponda plc shares. the shares transferred 
to Solidium oy, 38,065.498 shares, represent 34.28% of 
the total shares and votes in Sponda plc.
  12 december 2008: Julius tallberg-Kiinteistöt oyj •
 announced that its holding of shares represented 10.02% 
of the total number of shares and votes in Sponda plc. 

Sponda’s ownership structure at the end of the financial year 
on 31 december 2008 was as follows:

numBe
r  

of s
hares

hold
In

G,

%

Sponda’S owneRSHip StRUctURe 
on 31 decemBeR 2008 

public entities  2,189,090  2.0
nominee registered  41,914,586  37.8
Households  11,659,311  10.5
non-profit organizations, total  1,516,405  1.4
private corporations, total  52,430,088  47.2
financial and insurance institutions, total  1,128,022  1.0
foreign owners, total  192,683  0.2

Total number of shares 111,030,185 100.0

Tax authority decision
Sponda stated in its interim report on 1 november 2007 
that the Uusimaa corporate tax office had decided to  deviate 
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from the company’s 2006 tax returns with respect to the 
 deductible losses allowable against the company’s profit.  the 
tax assessment adjustment board amended the Uusimaa 
corporate tax office’s decision regarding the deductibility of 
Sponda Kiinteistöt oy’s (formerly Kapiteeli oyj) confirmed 
losses for previous years in favour of Sponda in  december 
2007. the company issued a statement about this on 19 
december 2007.

the state official representing the interests of tax recipients 
has appealed the decision of the adjustment board. 

Events after the close of the financial year
Sponda’s organization and the composition of its executive 
Board changed as from 1 January 2009. the logistics property 
unit was merged with the office and Retail property unit, and 
the new unit was given the new name of investment proper-
ties. Senior Vice president ossi Hynynen, who was in charge of 
office and Retail properties, heads up the new unit. the name 
of the Russia and the Baltic countries unit was changed to the 
Russia unit. at the same time Sponda streamlined its opera-
tions and the company’s number of personnel was reduced by 
8 persons. this caused a one-time expense of eUR 0.3 million 
in 2008, but annual savings are estimated at eUR 0.6 million.

Sponda announced on 19 december 2008 that it had 
signed an agreement to sell three logistics properties for al-
together eUR 16.3 million to Sponda Real estate fund ii. the 
transaction was closed on 9 January 2009. the properties 
sold are located in Kuusankoski, mikkeli and oulu. 

in a ruling issued on 19 January 2009, the Helsinki court 
of appeal has ordered Sponda plc to pay interest, penal in-
terest and court costs totalling eUR 7.6 million to Sampo 
Bank plc based on a credit agreement. the decision is final 
unless appeal has been made by 20 march 2009.

the amount of Sampo Bank’s suit for payment, eUR 7.6 
million, was recognized as an expense under provisions in 
the 2006 financial statements, so the ruling has no impact 
on Sponda’s result. eUR 0.6 million was recognized as an in-
terest expense under provisions in 2007 and eUR 0.1 mil-
lion in 2008, so the total provision is eUR 8.3 million on 31 
december 2008.

Outlook for 2009
Sponda’s long-term strategic goal remains growth and profit-
ability. following the major changes in the overall state of the 

market, Sponda adjusted its operations by selling properties 
and minimizing new investments. the selling of  properties 
will continue in 2009.

Sponda’s properties still have substantial development 
potential due to the large development resources and the 
broader supply of undeveloped sites especially in the Helsin-
ki metropolitan area but also elsewhere in finland. Sponda 
has no binding property development investments in 2009, 
but for example planning of the shopping centres in tampere 
and Vaasa is continuing.

the positive developments in the real estate funds oper-
ations that began in 2007 are expected to continue in 2009. 
Sponda Real estate fund ii is looking to invest in logistics prop-
erties in medium-sized cities in finland during 2009. 

in Russia Sponda has almost achieved its strategic target of 
investments of eUR 300 – 400 million by the end of 2009. 
the size of the Russian property portfolio is just under eUR 
260 million. in 2009 Sponda is not planning any further  major 
investments in Russia.

Prospects
even though both rental levels and occupancy rates are ex-
pected to fall in the property market in 2009, Sponda fore-
casts that the company’s net operating income will be high-
er than in 2008. the reasons for this are that during 2008 
rent levels rose and fully leased office and retail properties 
were completed and added to Sponda’s investment proper-
ty portfolio.

the financial and property markets in 2009 are exposed to 
major uncertainties affecting Sponda’s result for the year, and 
for this reason Sponda’s prospects differ from those for 2008. 
in the past the company has given a forecast for net operat-
ing income, economic occupancy rate, cash flow from oper-
ations per share and earnings per share. due to the state of 
the market, the company has decided that at the present it 
can give only the prospects for developments in the compa-
ny’s net operating income.
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Shares  
and Shareholders

Sponda plc’s share capital on 31 december 2008 was eUR 
111,030,185 and the number of shares was 111,030,185. 
the nominal value of a share was one euro. the Sponda 
share is quoted on naSdaQ omX Helsinki oy under the 
trading code SdaiV. the shares are managed under the 
book-entry securities system. Sponda has one share series. 
each share carries one vote at general meetings. the com-
pany did not hold any Sponda shares.

Dividend policy
Sponda plc distributes a dividend corresponding to at least 80% 
of earnings per share or cash flow per share while taking into 
consideration the company’s business development needs.

Shareholders
on 31 december 2008 there were 7,904 shareholders. 
nominee-registered shareholders accounted for 37.8% of 
the shares and votes. foreign and nominee-registered share-
holders held together 38.0% of the shares and votes. the com-
pany issued the following flagging notices in 2008:
10 november 2008: Julius tallberg-Kiinteistöt oyj announced •

that its holding of shares represented 5.143% of the total num-
ber of shares and votes in Sponda plc. 
12 december 2008: the finnish State and Solidium oy an-•

nounced an arrangement that resulted in the holding of the 
finnish State falling below and the holding of Solidium oy ex-
ceeding the thresholds set out in Section 9 of chapter 2 of 
the finnish Securities markets act. on 11 december 2008 
the finnish State transferred the state-owned shares of Spon-
da plc to fully state-owned Solidium oy as a capital contri-
bution as set out in the finnish company act. following the 

transfer, the finnish State no long held any Sponda plc shares.  
the shares transferred to Solidium oy, 38,065,498 shares, rep-
resent 34.28% of the total shares and votes in Sponda plc.
 12 december 2008: Julius tallberg-Kiinteistöt oyj  announced •

that its holding of shares represented 10.02% of the total num-
ber of shares and votes in Sponda plc. 

Trading and performance
the weighted average price of the Sponda share in 2008 
period was eUR 5.41. the highest quotation on naSdaQ 
omX Helsinki oy was eUR 8.75, and the lowest eUR 2.32. 
turnover during the year totalled 108.9 million shares or 
eUR 580 million. the closing price of the share on 31 de-
cember 2008 was eUR 3.10, and the market capitalization 
of the company’s share capital was eUR 344 million.

Current authorizations
the annual General meeting on 19 march 2008 authorized the 
Board of directors to purchase the company’s own shares. the 
authorization was not exercised during the review period.

Sponda’S owneRSHip StRUctURe  
on 31 decemBeR 2008,  ReGiSteRed SHaReHoldeRS

public entities  2,189,090  2.0
nominee registered  41,914,586  37.8
Households  11,659,311  10.5
non-profit organizations, total  1,516,405  1.4
private corporations, total  52,430,088  47.2
financial and insurance institutions, total  1,128,022  1.0
foreign owners, total  192,683  0.2

Total number of shares  111,030,185  100.0

18,0
16,0
14,0
12,0
10,0
8,0
6,0
4,0
2,0

Sponda
OMX Helsinki CAP indeksi
EPRA Europe indeksi

Sponda
OMX Helsinki CAP index
EPRA Europe index

SPONDAN OSAKEKURSSI 
VERRATTUNA INDEKSEIHIN

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

18.0
16.0
14.0
12.0
10.0
8.0
6.0
4.0
2.0

SPONDA SHARE PRICE 
COMPARED TO INDICES

* Hallituksen esitys

1,0

0,8

€

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

* 
20

08

0,6

0,4

0,2

0

OSINKO/OSAKE

* Board's proposal

DIVIDEND/SHARE

1.0

0.8

Eur

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

* 
20

08

0.6

0.4

0.2

0

SHARE PRICES AND TURNOVER

1,200

Meur

1,000
800
600

200
400

0

1 200

M€
20

04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

12
10
8
6

2
4

0

€

1 000
800
600

200
400

0

SPONDAN OSAKKEEN
KURSSIKEHITYS JA VAIHTO

Vaihto
Spondan osakekurssi  
(painotettu keskiarvo)

Turnover Eur

Share price (weighted average price)

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

12
10
8
6

2
4

0

€

18,0
16,0
14,0
12,0
10,0
8,0
6,0
4,0
2,0

Sponda
OMX Helsinki CAP indeksi
EPRA Europe indeksi

Sponda
OMX Helsinki CAP index
EPRA Europe index

SPONDAN OSAKEKURSSI 
VERRATTUNA INDEKSEIHIN

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

18.0
16.0
14.0
12.0
10.0
8.0
6.0
4.0
2.0

SPONDA SHARE PRICE 
COMPARED TO INDICES

* Hallituksen esitys

1,0

0,8

€

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

* 
20

08

0,6

0,4

0,2

0

OSINKO/OSAKE

* Board's proposal

DIVIDEND/SHARE

1.0

0.8

Eur

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

* 
20

08

0.6

0.4

0.2

0

SHARE PRICES AND TURNOVER

1,200

Meur

1,000
800
600

200
400

0

1 200

M€

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

12
10
8
6

2
4

0

€

1 000
800
600

200
400

0

SPONDAN OSAKKEEN
KURSSIKEHITYS JA VAIHTO

Vaihto
Spondan osakekurssi  
(painotettu keskiarvo)

Turnover Eur

Share price (weighted average price)

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

12
10
8
6

2
4

0

€

18,0
16,0
14,0
12,0
10,0
8,0
6,0
4,0
2,0

Sponda
OMX Helsinki CAP indeksi
EPRA Europe indeksi

Sponda
OMX Helsinki CAP index
EPRA Europe index

SPONDAN OSAKEKURSSI 
VERRATTUNA INDEKSEIHIN

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

18.0
16.0
14.0
12.0
10.0
8.0
6.0
4.0
2.0

SPONDA SHARE PRICE 
COMPARED TO INDICES

* Hallituksen esitys

1,0

0,8

€

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

* 
20

08

0,6

0,4

0,2

0

OSINKO/OSAKE

* Board's proposal

DIVIDEND/SHARE

1.0

0.8

Eur

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

* 
20

08

0.6

0.4

0.2

0

SHARE PRICES AND TURNOVER

1,200

Meur

1,000
800
600

200
400

0

1 200

M€

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

12
10
8
6

2
4

0

€

1 000
800
600

200
400

0

SPONDAN OSAKKEEN
KURSSIKEHITYS JA VAIHTO

Vaihto
Spondan osakekurssi  
(painotettu keskiarvo)

Turnover Eur

Share price (weighted average price)

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

12
10
8
6

2
4

0

€

numBe
r  

 o
f s

hares

hold
In

G,

 %



sponda plc annual report 2008    79

diStRiBUtion of owneRSHip 31 decemBeR 2008

1 – 100  552  6.984  35,197  0.032  35,197  0.032
101 – 500  2,993  37.867  862,388  0.777  862,388  0.777
501 – 1,000  1,688  21.356  1,301,401  1.172  1,301,401  1.172
1,001 – 5,000  2,202  27.859  4,645,136  4.184  4,645,136  4.184
5,001 – 10,000  251  3.176  1,854,833  1.671  1,854,833  1.671
10,001 – 50,000  163  2.062  3,426,960  3.087  3,426,960  3.087
50,001 – 100,000  30  0.38  2,090,266  1.883  2,090,266  1.883
100,001 – 500,000  16  0.202  3,312,410  2.983  3,312,410  2.983
500,001 –    9  0.114  93,501,594  84.213  93,501,594  84.213

total 7,904 100 111,030,185 100 111,030,185 100
of which nominee-registered  10   41,914,586  38  41,914,586  38
non-transferred, total  0   0  0  0  0
in general account    0  0  0  0
in special accounts, total    0  0  0  0
total issued    111,030,185  100  111,030,185  100

numBe
r o

f 

sh
ares

% o
f s

hares
 

and vo
tes

20 pRincipal SHaReHoldeRS on 31 decemBeR 2008

1 Solidium oy*       38,065,498  34.3
2 Julius tallberg-Kiinteistöt oyj       11,123,018  10.0
3 ilmarinen mutual pension insurance company       821,092  0.7
4 Kuisla Reima       763,802  0.7
5 the State pension fund       700,000  0.6
6 laakkonen mikko Kalervo       600,000  0.5
7 laakkosen arvopaperi oy       440,000  0.4
8 yleisradion eläkesäätiö S.r.       340,000  0.3
9 Support fund for the commercial and technical Sciences       267,800  0.2
10 investment fund danske Suomi kasvuosake       229,225  0.2
11 finnfoam oy       225,000  0.2
12 investment fund SeB Gyllenberg Small firm       188,135  0.2
13 Savings Bank Kotimaa investment fund       155,780  0.1
14 investment fund SeB Gyllenberg finlandia       151,963  0.1
15 e. Öhman J:or oy       150,000  0.1
16 ahola and maliniemi partners ab oy       150,000  0.1
17 medicinska Understödsföreningen liv och Hälsa r.f.       125,000  0.1
18 Sajetec oy       120,000  0.1
19 Siuko taavi paavali       120,000  0.1
20 i.a. von Julins StB       106,000  0.1

total      54,842,313 49.4
others       56,187,872  50.6

total      111,030,185 100.0
nominee-registered       41,914,586  37.8
total number of shareholders 7,904 * Solidium oy is fully owned by the finnish State
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Consolidated  
income statement (IFRS)

meUR  

total revenue      1, 2, 3   
Rental income and service charges       210.8  193.4
interest income from finance leases       0.3  0.3
Service income       0.0  6.1
fund management fees and share of fund profits      4  13.1  11.1

      224.3  210.9
expenses        

maintenance expenses      5  -55.5  -55.2
Service       0.0  -1.4
direct fund expenses       -2.0  -1.5

      -57.5  -58.1

net operating income       166.8  152.8

profit/loss on sales of investment properties      6  12.1  1.2
Valuation gains and losses       -36.0  92.9
amortization of goodwill      18  -13.0  –
profit/loss on sales of trading properties      24  21.5  35.6

Sales and marketing expenses       -2.1  -2.0
administrative expenses      9, 10, 11  -22.1  -23.9
Share of results of associated companies      21  -0.4  –
other operating income      7  0.8  0.5
other operating expenses      8  -1.3  -0.4
Operating profit       126.2  256.7

financial income       1.7  4.4
financial expenses       -89.1  -76.1
provision for interest expenses       -0.1  -0.6
Net financing costs      12  -87.5  -72.3

Profit before taxes      38.7 184.4

income taxes for current and previous periods       -1.3  -0.4
deferred tases       -10.8  -47.4
Income taxes total      13  -12.1  -47.8

Profit for the period      26.6 136.6

attributable to:
equity holders of the parent company       26.7  136.5
minority interest       -0.1  0.1
Profit for the period       26.6  136.6

earnings per share based on profit attributable to equity holders of the parent company:     
Basic and diluted earnings per share.eUR      14  0.24  1.27
Basic and diluted number of shares, million       111.0  107.8
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Consolidated  
balance sheet (IFRS)

meUR 

assets
non-current assets        

investment properties      15  2,907.5  2,534.9
investments in real estate funds      16  60.6  35.0
property, plant and equipment      17  14.5  15.7
Goodwill      18  14.5  27.5
other intangible assets      19  0.0  4.1
finance lease receivables      20  2.7  2.7
Holdings in associated companies      21  3.3  –
other investments      22  4.7  26.4
deferred tax assets      23  56.6  56.9

total non-current assets       3,064.5  2,703.2
current assets        

trading properties      24  29.5  37.2
trade and other receivables      25  56.7  130.7
cash and cash equivalents      26  16.0  27.4

total current assets       102.3  195.3

total assets      3,166.8 2,898.5

Shareholders’ equity and liabilities
equity attributable to equity holders of the parent company       

Share capital       111.0  111.0
Share premium reserve       159.5  159.5
translation difference       -1.4  0.7
fair value reserve       -19.7  9.8
Revaluation reserve       0.6  0.6
invested non-restricted equity reserve       209.7  209.7
other equity reserve       129.0 –
Retained earnings       412.5  441.3

      1,001.2  932.6
minority interest       1.8  2.2
total shareholders’ equity      27  1,003.0  934.8

liabilities        
non-current liabilities        

interest-bearing loans and borrowings      28  1,543.8  1,056.4
provisions      30  8.7  15.0
other liabilities       26.3  –
deferred tax liabilities      23  214.6  212.6

total non-current liabilities       1,793.4  1,284.0
current liabilities       

current interest-bearing loans and borrowings      31  284.5  606.3
trade and other payables      32  85.9  73.4
total current liabilities       370.4  679.7

Total liabilities      2,163.8 1,963.7
 
Total shareholders’ equity and liabilities      3,166.8 2,898.5
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Consolidated statement  
of cash flows (IFRS)

meUR  

cash flow from operating activities       
profit for the period      26.6  136.6
adjustments     1)  137.2  26.9
change in net working capital     2)  49.8  135.1
interest received      1.3  4.5
interest paid       -70.3  -78.4
other financial items      -2.2  -13.7
dividends received      0.0  –
taxes received/paid      -1.8  0.5

Net cash flow from operating activities      140.7  211.5

cash flow from investing activities       
acquisition of investment properties     3)  -466.7  -280.3
capital expenditure on real estate funds      -16.3  -15.6
acquisition of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets     -0.8  -1.7
proceeds from sale of investment properties     4)  93.9  277.9
proceeds from disposal of fixed assets      0.0  –
Repayments of loan receivables      –  0.7

net cash from investment activities      -389.8  -19.0

cash flow from financing activities       
proceeds from share issue      –  239.5
payment received from equity bond      128.6  –
non-current loans, raised      540.7  810.5
non-current loans, repayments      -140.4  -371.9
current loans, raised/repayments      -235.4  -822.1
dividends paid      -55.5  -44.7

Net cash from financing activities      238.0  -188.7

change in cash and cash equivalents      -11.1 3.8
cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period      27.4  23.6
impact of changes in exchange rates      -0.3  –

cash and cash equivalents, end of period      16.0 27.4
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noteS to tHe Statement of caSH flowS , meUR

1) adjustments
proceeds and losses from sale of investment properties     -12.1  -1.2
Valuation gains and losses      36.0  -92.9
amortization of goodwill      13.0  
financial income and expenses      87.5  72.3
income taxes      12.1  47.8
Share of results of associated companies      0.4  –
other adjustments      0.2  0.9
adjustments total      137.2  26.9

2) Specification of change in net working capital
change in trading properties      6.4  186.3
changes in current receivables      64.5  -74.5
changes in non-interest-bearing current liabilities      -14.7  31.3
changes in provisions      -6.4  -8.0
Change in net working capital      49.8  135.1

3) acquisition of investment properties
acquisition of subsidiaries       
acquisition cost of companies      217.4  51.3
cash and cash equivalents of acquired companies at acquisition date     -2.0  -0.1
Cash flow from acquisitions less cash and cash equivalents of acquired companies   215.4  51.2

acquired properties      11.8  13.2
other acquisitions of investment properties      239.4  215.9
total acquisition of investment properties      466.7  280.3

assets and liabilities of acquires subsidiaries       
net working capital      -1.1  8.6
total non-current assets      219.4  60.8
interest-bearing liabilities      -2.7  -15.3
non-interest-bearing liabilities      -0.1  -2.9
Net total of assets and liabilities of acquired subsidiaries     215.4  51.2

4) proceeds from sale of investment properties
proceeds from sale of subsidiaries       
proceeds      94.0  256.7
cash and cash equivalents of sold subsidiaries      0.0  –
Proceeds from sale of subsidiaries      93.9  256.7
other proceeds from sale of investment properties      –  21.2
total proceeds from sale of investment properties      93.9  277.9

assets and liabilities of sold subsidiaries       
net working capital      -0.1  –
investment properties      82.0  255.6
Sales gain / loss      12.1  1.1
Net total of assets and liabilities of sold subsidiaries      93.9  256.7
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Consolidated statement   
of changes in equity

meUR

equity at 31 dec. 2006  79.3  159.5  –  2.3  0.6  –  –  349.3  591.0  1.8  592.8
cash flow hedges: 

amount taken to equity     9.6      9.6   9.6
amount recognized in the income statement     0.1      0.1   0.1
instruments of reversed hedge accounting     0.4      0.4   0.4

translation difference    0.7       0.7   0.7
taxes on items recognized in equity or transferred from equity   -2.6      -2.6   -2.6

total income and expenses recognized directly in equity   0.7  7.5      8.2   8.2
profit for the period         136.5  136.5  0.1  136.6

total income and expenses for the period   0.7 7.5    136.5 144.7 0.1 144.8

increase          –  0.5  0.5
dividends         -44.7  -44.7  -0.2  -44.9
increase in share capital  31.7      209.7    241.4   241.4
options settled and paid in shares         0.2  0.2   0.2

equity at 31 dec. 2007 111.0 159.5 0.7 9.8  0.6 209.7 –  441.3 932.6 2.2  934.8

equity at 31 dec. 2007  111.0  159.5  0.7 9.8  0.6  209.7  –  441.3  932.6  2.2  934.8
cash flow hedges: 

amount taken to equity     -40.6      -40.6   -40.6
amount recognized in the income statement     0.7      0.7   0.7
instruments of reversed hedge accounting          0.0   0.0

translation difference    -2.0      -2.0   -2.0
other changes         0.1  0.1   0.1
taxes on items recognized in equity or transferred from equity   10.4      10.4   10.4

total income and expenses recognized directly in equity   -2.0 -29.5     0.1  -31.5   -31.5
profit for the period         26.7  26.7  -0.1  26.6
 
total income and expenses for the period   -2.0 -29.5    26.8  -4.8 -0.1 -4.9

increase          –  -0.3  -0.3
dividends         -55.5  -55.5   -55.5
increase in share capital        129.0   129.0   129.0
options settled and paid in shares         0.0  0.0   0.0

equity at 31 dec. 2008 111.0  159.5  -1.4 -19.7 0.6 209.7 129.0 412.5 1,001.2 1.8 1,003.0
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Key figures  
(IFRS)
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  1.   total revenue, m€    224.31  210.96  117.43  103.06  99.21
 
  2.    operating profit, m€    126.22  256.68  103.90  65.48  17.07
    % of total revenue    56.27  121.68  88.91  63.54  17.20
  3.    profit before taxes, m€    38.71  184.40  65.40  39.16  -9.53
    % of total revenue    17.26  87.41  55.96  38.00  -9.61
  4.    Gross expenditure on non-current assets, m€    502.64  254.00  1,244.58  52.12  59.32
    % of total revenue   224.09  120.40  1,065.01  50.57  59.80

  5.    Shareholders’ equity per share, €    7.86  8.40  7.45  7.25  7.44
  6.    earnings per share (epS), €    0.24  1.27  0.61  0.37  0.04
  7.    Return on investment, %    4.71  10.05  7.19 **)  5.57  1.50
  8.    p/e ratio, %    12.89  6.45  19.68  21.21  176.89

  9.    equity ratio, %    31.75  32.30  20.19  44.91  47.11
10.   debt equity ratio, %    182.28  177.86  338.30  107.22  99.13
11.   Gearing, %    180.68  174.93  334.32  107.08  98.84

12.   dividend, €    0.00 *)  0.50  0.40  0.50  0.50
13.   payout ratio, %     0.00 *)  39.49  65.60  133.42  1,231.80
14. effective dividend yield, %    0.00 *)  6.12  3.33  6.29  6.96

15. market capitalization, m€    344.19  907.12  951.69  629.67  565.99
16. lowest and highest share prices, €    2.32/8.75  7.40/13.29  7.44/13.00  6.81/9.34  6.00/7.40
17. average share price, €    5.41  10.55  9.08  7.93  6.76
18. closing share price, €    3.10  8.17  12.00  7.95  7.18
19. weighted average number of shares million    111.0  107.8  79.3  79.0  78.6
20. weighted average number of shares million diluted   111.0  107.8  79.3  80.3  80.3

21. Return on shareholders’ equity (Roe), %    2.74  17.87  8.46 **)  5.10  0.54
22. interest-bearing liabilities, m€    1,828.26  1,662.68  2,005.60  615.73  581.52
23. non-interest-bearing liabilities, m€    335.50  301.00  340.98  88.72  77.62

24. net assets per share, €    7.86  8.40  7.45  7.25  7.44
25. epRa naV, net assets per share, €    9.64  10.04  9.54  –  –
26. cash flow from operations per share, €    0.78  0.81  0.56  0.57  0.53
27. Share turnover, million shares    108.88  94.92  41.94  31.77  43.56
28. Share turnover (%)    98.06  88.06  52.89  40.21  55.42

*) proposal of the Board of directors 
 **) These 2006 key figures have been calculated using the quarterly weighted  
average figures in the balance sheet.
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Calculation 
of key ratios

*)  Other equity reserve consists of the hybrid bond. **) These key figures in 2006 have been calculated using the quarterly weighted average figures in the balance sheet.

shareholders’ equity per share, 
eur *) =

equity attributable to equityholders of the parent company at year end − other equity reserve
adjusted number of shares at year end

earnings per share (eps), eur =
profit for the period attributable to equity holders of the parent company
average adjusted number of shares during the period

return on investment,% **) = 100 ×
profit before taxes + interest and other financial expenses
Balance sheet total - non-interest-bearing liabilities (average during the period)

p/e ratio (price/earnings) =
Share price at year end
earnings per share

equity ratio, % = 100 ×
Shareholders’ equity
Balance sheet total - advances received

Debt-to-equity ratio, % = 100 ×
interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Shareholders’ equity

Gearing, % = 100 ×
interest-bearing liabilities - cash and cash equivalents
Shareholders’ equity

payout ratio, % = 100 ×
dividend per share
earnings per share

effective dividend yield, % = 100 ×
dividend per share
Share price at year end

market capitalization, meur = number of shares at year end x share price at year end

average share price, eur =
Value of trading volume
Volume traded

return on shareholders’ equity 
(roe), % **) = 100 ×

profit for the period attributable to equity holders of the parent company
equity attributable to equity holders of the parent company (average during the period)

net assets per share, eur *) =
fair value of assets – other equity reserve – minority interest – liabilities
number of shares at year end

epra nav, equity per share, eur *) =

equity attributable to equity holders of the parent company at year end
- other equity reserve
+  deferred tax relating to the fair valuation of property and to depreciation difference 

arising from property
- Goodwill relating to deferred tax liability on properties
adjusted number of shares at year end

Cash flow from operations 
per share, eur

=

operating profit
+/- Valuation gains and losses
+ amortization of goodwill
+ administrative depreciation
+/- changes in provisions
+/- defined benefit pension expenses
- financial income and expenses affecting cash flow
- taxes affecting cash flow
+/- other items
average adjusted number of shares during the period
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Basic information
Sponda is a leading real estate investment company that owns, 
leases and develops office, retail and logistics properties in the 
major cities of finland and Russia.

the parent company of the Group is Sponda plc, a finnish 
public limited company domiciled in Helsinki. its registered of-
fice is Korkeavuorenkatu 45, 00130 Helsinki, finland.

the Board of directors has approved the financial statements 
on 6 february 2009. copies of the Group’s financial statements 
can be obtained from Sponda plc, Korkeavuorenkatu 45, 00130 
Helsinki, finland and on the internet at www.sponda.fi.

Basis of preparation
the consolidated financial statements are prepared in con-
formity with the international financial Reporting Standards 
(ifRS) applying the standards and interpretations endorsed 
for use in the eU and in force on 31 december 2008. the 
notes to the consolidated financial statements also comply 
with the provisions of finnish accounting and corporate leg-
islation.

the consolidated financial statements are presented in mil-
lions of euros and prepared on the historical cost basis except 
for investment properties, investments in real estate funds and 
certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair value.

the preparation of the financial statements in accordance 
with ifRS requires management to exercise judgment. their 
judgment affects the choice of accounting policies and their ap-
plication, the amount of assets, liabilities, revenues and expens-
es to be reported, and the notes. in its judgments, management 
uses estimates and assumptions that are based on earlier expe-
rience and management’s best understanding on the balance 
sheet date, especially concerning future developments in the 
property market. the most significant area in which Sponda’s 
management has exercised its judgment is in determining the 
fair value of investment properties. the use of estimates and 
assumptions is described in more detail in the section ‘account-
ing policies requiring management’s judgment and key sources 
of estimating uncertainty’.

Since 1 January 2008 Sponda has applied the following new 
or amended iaSB standards and interpretations:

 fRic 11 ifRS 2 – • Group and Treasury Share Transactions. 
the interpretation applies to share-based transactions (if-
RS 2) and requires these transactions to be reassessed in 
subsidiaries.

 ifRic 12 • Service Concessions Arrangements. the interpre-
tation applies to the accounting treatment of concessions 
arrangements with the public sector. *

 fRic 14 iaS 19 – • Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, min-
imum funding Requirements, and their interaction. the 
i nterpretation applies to defined benefit arrangements  after 
the termination of employment as stated in iaS 19 and 
other long-term defined employee benefits, when there is 
a minimum funding requirement. the interpretation  also 
gives guidelines on when to recognize an asset in the  balance 
sheet.
 amendments to iaS 39 financial instruments: Recognition •

and measurement and ifRS 7 financial instruments: disclo-
sures – Reclassification of Financial Assets (effective from 1 
July 2008). the amendments were issued because of the 
global financial crisis and they apply to the reclassification 
of certain financial assets. Reclassification is permitted  for a 
defined period retrospectively and after that in  certain ex-
ceptional situations. the amendments to the standards have 
been approved for use in the eU. * not approved yet in the eu.

Principles of consolidation
the consolidated financial statements include the parent com-
pany and all companies in which the parent company has con-
trol. a controlling interest arises when the Group holds more 
than half of the voting power or when the Group holds the 
right to control the company’s business and financial principles 
in order to extract benefit from its operations.

ifRS 3 (Business Combinations) is applied to acquisitions in 
which a business is acquired. all mutual holdings are eliminated  
using the purchase method. the identifiable assets, liabilities and 
contingent liabilities of the acquired company are measured at 
their fair value. Goodwill represents the excess of the costs of 
the acquired business combination over the acquirer’s interest 
in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and con-
tingent liabilities on the acquisition date.

acquisitions that do not fall within the definition of a business 
are recognized as acquired assets. the classification by Sponda 
of individual acquisitions of investment properties as acquired 
assets is based on the view that a single property and its lease 
agreements do not form a business entity; real estate business 
also requires marketing and development activities for proper-
ties, management of tenancies, and management of  property 
repairs and renovation. all these business processes and the 

Accounting Policies for  
the Consolidated Financial Statements
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people responsible for them are at Sponda plc and not in the 
individual properties or property companies.

the results of subsidiaries sold during the financial period 
are consolidated until the date that control in them ceases. 
Subsidiaries acquired during the financial period are consoli-
dated from the date that control commenced.

mutual real estate companies whose shares carry entitle-
ment to control over specified premises, and in which the 
Group’s holding is less than 100%, are consolidated in the 
Group’s financial statements row by row in proportion to the 
Group’s holding in these companies as jointly controlled assets, 
in accordance with iaS 31 (Interests in Joint Ventures).

Subsidiaries that are not mutual real estate companies are 
consolidated using the purchase method. the share of prof-
its and equity belonging to external shareholders is shown as 
minority interest. 

associated companies are companies in which the Group 
exercises considerable influence, ie. when the Group has more 
than 20% but less than 50% of the votes or the Group other-
wise exercises considerable influence but does not have a con-
trolling interest. they are consolidated using the equity meth-
od. the Group’s share of the results of associated companies 
is presented as a separate item in the income statement.

all intragroup transactions, receivables, liabilities and prof-
it distributions are eliminated.

Foreign currency transactions
the consolidated financial statements are presented in euros, 
which is the functional and presentation currency of the par-
ent company. foreign currency transactions are translated into 
the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at 
the transaction dates. monetary items in foreign currency are 
translated into the functional currency using the rates prevail-
ing at the balance sheet date. non-monetary items in foreign 
currency are translated at the rates prevailing at the transac-
tion dates except for items measured at fair value, which are 
translated into the functional currency using the exchange rate 
prevailing at the measurement date. Gains and losses result-
ing from foreign currency transactions and from the trans-
lation of monetary items denominated in foreign currencies 
are recognized in the income statement in financial income 
and expenses. foreign currency gains and losses resulting from 
operating activities are included in the corresponding items 
above operating profit. 

the income statements of foreign group companies are 
translated into euros using the average exchange rates for the 
financial period and their balance sheets using the exchange 
rates prevailing at the balance sheet date, and exchange rate 
differences arising from this are recognized in the translation 
difference for shareholders’ equity. translation differences 
arising from the elimination of the acquisition cost of foreign 
subsidiaries and from equity items incurred after acquisition 
are recognized in shareholders’ equity. in connection with the 
sale of a subsidiary, translation differences are recognized in 
the income statement as part of sales gains or losses.

Investment properties
investment properties are properties held by the company  
for the purpose of earning rental income or for capital 
 appreciation, or both. Sponda measures its investment proper-
ties using the fair value method, as stated in iaS 40, Investment 
Property, under which the profit or loss from changes in fair 
values is recognized through profit and loss in the period in 
which it is incurred.

investment properties are valued initially at acquisition cost, 
including transaction costs. the acquisition cost for investment 
properties that Sponda has completed comprises the con-
struction and other costs incurred by the date of completion. 
in measurements after the initial recognition, the fair value is 
used. the fair value is the sum of money for which the prop-
erty could change hands between parties who know the busi-
ness, wish to carry out the transaction and are independent of 
each other. if a reliable market price is not available, the value 
can be determined using discounted cash flows. 

the fair value of completed business properties is calculated 
by Sponda itself using the discounted cash flows method  (dcf). 
cash flows are calculated over a period of at least 10 years. net 
cash flows in the period and the terminal value are discounted 
from the end of each accounting year to the  assessment date. 
the terminal value is calculated by capitalizing the net cash flow of 
the year following the most recent accounting year with the re-
quired yield (Gordon growth model) . the discount rate is deter-
mined by adding the  expected long-term rate of inflation to the 
required yield. the yield is based on Sponda’s own assessment of 
the market situation and on information from published sources 
including Kti finland (institute for Real estate economics). 

potential gross income is based on current lease contracts 
and, in the case of vacant premises, on estimated market rent 



sponda plc annual report 2008    89

levels. potential gross income per property is adjusted annual-
ly by the estimated long-term vacancy rate taking into account 
any special aspects related to the property itself and the sta-
tus of the lease contract. the estimated impact of inflation is 
calculated on maintenance expenses and on market and con-
tract leases.

the value of non-developed sites and unused but usable 
building rights is determined using the sales price method. 

Sponda’s internal property assessment process, calculation 
methods and reporting are audited by an external valuer and 
are considered to fulfil the valuation criteria of the ifRSs and iVS 
(international Valuation Standards) as well as the aKa (finnish 
authorized real estate auditors) criteria for good property val-
uation practice. in addition to auditing, Sponda also commis-
sions at least twice a year an external valuer to examine the 
material used in calculating the market value of the property 
portfolio, in order to confirm that the parameters and values 
used are based on market indications.

an investment property is derecognized from the balance 
sheet when it is divested or taken permanently out of use. Gains 
and losses on sales of investment properties are presented as 
a separate item in the income statement.

Investment properties for development
major development projects, in which a new building or an 
extension to a building is built, are measured until completion 
in accordance with iaS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment. the 
acquisition cost of the development property then compris-
es the costs during construction plus the value of the land 
site measured at fair value. 

after completion the property is transferred from the de-
velopment properties segment to completed properties in 
the appropriate business segment and is measured at fair val-
ue. Gains or losses from the assessment are recognized in the 
income statement. 

when Sponda develops existing completed investment prop-
erties, the properties are valued at their fair value before starting 
the project, plus the accumulated development costs.

Investments in real estate funds
Sponda owns and manages through real estate funds holdings 
in retail, office and logistics properties. the investments in 
real estate funds contain these holdings. they are  measured 
at fair value by external valuers.

Property, plant and equipment
property, plant and equipment include properties used by 
the company itself, office equipment and furniture and vehi-
cles. these are measured at cost less depreciation, plus capi-
talized costs arising from renovations. the properties, office 
equipment and furniture and vehicles used by the company 
itself are depreciated over their useful lives. 

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment:

office premises used by Sponda    100 years
office machinery and equipment    20 years
office machinery and furniture, vehicles    10 years

Goodwill and other intangible assets
Goodwill is the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the 
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable as-
sets, liabilities and contingent liabilities at the time of acquisi-
tion. Goodwill is not amortized but tested annually or more 
often for impairment. 

for impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to cash-gen-
erating units which are expected to obtain synergy benefits 
from combining business. 

if there is any indication of impairment, the recoverable 
amount is determined to the cash generating unit to which 
the goodwill belongs, i.e. in Sponda to the above mentioned 
development projects. the recoverable amount is compared 
to the unit’s carrying amount and an impairment loss is rec-
ognized if the recoverable amount is smaller than the car-
rying amount. the impairment loss is recognized in the in-
come statement and it cannot be reversed at a later date. 
testing is described in more detail in the section ‘account-
ing policies requiring management’s judgment and key sourc-
es of estimating uncertainty’. 

other intangible assets include the customer relation-
ships, trademarks and technology allocated from the Kapi-
teeli acquisition from ovenia oy, which are all amortized on 
a straight-line basis over 5 years.

Trading properties
trading properties are properties that are meant for sale and 
which do not correspond to the company’s strategic targets 
owing to their size, location or type. trading properties are 
measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. net 
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary 
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course of business, less the direct costs resulting from com-
pletion of the sale. the net realizable values are mainly de-
termined using the market value method. if the net realiz-
able value is lower than the carrying amount, an impairment 
loss is recognized. 

all Sponda’s trading properties were acquired in the Kapi-
teeli acquisition. 

when a trading property becomes an investment prop-
erty that is measured in the balance sheet at fair value, the 
difference between the fair value on the transfer date and its 
previous carrying amount is recognized in the income state-
ment under change in fair value.

Impairment of assets
at each balance sheet date the Group assesses the carrying 
amounts of its assets to determine whether any indication of 
impairment exists. if any such indication exists, the recover-
able amount is estimated. with respect to goodwill, the re-
coverable amount is always estimated annually regardless of 
whether there are indications of impairment or not.

the recoverable amount is the fair value of the asset less 
cost to sell. impairment losses are recognized in the income 
statement when the carrying amount of the asset is higher 
than its recoverable amount. an impairment loss is reversed 
if there has been a change in circumstances and the recover-
able amount of the asset has increased after the date when 
the impairment loss was recognized. an impairment loss is 
not reversed, however, to an extent higher than the carrying 
amount that would have been determined had no impair-
ment loss been recognized in prior years. impairment los ses 
recognized for goodwill are never reversed.

Financial assets and liabilities
in accordance with iaS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition 
and Measurement, Sponda Group’s financial assets are classi-
fied as follows: financial assets recognized at fair value through 
profit and loss, loans and receivables, and available-for-sale 
financial assets. correspondingly financial liabilities are clas-
sified as financial liabilities recognized at fair value through 
profit and loss and financial liabilities measured at amortized 
cost. financial assets and liabilities are classified on the ba-
sis of the purpose for which they were acquired and on the 
original acquisition date. financial instruments are recognized 
initially at fair value based on the consideration received or 

paid. transaction costs are included in the original carrying 
amount of financial assets and liabilities for items that are not 
measured at fair value through profit and loss. all purchas-
es and sales of financial assets and liabilities are recognized 
on the transaction date. 

financial assets are derecognized from the balance sheet 
when the Group has lost the contractual right to the cash 
flows or when it has transferred a significant part of the risks 
and yield outside the Group. 

Financial assets recognized at fair value through profit and 
loss contain assets held for trading. Held for trading finan-
cial assets have been acquired mainly to obtain profit from 
short-term changes in market prices. Held for trading as-
sets include derivatives to which hedge accounting, as de-
scribed in iaS 39 financial instruments: Recognition and Meas
urement, is not applied. financial assets held for trading and 
that mature within 12 months are included in other current 
 assets. the items in this category are measured at fair val-
ue and the fair value of all the investments in this category 
is determined on the basis of publicly quoted prices or gen-
erally accepted option pricing models. Realized and unreal-
ized gains and losses resulting from changes in the fair val-
ue are recognized in the income statement in the period in 
which they are incurred. 

payments relating to loans and receivables are fixed or de-
terminable, they are not quoted on the active market, and 
the company does not hold them for trading purposes. this 
category includes the Group’s financial assets that have been 
obtained by handing over cash, goods or services to a debtor. 
they are valued at amortized cost and are included in cur-
rent or non-current financial assets, in non-current assets if 
they mature in more than 12 months time. the Group rec-
ognizes an impairment loss for an individual receivable if 
there is objective evidence that the receivable will not be 
recovered in full. 

Availableforsale financial assets are assets that are not part 
of derivative assets and have been specifically allocated to this 
category or have not been allocated to any other category. 
they belong to non-current financial assets if it is planned 
to keep them for more than 12 months from the balance 
sheet date, otherwise they are included in current financial 
assets. changes in the fair value of available-for-sale finan-
cial assets are recognized in shareholders’ equity in the fair 
value   reserve, taking tax into account. changes in fair  value 
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are taken from equity to the income statement when the in-
vestment is sold or its value has fallen so that an impairment 
loss has to be recognized. the Group had no available- for-
sales financial assets on the balance sheet date.

Financial liabilities recognized at fair value through profit  and 
loss are financial liabilities held for trading. the held for trading 
category also includes derivative instruments to which hedge 
accounting, as described in iaS 39, is not  applied. financial li-
abilities held for trading that mature within 12 months are in-
cluded in other current liabilities. the items in this category 
are measured at fair value and the fair value of all the invest-
ments in this category is determined on the basis of public-
ly quoted prices or generally accepted option  pricing mod-
els. Realized and unrealized gains and losses resulting from 
changes in the fair value are recognized in the  income state-
ment in the period in which they are incurred. 

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost include the 
Group’s financial liabilities that are initially recognized at fair 
value, taking transaction costs into account. the financial li-
abilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost us-
ing the effective interest method. financial liabilities are 
 included in non-current and current liabilities and they can 
be  interest-bearing or non-interest-bearing.

Derivative instruments and hedge a ccounting
Sponda uses derivative contracts mainly to hedge its  interest 
rate risk exposure. interest rate swaps are  designated as 
hedging instruments for future interest flows and the Group 
applies cash flow hedge accounting to  certain such contracts 
when they meet the hedge accounting  criteria under iaS 
39.

the change in the fair value of interest rate swaps is rec-
ognized in equity to the extent that hedging is effective. the 
ineffective (non-qualifying) portion of the hedging is rec-
ognized immediately in financial items in the income state-
ment. 

Should an interest rate swap used as a hedging instru-
ment mature, be sold or terminated prematurely, but it is 
highly probable that the hedged cash flows will be realized, 
the gains and losses accrued from the derivative contracts 
remain under equity until they are realized, at which point 
they are recognized in the income statement. if it is no  longer 
highly probable that the hedged cash flows will be realized, 
the gains and losses accrued from the derivative contracts 

are taken immediately from equity to financial income and 
expenses in the income statement. 

derivatives that do not meet the hedge accounting crite-
ria are recognized through profit and loss. they are meas-
ured at fair value and changes in their fair value are recog-
nized in the income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash, bank deposits  that 
can be raised on demand, and other short-term  extremely 
liquid investments. items classified as cash and cash equiv-
alents have a maturity of less than three months from the 
acquisition date.

Treasury shares
purchases of own shares and the costs related to these trans-
actions are recognized as a reduction of equity in the con-
solidated balance sheet.

Hybrid loan
a hybrid loan is an equity bond that is subordinated to a com-
pany’s other debt instruments but is senior to other equity 
instruments. the interest on a hybrid loan is paid if the an-
nual General meeting decides to pay a dividend. if a dividend 
is not paid, the company decides separately on whether to 
pay the interest. Unpaid interest accumulates. Hybrid loan 
holders have no control over the company and no right to 
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Provisions
a provision is recognized when the Group has a present  legal 
or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it 
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be re-
quired to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the 
amount of the obligation can be made. long-term obliga-
tions are discounted to their net present value. provisions 
are made for compensation relating to land-use agreements; 
for costs arising from property demolition; and for soil res-
toration costs for properties where it is known or suspect-
ed that the soil is contaminated in the area   because of earli-
er activity. provisions are also recognized for obligations aris-
ing from disputes in progress when the settlement of the 
obligation is probable.
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Non-current assets held for sale 
and discontinued operations
non-current assets or a disposal group and assets and liabilities 
related to discontinued operations are classified as held for sale 
if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a 
sale transaction rather than through continuous use. 

the criteria for classifying assets as held for sale are con-
sidered to be met on the balance sheet date when the sale 
is highly probable and the asset or disposal group is avail-
able for immediate sale in its present condition on standard 
terms and when management is committed to the sale and 
the sale is expected to take place within one year of the as-
set being classified as held for sale.

Leases, the group as a lessor
property leases are classified as operating leases when the 
risks and rewards incidental to ownership remain with Spon-
da. when the risks and benefits incidental to ownership 
have been substantially transferred to the lessee, a proper-
ty lease is classified as a finance lease. in that case the parts 
of the properties covered by the finance lease are recog-
nized as finance lease receivables in the balance sheet at the 
commencement of the lease term in an amount that equals 
the net investment in the lease, i.e. the present value of the 
minimum lease payment plus the present value of the non-
guaranteed residual value. 

the leases collected by Sponda are total leases, separate 
capital and maintenance leases, or leases indexed to the les-
see’s net sales. maintenance costs associated with the prop-
erty are either included in the lease or they remain the re-
sponsibility of the tenant, depending on the contract. leases 
are linked to the cost-of-living index. leases are either signed 
for an indefinite period or are fixed-term. 

total leases, as well as separate capital and maintenance 
leases, are recognized in the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. Variable rental income indexed 
to the lessee’s net sales are recognized as income on the ba-
sis of the actual net sales of the lessee. fees paid for lease 
assignments are allocated over the lease term.

Leases, the group a s a lessee
those leases in which the risks and rewards of ownership re-
main with the lessor are treated as operating leases. leases 
paid by Sponda based on operating leases are expensed in 

the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease 
term. the Group has no significant finance leases.

Total revenue
in Sponda, total revenue includes rental income and charg-
es for consumption, interest income on finance leases, ser-
vice income, the fees for managing the real estate funds, and 
Sponda’s share of the profits from these funds.

Expenses
expenses include maintenance expenses, service expenses 
and direct fund expenses. maintenance expenses are main-
tenance and annual repair costs arising from the regular and 
continuous maintenance of the properties and are recog-
nized immediately in the income statement.

Net income
net income is defined in the Group as the net amount  after 
deducting expenses from total revenue.

Operating profit
in the Group, operating profit is defined as the net amount 
after adding other operating income to net income, then de-
ducting sales and marketing expenses, administrative expens-
es and other operating expenses, the Group’s share of the 
results of associated companies and amortization of good-
will, and then adding/deducting gains/losses from the dispos-
al of investment properties, from assessment at fair value, 
and from the disposal of trading properties.

Employee benefits
the Group has both defined contribution and defined 
benefit  pension plans. contributions made for defined con-
tribution plans are recognized in the income statement for 
the year to which they relate. pension costs incurred from 
the Group’s defined benefit pension plans are computed us-
ing the projected unit credit method, i.e. the pension costs 
are expensed in the income statement by spreading the cost 
over the service lives of the employees based on calculations 
prepared by qualified actuaries. 

Sponda has an incentive scheme for management. persons 
covered by this scheme have the right to a bonus to be de-
termined by the performance criteria set for each year. the 
size of the bonus is determined annually. a condition for the 



sponda plc annual report 2008    93

bonus to be granted is the fulfilment of the performance cri-
teria and the person’s continued employment in the compa-
ny. Bonuses are not paid in cash; instead, the amount of bo-
nus, less taxes and other employer contributions, is used to 
buy shares for the bonus recipient, who is required to keep 
the shares for two years from receiving them.

the part of the bonus used to pay tax and other charg-
es is recognized in personnel expenses for the period from 
which the bonus is determined. the part paid in shares is ac-
counted for as a share-based arrangement settled in equity 
and is recognized as personnel expenses on straight-line ba-
sis over the vesting period. the counter-entry for the part 
paid in shares is taken directly to retained earnings.

Income tax
income tax expense in the income statement consists of 
the current tax and changes in deferred tax assets or liabili-
ties. the tax payable by Group companies for the period is 
calculated using the taxable profit as determined in accor-
dance with local legislation. the tax is adjusted for any tax-
es related to prior periods. 

deferred tax liabilities or assets are recognized on all tem-
porary differences between the tax basis of the assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting 
purposes under ifRS with the exception of the initial rec-
ognition of an asset as referred to in paragraph 15 of iaS 
12 Income Taxes. in Sponda such assets are investment prop-
erty acquisitions that do not fall within the definition of the 
company’s business operations and are therefore classified 
as asset acquisitions. 

the most significant temporary difference in Sponda is the 
difference between the fair values of the investment prop-
erties and their carrying amounts for tax purposes. the car-
rying amount for tax purposes is the value of an asset in a 
property company. other temporary differences arise, for 
example, from the measurement of financial instruments at 
fair value and unused tax losses. deferred taxes are calculat-
ed using the tax rates enacted by the balance sheet date.

changes in deferred taxes are recognized in the income 
statement except when they relate to items credited or deb-
ited directly to equity. a deferred tax asset is recognized to 
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will 
be available against which deductible temporary differences  
can be utilized.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit 
or loss for the period attributable to equity holders of the 
parent company by the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the financial period.

New or amended IFRS standards and interpretations
in 2009 Sponda will adopt the following new standards and 
interpretations issued by the iaSB: 

 ifRS 8 • Operating Segments (effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2009 or after) which re-
places   iaS 14 Segmenting Reporting. the new standard 
will  affect the presentation of segment information.
 iaS 23 • Borrowing Costs, (revised in 2007) (effective for 

annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009). the 
 revised standard requires borrowing costs that are direct-
ly attributable to the acquisition, construction or produc-
tion of a qualifying asset  to be included in the acquisition 
cost. as was previously permitted, the Group has recog-
nized borrowing costs in the period in which they were in-
curred. the change in the accounting principle affects the 
income statement between borrowing costs and change 
in fair value.
 ifRic 13•  Customer Loyalty Programmes (effective for 

 annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008). the 
 interpretation will have no impact on the Group’s future 
 financial statements.
 iaS 1 • Presentation of Financial Statements, (revised in 2007) 

(effective for annual periods starting on 1 January 2009 or 
after). the changes mainly affect the presentation of the in-
come statement and of calculation of changes in equity. 
 amendments to ifRS 2 • Sharebased payment – Vesting 

Conditions and Cancellations (effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2009). the amendment 
states that all non-vesting conditions should be included in 
the grant date fair value of equity instruments. the amend-
ment also revises the instructions for the accounting treat-
ment of cancellations. the interpretation will not have an 
impact on the Group’s future financial statements.
 amendments to iaS 1 • Presentation of Financial Statements 

and iaS 32 financial instruments: Presentation –  Puttable Fi
nancial Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation (ef-
fective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2009). the amendments require puttable financial instru-
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ments that meet certain criteria to be classified as equity, 
whereas until now they have been treated as financial lia-
bilities. applying the amended standards will not have an 
impact on the Group’s future financial statements.
 • Improvements to IFRSs (annual improvements 2007) (ef-

fective mainly for annual periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2009). through the annual improvements pro-
cess, minor, less urgent amendments to standards are col-
lected together in a single document and implemented 
once a year. the changes involved affect altogether 34 
standards. the Group’s future financial statements will be 
affected by the amendment to iaS 40 Investment Prop
erties, under which property under construction or de-
velopment for future use as investment property will in 
future be valued at fair value instead of acquisition cost. 
the amendment will not have a  significant impact on the 
Group’s future financial statements.
 ifRic 15 • Agreements for the Construction of Real  Estate 

(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 Jan-
uary 2009). the interpretation gives guidelines for identi-
fying the applicable standard for recognizing revenue from 
the construction of property, and for when the revenues 
from a construction project can be recognized. the inter-
pretation will not have an impact on the Group’s future fi-
nancial statements. *

 ifRic 16 • Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign  Operation 
(effective for annual periods begnning on or  after 1 octo-
ber 2008). the interpretation clarifies the accounting treat-
ment in the consolidated financial statements of hedges 
of net investments in a foreign operation. the interpreta-
tion will not have an impact on the Group’s future finan-
cial statements. *

in 2010 Sponda will adopt the following new standards  issued 
by the iaSB: 

 ifRS 3 • Business Combinations (revised 2008) and iaS 27 
consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (amended 
2008), (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
1 July 2009). the changes will affect the amount of good-
will recognized for acquisitions, items recognized in the 
income statement and the treatment of any extra trans-
action  expenses. the amendment to the standard gives 
guidelines for the accounting treatment of changes in own-
ership. the amendment to the accounting principle is not 
expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s future 

financial statements, since the amendment mainly affects 
the treatment of acquisitions classified as businesses. *

 amendment to iaS 39 • Financial instruments: recogni
tion and measurement (Eligible Hedged Items) (effective 
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009). the 
amendments affect hedge accounting. they revise the iaS 
39 guidelines on hedging a one-sided risk in a hedged item 
and on hedging an inflation risk, for a financial asset or li-
ability. the Group considers that the amendment will not 
have a significant impact on the Group’s future financial 
statements. *

* not yet approved in the eu.

Accounting policies requiring management’s 
judgment and key sources of estimation uncertainty
Sponda’s management exercises judgment when taking 
 decisions about the choice of accounting policies for the fi-
nancial statements and their application. this concerns in 
particular situations in which the ifRS standards have alter-
natives for recognition, measurement or presentation. 

the preparation of the financial statements in accor-
dance with ifRSs requires management to some extent to 
make  estimates and assumption that affect the recognition 
of  assets, liabilities, income and expenses. the estimates and 
assumptions are based on earlier experience and the best 
understanding on the balance sheet date. actual results may 
 differ from the estimates. 

in Sponda, management’s judgment, estimates and 
 assumptions mainly concern the fair value measurement of 
investment properties, impairment testing for goodwill, rec-
ognition of deferred taxes and provisions. 

Determining the fair value of investment properties using 
the discounted cash flows method is a key element in the 
 financial statements, and requires significant management 
 estimates and understanding especially concerning  future 
developments in yield requirements, market rental rates and 
occupancy rates. the fair value of investment properties 
 reflects, among other things, the rental income based on ex-
isting leases as well as reasonable and well-founded estimates 
of future rental income made by knowledgeable willing par-
ties in the light of current conditions. it also reflects expect-
ed future cash payments related to each property in ques-
tion. the yield requirement is determined for each property 
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 taking into account the property-specific risks and the market 
risk. the discount rate is determined by adding the expected  
long-term rate of inflation to the required yield. 

Impairment testing for goodwill relates to the goodwill allo-
cated to certain development projects planned in the Helsin-
ki metropolitan area that came with the  Kapiteeli  acquisition 
and are in the property development unit.  impairment testing 
requires management’s judgment concerning the costs dur-
ing construction and the fair value of an investment proper-
ty when it is completed and is transferred to the category of 
completed investment properties. the difference between 
the fair value of the completed property and the accrued ac-
quisition cost is recognized in the income statement. 

Before starting a project, the fair value at completion of 
the investment property being developed is determined us-
ing the 10 year discounted cash flows method with the same 
variables and parameters as for the fair value of complet-
ed investment properties. Rental income is based either on 
leases made in advance with future tenants or on manage-
ment estimates of future rents and occupancy rates. man-
agement assesses the accuracy of the calculations by testing 
for impairment. if there is indication of changes in the esti-
mates and assumptions due to the market or other reasons, 
the calculations are revised to correspond to the best un-
derstanding at the moment of testing. the sensitivity of the 
yield requirement to change is also assessed. 

management also checks that the construction costs for 
the project stay within the prepared cost estimate. if there 
are indications of a rise in costs or of other causes as a result 
of which costs may be exceeded, the values are updated. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized on all tem-
porary differences between the tax basis of the assets and lia-
bilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting pur-
poses with the exception of the initial recognition of an asset 
as referred to in iaS 12.15.b. management has exercised judg-
ment such that individual acquisitions of investment proper-
ties at Sponda are classified as acquired assets, because in the 
view of management a single property and its lease agree-
ments do not form a business entity;  real  estate business  also 
requires marketing and development  activities for proper-
ties, management of tenancies, and management of  property 
 repairs and renovation. all these business processes and the 
people responsible for them are at Sponda plc and not in the 
individual properties or property  companies.

the most important temporary difference in Sponda is the 
difference between the fair values of the investment proper-
ties and their carrying amounts for tax purposes. the carry-
ing amount for tax purposes is the value of the asset in the 
property company. other temporary differences arise, for 
example, from tax losses carried forward, provisions and fi-
nancial instruments. a deferred tax asset is recognized to the 
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be 
available against which deductible temporary differences or 
unused tax losses can be utilized. it may become necessary 
to decrease the carrying amount of deferred tax assets if fu-
ture taxable income differs from the estimate. 

the tax authority decided to deviate from the 2006 tax 
returns of Sponda Kiinteistöt oy (formerly Kapiteeli oyj) 
regarding the deductibility of confirmed losses. Based on 
an appeal by Sponda, the tax assessment adjustment board 
amended the tax authority’s decision on 19 december 2007. 
the state official representing the interests of tax recipients 
still has the right of appeal. Based on the judgment of com-
pany management, the financial statements have been pre-
pared in accordance with the decision of the tax assessment 
adjustment board and the available confirmed losses for tax 
years 1996 – 1999 have been set against taxable profit. 

with respect to provisions, management estimates and as-
sumptions concern the reliable assessment of the probabili-
ty of a payment obligation and the amount of the obligation. 
the estimates may need to be adjusted as a result of chang-
es in the amount of obligation or its maturity date and as a 
result of changes in the discount rate. these changes may 
affect future results. Sponda recognizes provisions on prop-
erties when the company knows that it will incur costs on 
these properties arising from soil restoration, compensation 
related to land use agreements, and property demolition.  
provisions also include obligations that have arisen from dis-
putes in progress where the settlement of the obligation is 
considered probable.
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1. Segment information, Business areas

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s 
business and geographical segments. Sponda reports its busi-
ness segments as the primary reporting format and this cor-
responds with the company’s internal organization and man-
agement reporting structure.

Business segments
Sponda’s operations are organized in five business units: of-
fice and Retail properties, logistics properties, property  
development, Real estate funds, and Russia and the  Baltic 
countries. 

Office and Retail Properties and Logistics Properties concen-
trate on leasing Sponda’s business premise properties, and 
on the purchasing and sale of properties. customer service 
managers are responsible for managing the leasing of busi-
ness premises and customer relations.

Property Development concentrates on marketing and ex-
ecuting new property projects, based on customer needs. 
it focuses on undeveloped land sites and building renova-
tion especially in the Helsinki metropolitan area but also in 
 other parts of finland.

The Real Estate Funds business unit owns and manages 
holdings in retail, office and logistics properties through real 
estate funds. in accordance with the company’s strategy, 
Sponda’s real estate funds carry out business in medium-
sized cities in finland. the regional organizations manage 
customer relations and the property portfolios.

The Russia and the Baltic Countries business unit focuses 
on expanding real estate business into new geographical and 
business areas. Sponda actively looks for office, retail and 
 logistics properties in the market area.
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31 decemBeR 2008, meUR

total revenue  155.0  37.9  2.0  16.2  13.2  0.0  224.3
maintenance expenses and direct fund expenses  -39.9  -9.4  -2.2  -4.1  -1.8  0.0  -57.5
net operating income  115.1  28.5  -0.1  12.0  11.3  0.0  166.8
profit/loss on sale of investment properties  11.3  0.0  0.8  0.0  0.0  0.0  12.1
profit/loss on sale of trading properties  4.7  0.0  15.3  0.0  1.6  0.0  21.5
Valuation gains and losses  -57.4  -23.6  43.4  -6.0  7.7  0.0  -36.0
amortization of goodwill  0.0  0.0  -13.0  0.0  0.0  0.0  -13.0
administration and marketing expenses  -7.7  -2.1  -3.4  -4.7  -6.3  0.0  -24.2
other income and expenses  -0.9  0.0  0.0  0.0  0.0  0.0  -0.9

Operating profit 65.0 2.8 42.9 1.3 14.3 0.0 126.2 

financial income and expenses       -87.5  -87.5
Profit before taxes       -87.5  38.7
income taxes       -12.1  -12.1

Profit for the period      -99.6 26.6

capital expenditure  69.5  23.8  205.2  187.1  16.3  0.7  502.6
depreciation and amortization       -0.5  -0.5
Segment assets  2,004.9  462.8  198.7  258.3  60.6  181.5  3,166.8
Segment liabilities  18.7  13.5  2.2  7.3  0.6  43.6  85.9

The column ’Other’ contained in 2007, the year for comparison, the figures from the income statement of Ovenia Oy, which was a subsidiary then. On 24 January 2008 Sponda Plc’s 
holding in Ovenia Oy fell to 45 %. Since then the figures of Ovenia Oy have been consolidated as a single figure in the consolidated income statement on the line ’Share of result of 
associated companies’. Ovenia Oy’s figures are allocated to the Office and Retail Premises segment.

31 decemBeR 2007, meUR

total revenue  154.4  32.0  2.2  1.9  14.5  5.9  210.9
maintenance expenses and direct fund expenses  -40.6  -7.8  -2.2  -0.4  -4.5  -2.6  -58.1
net operating income  113.8  24.2  0.0  1.5  10.0  3.3  152.8
profit/loss on sale of investment properties  -0.5  1.7      1.2
profit/loss on sale of trading properties  20.7  0.0  15.4  0.0  -0.5  0.0  35.6
Valuation gains and losses 72.5  23.7  -3.3  0.0  0.0  0.0  92.9
administration and marketing expenses  -9.1  -2.6  -3.2  -1.9  -2.7  -6.4  -25.9
other income and expenses       0.1  0.1

Operating profit 197.4 47.0 8.9 -0.4 6.8 -3.0 256.7
financial income and expenses       -72.3  -72.3
Profit before taxes       -75.3  184.4
income taxes       -47.8  -47.8

Profit for the period      -123.1 136.6

capital expenditure  44.8  48.0  94.7  66.5  0.6  0.0  254.6
depreciation and amortization       -0.7  -0.7
Segment assets  1,910.9  337.1  278.1  77.2  35.1  260.1  2,898.5
Segment liabilities  5.2  1.0  9.0  0.0  2.8  70.5  88.5
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2. Geographical areas

the geographical segments are Helsinki metropolitan area, Rest 
of finland, and other, the latter comprising Russia and the Bal-
tic countries.

Segment assets and liabilities include those items directly  
attributable to a segment such as investment properties, 
trade payables and accrued expenses and deferred income 
allocated to the acquisition and maintenance of investment 
properties, provisions and other current liabilities. Unallocat-
ed items mainly comprise tax and financial items and items 
common to the Group as a whole; these are shown under 
”other items” in segment information. capital expenditures 
are acquisitions of investment properties, their development 
investments as well as renovations and tenant improvements 
to investment properties.

12
/20

08

12
/20

07

meUR 

total revenue   
Helsinki metropolitan area  170.0  158.3
Rest of finland  38.1  37.8
other  16.2  14.8

Group, total  224.3  210.9
 
capital expenditure  

Helsinki metropolitan area 234.9  175.7
Rest of finland 80.6  11.8
other 187.1  67.1

Group, total  502.6  254.6

Segment assets   
Helsinki metropolitan area  2,343.1  2,301.3 
Rest of finland  321.8  224.8
other  501.9  372.4

Group, total  3,166.8  2,898.5

3.Total revenue from properties
12

/20
08

12
/20

07

meUR 

Rental income and recoverables  210.8  193.4
interest income from finance lease agreements  0.3  0.3
Service income  0.0  6.1
fund management fees and share of fund profits  13.1  11.1
profit/loss on sale of investment properties  12.1  1.2
profit/loss on sale of trading properties  21.5  35.6
total  257.9  247.7

rental income

the expected rental income from existing leases is:

meUR

2009   200.8
2010 – 2013   464.4
2014 –   394.3
total   1,059.5

accruals are the current accruals from lease contracts less 
index increases. lease contracts signed for an indefinite pe-
riod are included up to the date of expiry stated in the con-
tract.

4. Service income, fund management fees  
and share of fund profits

20
08

20
07

meUR

fund management fees  8.5 7.8
Share of fund profits  4.7 3.3
total  13.1 11.1

5. Maintenance expenses

the line ’maintenance costs’ in the income statement includes 
eUR  0.9 million (2007: eUR 0.7 million) of maintenance ex-
penses for investment properties that have not accrued rent-
al income during the year. most of these investment proper-
ties are undeveloped land sites and development projects from 
which no rental income has been received yet.

6. Profit/loss on sale  
of investment properties

20
08

20
07

meUR

profit on sales  12.3  1.9
loss on sales  -0.2  -0.7
total  12.1  1.2
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7. Other operating income
20

08
20

07

meUR

Rent liability  0.0  0.1
Share of bankruptcy estate  0.2  0.3
other income  0.6  0.1
total  0.8  0.5

8.Other operating expenses
20

08
20

07

meUR

credit losses and uncertain receivables  0.6  0.0
other expenses  0.7  0.4
total  1.3  0.4

9. Auditor fees
20

08
20

07

meUR

authorized public accountants KpmG oy   
audit  0.2  0.2
tax consultancy  0.0  0.0
other service 0.2  0.5
  0.4  0.7

10. Employee benefit expenses  
and number of employees

20
08

20
07

meUR

management remuneration   
president and ceo  0.4  0.4
other executive Board members  0.9  0.6
Board of directors  0.3  0.3

incentive bonuses paid to management  0.7  1.1
Share-based payments to management  0.3  0.2
other wages and salaries  7.5  7.8
defined benefit pension plans  0.0  0.0
defined contribution pension plans  1.8  1.4
other social security costs  0.6  0.5
total  12.4  12.2

the salary and fees paid to Sponda plc’s president and ceo 
totalled eUR 462,000.00 (2007: 467,000.00).

in addition the president and ceo was paid a bonus un-
der the incentive scheme of eUR 361,000 in 2008 (2007: 
308,000.00).

the members of Sponda plc’s Board of directors were 
paid a monthly fee for their work on the Board, plus a fee 
for each meeting attended. the chairman of the Board was 
paid eUR 68,000.00 (2007: 64,000.00) for the year, the dep-
uty chairman eUR 46,000.00 (2007: 42,000.00) and the oth-
er members of the Board eUR 168,000.00 in total (2007: 
148,000.00).

the president and ceo is paid a full salary and he and the 
members of the executive Board also participate in the long-
term share-based incentive scheme for top management in-
troduced on 1 January 2006. any bonuses paid under this 
scheme are based on the company’s cash flow from opera-
tions per share and return on investment in the vesting pe-
riod. the bonuses, less taxes and other employer contribu-
tions, are used to purchase company shares for the person. 
the incentive scheme contains three annual vesting peri-
ods, each of which bears the condition of continuing in the 
company’s employment for two years. the shares may not 
be disposed of within two years of their receipt. the bo-
nus is paid annually.

main teRmS of incentiVe ScHeme

Grant date:   1.1.2008  1.1.2007  1.1.2006
issue date   1.1.2009  1.1.2008  1.1.2007
number  
of instruments granted*   123,565  74,613  28,767
Share price on issue date*   3.10  8.08  12.62
Vesting period ends   31.12.2008  31.12.2007  31.12.2006
Shares become  
free for disposal   31.12.2010  31.12.2009  31.12.2008
Settled as   Shares  Shares  Shares
 
* The 2008 figure is based on an estimate by management. Actual values may differ from 
the estimate.

20
08

20
07

20
06

cHanGeS in SHaRe BonUS dURinG tHe peRiod

Share bonus granted  
at start of the period   103,380  28,767  –
Bonuses granted in the period   123,565  74,613  28,767
Bonuses forfeited during the period   –  –  –
Bonuses that became free for disposal  
during the period   –  –  –
Share bonuses granted  
at end of the period   226,945  103,380  28,767
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Management’s pension obligations  
and termination benefits
the president and ceo of Sponda plc is entitled to retire on 
reaching 63 years of age and his pension is determined in ac-
cordance with the employee pensions act (tel).

according to the president’s contract of employment the 
period of notice of termination of employment is six months. 
Should the company terminate his contract of employment, 
the president is entitled to receive compensation correspond-
ing to 12 months’ salary.

the members of the executive Board are insured with a con-
tribution-based group pension insurance. Sponda plc makes an 
annual insurance payment until the member of the executive 
Board reaches the age of 63 years. in addition, the members of 
Sponda’s executive Board are entitled to participate in a volun-
tary group pension scheme. Under the terms of this scheme 
the accrued savings may be withdrawn between the ages of 
60 and 65 or as a supplementary pension in addition to the in-
dividual’s statutory earnings-related pension.

20
08

20
07

peRSonnel on aVeRaGe 

white collar, number of employees  137  217

11. Depreciation and amortization 
by asset item

20
08

20
07

meUR

property, plant and equipment   
Buildings and structures  0.2  0.2
machinery and equipment  0.2  0.2
other tangible assets  0.0  0.1

  0.5  0.5

intangible assets   
customer relationships  0.0  0.8
trademarks  0.0  0.1
technology  0.0  0.1
computer software  0.1  0.1

  0.1  1.1

total  0.5 1.6

in connection with the acquisition of Kapiteeli Group in 2006, 
eUR 5 million was allocated to the value of the customer 

accounts and trademark of and the technology developed 
by Kapiteeli’s subsidiary ovenia oy.  Sponda Group’s hold-
ing in ovenia oy fell to 45% on  24 January 2008, when the 
balance sheet values of the  customer accounts, trademark 
and technology were transferred to ”Holdings in associated 
companies”. the planned depreciation on these assets is not 
shown directly in the consolidated income statement but  it 
affects the Group’s result through the result of the associ-
ated companies.

12. Financial income and expenses
20

08
20

07

meUR

financial income

interest income     
loans and receivables  1.6  3.9

change in fair value     
Recognized at fair value through profit and loss  0.1  0.5

total  1.7  4.4

financial expenses
interest expenses  

interest expenses on liabilities  
recognized at amortized cost  -81.8  -69.1
interest rate derivatives subject  
to hedge accounting, ineffective portion  0.0  -0.1
other financial expenses,  
loan management expenses*  -6.9  -4.8

Sampo Bank’s suit for payment **  -0.1  -0.6
foreign exchange losses  0.0  -2.0
change in fair value   

Recognized at fair value through profit and loss  -0.3  -0.1
total  -89.2  -76.7

financial income and expenses, total -87.5 -72.3

* Other financial expenses include a change of EUR -5.8 (0.0) million in the fair value of 
interest rate options in hedge accounting and non-hedge accounting.  **  In a ruling issued 
on 19 January 2009, the helsinki court of appeal ordered sponda plc to pay interest, 
penal interest and court costs totalling EUR 7.6 million to Sampo Bank Plc based on a 
credit agreement. The decision is final unless appeal has been made by 20 March 2009.

The amount of Sampo Bank’s suit for payment, EUR 7.6  million, was recognized as an 
expense under provisions in the 2006  financial statements, so the ruling has no impact on 
Sponda’s result. EUR 0.6 million was recognized as an interest expense under provisions in 
2007 and EUR 0.1 million in 2008, so the total provision is EUR 8.3 million on 31 December 
2008. 
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13. Income taxes
20

08
20

07

meUR

current tax expense  1,3  0.4
deferred tax  10.8  47.4
total  12.1  47.8

Reconciliation between the income tax expense recognized in 
the income statement and the taxes calculated using the parent 
company’s domestic corporate tax rate of 26%:

20
08

20
07

meUR

Profit before taxes  38.7  184.4
income tax using the parent company’s  
domestic corporate tax rate  10.1  47.9
difference between tax rate in finland  
and in other countries  0.4  0.0
tax exempt income/non-deductible expenses  -0.5  2.4
Reversal of impairment losses of sold subsidiaries  0.0  1.4
Group adjustments in conjunction with sale  -1.3  –
amortization of goodwill  3.4  –
Utilization of tax losses from prior periods  -0.1  -14.9
current period losses  0.2  11.0
other items  0.1  0.0
tax expense in the income statement  12.1  47.8

14. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for 
the period attributable to the equity holders of the parent 
company by the weighted average number of shares out-
standing.

20
08

20
07

meUR

profit for the period attributable to  
the equity holders of the parent company  26.7  136.5
weighted average number of shares  
during the period (milj.)  111.0  107.8
Basic earnings per share (€/share)  0.24  1.27

there were no diluting instruments in 2008 and 2007.

15. Investment properties
20

08
20

07

meUR

fair value of investment properties 1 Jan.  2,534.9  2,455.1
acquisition of investment properties  210.6  115.1
other capital expenditure  
on investment properties  275.0  138.9
disposals of investment properties  -82.8  -277.0
Reclassifications to/from property,
plant and equipment  1.3  4.2
Reclassifications from trading properties  14.7  7.6
other transfers  -2.5  -1.9
valuation gains and losses  -43.7  92.9

fair value of investment properties 31 dec. 2,907.5 2,534.9

investment properties are properties held by the company for 
the purpose of earning rental revenue or for capital apprecia-
tion. Sponda has chosen the fair value method to measure its 
investment properties, recognizing changes in their fair values 
in the income statement. the value of the properties is cal-
culated by the company. Sponda’s property portfolio was as-
sessed in the final quarter by catella property oy.  
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yield ReQUiRementS USed to calcUlate tHe faiR 
 ValUeS of tHe inVeStment pRopeRtieS on 31 dec. 2008

Helsinki central Business district   5.2 – 7.2   –
Helsinki / Vantaa   5.5 – 8.5  6.5 – 8.7
espoo   6.85 – 8.25  7.9 – 8.5
Rest of finland   6.5 – 10.0  8.0 – 8.8
Russia   9.5 – 10.0  10.25
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yield ReQUiRementS USed to calcUlate tHe faiR  
ValUeS of tHe inVeStment pRopeRtieS on 31 dec. 2007

Helsinki central Business district   5.0 – 6.5   –
Helsinki / Vantaa   5.4 – 7.5  7.0 – 8.0
espoo   6.5 – 7.75  7.5 – 7.75
Rest of finland   6.3 – 8.0  –
Russia   –  –
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The Group’s most significant investment 
commitments  arise from the following properties
the current phase of the city-center project, construction 
of the underground service facilities for the city centre  service 
tunnel, progressed on schedule. the next phase  involves con-
struction of the office building, the retail premises on the third 
floor, and the light shaft into the shopping centre. Sponda and 
the tenant took the joint decision to postpone this work so 
that it will start at the earliest towards the end of 2009. for 
this reason, it is now estimated that the renovation of the city-
center complex will be completed in 2012 and the  total in-
vestment will be some eUR 110 million. Sponda is continuing 
with the underground work in 2009. 

Sponda announced on 20 december 2007 that it had 
 purchased the elovainio shopping centre under construction in 
ylöjärvi for eUR 62 million. the property has financing for the 
construction period, which Sponda has re-organized.  Sponda 
will pay for the property after the building is completed, in 
april 2009, when the final price for the property will be de-
termined. the shopping centre will have retail premises with 
a leasable area of 24,500 square metres and parking for 850 
vehicles. the property will be purchased fully leased and the 
main tenant will be K-citymarket.

Sponda is developing the Ratina shopping centre in tam-
pere and carrying out development projects in adjacent  areas. 
a 55,000 m² shopping centre is planned for the area, for which 

the total investment cost is estimated at eUR 200 million.   planning 
of the project is underway, and the final decision about the 
 investment has not been made.

the other major property development projects – the port-
Gate logistics complex in Vuosaari Harbour, the office building 
in Ruoholahti, the office building in Sörnäinen, and the retail 
property project in itäkeskus at the junction of itäväylä road and 
the Kehä i inner ringroad – were completed during 2008.

16. Investments in real estate funds
20

08
20

07

%

first top luxco i S.a.r.l  20.0  20.0
Sponda fund i Ky  46.1  46.1
Sponda fund ii Ky  43.7  –
yeSS Ky  60.0  60.0 

first top luxco i S.a.r.l. is a real estate fund registered in lux-
embourg that invests primarily in office and retail premises in 
medium-sized finnish towns. Sponda fund i Ky invests mainly 
in logistics properties outside the Helsinki metropolitan area. 
Sponda fund ii Ky invests mainly in logistics, warehouse and 
industrial properties in medium-sized cities in finland.

yeSS Ky is a fund established by Sponda plc and finnish Radio 
pension fund that is developing the forum Virium project.

17. Property, plant and equipment
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2008, meUR

acquisition cost 1 Jan.   3.1  9.1  1.3  1.9  2.7  18.1
increases   0.1  0.9  0.1   0.5  1.6
decreases     0.0  -1.2  -1.2  -2.4
Reclassifications to/from investment properties        0.0
other reclassifications        0.0
acquisition cost 31 dec.   3.2  10.0  1.3  0.7  2.0  17.3

accumulated depreciation 1 Jan.   –  -1.1  -0.8  -0.5  –  -2.4
accumulated depreciation on decreases      0.1    
depreciation for the period    -0.2  -0.2  0.0   -0.5 
accumulated depreciation 31 dec.   –  -1.4  -0.9  -0.4  –  -2.9 
 
carrying amount 31 dec.  3.2 8.6 0.4 0.3 2.0 14.5
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2007, meUR

acquisition cost 1 Jan.   3.1  12.9  1.3  1.1  3.0  21.4
increases    0.2  0.1  1.0  1.3  2.6
decreases     -0.1   -1.6  -1.7
Reclassifications to/from investment properties    -4.0   -0.2   -4.2
acquisition cost 31 dec.   3.1  9.1  1.3  1.9  2.7  18.1

accumulated depreciation 1 Jan.   –  -0.9  -0.6  -0.4  –  -1.9
depreciation for the period    -0.2  -0.2  -0.1   -0.5
accumulated depreciation 31 dec.   –  -1.1  -0.8  -0.5  –  -2.4

carrying amount 31 dec.  3.1 8.0 0.5 1.4 2.7 15.7

18. Goodwill

the acquisition of Kapiteeli oy in 2006 resulted in goodwill of 
eUR  27.5 million being allocated to certain planned develop-
ment projects, which were considered to have great potential 
to rise in value as the projects were completed. Some of these 
were completed during 2008 and so they are included in cal-
culations of fair value. the goodwill allocated to the completed 
projects has been written down corresponding to the change 

19. Other intangible assets 
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2008, meUR

acquisition cost 1 Jan.   0.8  0.1  4.1  0.3  0.6  5.9
increases   0.0  -0.1     -0.1
other transfers*   –  –  -4.1  -0.3  -0.6  -5.0
acquisition cost 31 dec.   0.8  0.0  –  –  –  0.8

accumulated amortization 1 Jan.   -0.7  –  -0.9  -0.1  -0.1  -1.8
other transfers*     0.9  0.1  0.1  1.1
amortization for the period   -0.1      -0.1
accumulated amortization 31 dec.   -0.8  –  –  –  –  -0.8

carrying amount 31 dec.  0.0 0.0 – – – 0.0

* A EUR 5.0 million adjustment to the fair value of other intangible assets arose in 2006 when Sponda acquired Kapiteeli Group. The adjustment to fair value was allocated to value of 
the customer accounts and trademark of and the technology developed by Kapiteeli’s subsidiary Ovenia Oy. Sponda Group’s holding in Ovenia Oy fell to 45% on 24 January 2008, when 
the balance sheet values of the customer accounts, trademark and technology were transferred to  ”Holdings in associated companies”.

in fair value during 2008 and it has an impact on the result 
of eUR 13.0 million. the write-down is shown in the income 
statement on its own line ”amoritzation of goodwill”. 
the remaining eUR 14.5 million of goodwill has been tested by 
comparing the future cash flows of the asset containing good-
will to the carrying value of the goodwill. the testing shows 
that the goodwill is not subject to impairment.
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2007, meUR

acquisition cost 1 Jan.   0.8  0.1  4.1  0.3  0.6  5.9
increases   –  –  –  –  –  –
acquisition cost 31 dec.   0.8  0.1  4.1  0.3  0.6  5.9

accumulated amortization 1 Jan.   -0.6  –  -0.1  –  –  -0.7
amortization for the period   -0.1   -0.8  -0.1  -0.1  -1.1
accumulated amortization 31 dec.   -0.7  –  -0.9  -0.1  -0.1  -1.8

carrying amount 31 dec.  0.1 0.1 3.3 0.2 0.5 4.1

20. Finance lease receivables
20

08
20

07

meUR

Carrying amount of finance lease receivables  2.7  2.7

Gross rental income  15.3  15.6
Unguaranteed residual value  4.0  3.9
Gross investment in lease contracts  19.2  19.5

Unearned financial income  -16.5 -16.8
net investment in lease contracts  2.7  2.7
present value of unguaranteed residual value  0.0  –
Present value of minimum lease payments receivable 2.7  2.7

20
09

to
ta

l

20
14

 –

20
10

 –2
01

3

teRm StRUctURe in 2008   

Gross investment  
in lease contracts  0.3  1.7  17.3  19.2
present value of minimum 
lease payments receivable  0.3  1.2  1.2  2.7

two long-term lease contracts on two properties are 
 classified as finance leases. part of the premises in each 
 property are leased.

21. Holdings in associated companies
20

08
20

07

meUR

transfer from subsidiary company shares  3.7  
Share of result for period  -0.4  
increases   
decreases   
dividends received   
total 3.3 –

the carrying value of associated companies on 31 decem-
ber 2008 includes eUR 2.9 million of intangible rights allo-
cated in connection with the acquisition.

infoRmation aBoUt tHe GRoUp’S aSSociated 
company, meUR

ovenia oy
domicile     Helsinki
assets     3.9
liabilities    1.8
total revenue    10.6
Result for period    1.3
Holding     45.10

22. Non-current receivables
20

08
20

07

meUR

non-interest-bearing receivables  2.1  1.6
transaction price receivables  1.4  0.0
interest rate derivatives  1.0  24.7
defined benefit pension plan assets* 0.1  0.1
total   4.7  26.4

* see note 29

long-term non-interest-bearing receivables are the value 
added tax receivables of the Russian companies.
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23. Deferred taxes
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meUR

deferred tax assets
provisions   3.9  -1.7     2.2
tax losses carried forward   36.6  -22.6  11.1  0.0  -0.1  25.0
tax receivables from result for period   11.1  13.8  -11.1    13.8
assessments at fair value:        0.0

interest rate swaps     -2.6  9.6   7.0
interest rate options    1.3  -1.7  0.8   0.4
forward exchanges    0.0     0.0
trading properties   5.4  -0.2  2.1    7.2

other items/transfers   -0.1  1.1  1.0  -1.1   0.9

total  56.9 -8.3 -1.2 9.3 -0.1 56.6

Deferred tax liabilities
cumulative depreciation differences   20.7  4.7    -1.0  24.3
assessments at fair value:

investment properties   188.3  -0.4  0.6  -2.2  -3.8  182.5
funds    2.0     2.0
trading properties   0.2  -0.2     0.0
associated company shares   1.0  -0.4     0.6
interest rate swaps   2.6   -2.6    0.0
interest rate options   1.7   -1.7    0.0

equity bond expenses   1.9   -0.4   1.5
other financial items   0.1  -0.1  0.0    0.0
other items/transfers   -2.0  -0.2  5.8  0.0   3.6

total  212.6 7.3 2.1 -2.5 -4.9 214.6
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deferred tax assets
provisions   5.9  -2.0     3.9
tax losses carried forward   102.3  -49.8  -16.1   0.2  36.6
tax receiuvables from result for period     11.1    11.1
assessments at fair value:        0.0

interest rate swaps   2.2  -2.2     0.0
interest rate options        0.0
forwards exchanges        0.0
trading properties     5.4    5.4

other items/transfers   0.1  -0.1  -0.1    -0.1

total  110.5 -54.1 0.3 0.0 0.2 56.9

Deferred tax liabilities
cumulative depreciation differences   17.5  3.2     20.7
assessments at fair value:        

investment properties   178.0  8.6  1.4   0.3  188.3
funds        0.0
trading properties   17.1  -17.1  0.2    0.2
intangible assets   1.3  -0.3     1.0
interest rate swaps   0.6    2.0   2.6
interest rate options   4.0  -3.0  0.1  0.6   1.7

equity bond expenses        0.0
other financial items     0.1    0.1
other items/transfers   0.2  1.9  -4.1    -2.0

total  218.7 -6.7 -2.3 2.6 0.3 212.6

at 31 december 2008 the Group had tax loss carry-forwards totalling eUR 9 million (eUR 21 million in 2007) and impair-
ment losses not deducted in taxation of eUR 107 million (eUR 111 million in 2007), on which the Group has not calculat-
ed tax receivables because utilization of these items is uncertain.
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24. Trading properties

trading properties comprise 65 properties that are owned 
mainly through real estate or housing limited companies.

 20
08

20
07

meUR

trading properties at start of the period  37.2  231.1
divested trading properties  -4.5  -186.3
increases  –  –
Reclassifications as investment properties  -3.1  -7.6
trading properties at end of the period  29.5  37.2
 
Sales income from divested trading properties  29.2  221.9
carrying amount of divested trading properties  -7.6  -186.3
Gains/losses on disposal of trading properties  21.5  35.6 

25. Trade and other receivables
 20

08
20

07

meUR

Current non-interest-bearing receivables
trade receivables  10.1  5.3
other receivables  19.3  25.2
other receivables  0.0  74.9
tax receivables  3.0  0.0
other prepaid expenses and accrued income 24.3  25.3
total  56.7  130.7

other prepaid expenses and accrued income
from interest and financial items  11.5  6.3
taxes  0.7  0.0
from other items  12.2  19.0
total  24.3  25.3

26. Cash and cash equivalents
 20

08
20

07

meUR

Bank accounts  16.0  27.4
liquid investment  –  –
total  16.0  27.4

27. Capital and reserves 
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31 dec. 2006    79‚307  79.3  159.5  –  238.8
Share issue    31‚723  31.7  –  209.7  241.4
31 dec. 2007    111‚030  111.0  159.5  209.7  480.2
change        
31 dec. 2008    111‚030  111.0  159.5  209.7  480.2
 

the shares have a nominal value of 1 euro. all shares issued 
are fully paid.

Shareholders’ equity comprises the following reserves: 
fair value reserve
the fair value reserve contains the changes in fair values of 
the derivatives used to hedge cash flow.
revaluation reserve
the revaluation reserve contains the fair value measurement 

of the property in own use which has been reclassified to 
investment properties.
other equity reserve
the other equity fund comprises the equity bond less the 
costs of raising the bond. 
dividends
after the closing date the Board of directors has proposed 
that no dividend be paid for 2008.
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28. Non-current interest-bearing liabilities
20

08
20

07

meUR

notes and bonds  249.8  258.3
loans from financial institutions  1,294.0  796.7
loans denominated in foreign currency  0.0  1.4
total  1,543.8  1,056.4

see note 33. 

29. Net pension asset in the balance sheet

the defined benefit pension asset in the balance sheet is 
 determined as follows:

20
08

20
07

meUR

present value of funded obligations  0.4  0.5
fair value of plan assets  -0.4  -0.5
surplus  –  –

Unrecognized actuarial gains (+) and losses (-) -0.1  -0.1

Net asset (-) in the balance sheet -0.1 -0.1

items recognized in the income statement:
20

08
20

07

meUR

current service costs  –  –
interest costs  –  –
expected return on plan assets  –  –
past service cost  –  –
actuarial gains (-) and losses (+)  –  –
total  –  –

actual return on plan assets totalled eUR -145,000 in 2008 
(2007: eUR -40,000).

changes in the present value of the obligation:
20

08
20

07

meUR

liability for defined benefit obligations  
at beginning of period  0.5  0.5
Service costs  0.0  0.0
interest costs  0.0  0.0
actuarial gains (-) and losses (+)  -0.2  0.0
past service costs  –  –
Liability for defined benefit obligations 
at end of period  0.4  0.5

changes in the fair values of the plan assets:
20

08
20

07

meUR

fair value of plan assets at beginning of period  0.5  0.5
expected return on plan assets  0.0  0.0
actuarial gains (+) and losses (-)  -0.2  0.0
contributions paid by the employer  0.0  0.0
  0.4  0.5
Information is not available on the plan assets.

actuarial assumptions on the balance sheet date:
20

08
20

07

%

discount rate, (%)  6.25  5.25
exptected return on plan assets, (%)  6.25  5.25
expected rate of salary increases (%)  3.50   3.50
inflation (%)  2.00  2.00

the Group expects to pay eUR 50,000 to the plan in 2009.



sponda plc annual report 2008    109

30. Provisions
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provisions 1 Jan.  4.6  2.2  8.2  15.0  22.7
increases in provisions   0.3  0.1  0.4  0.6
decreases in provisions  -4.6  -2.2   -6.8  -5.4
provisions used      -2.8
Reversals of unused provisions     -0.1
provisions 31 dec.  0.0  0.3  8.3  8.7  15.0

the soil restoration provision was mainly for any future soil 
restoration costs that Sponda would have to bear for land 
areas it has sold. Sponda’s assessment on 31 december 2008 
is that it will not incur major costs for soil restoration, so it 
has cancelled the provision. 

provisions were also entered for the dispute between 
Sponda plc and Sampo Bank plc, on which the court of ap-
peal gave its ruling on 19 January 2009. (see note 36)

31. Other liabilities
20

08
20

07

meUR

note and bonds  8.6  137.2
loans from financial institutions  140.3  157.1
foreign currency loans  0.0  –
commercial papers sold  135.6  312.0
total  284.5  606.3

see note 33.

32. Trade and other payables
20

08
20

07

meUR

advances received  7.8  4.3
trade payables  2.8  13.4
transaction price liabilities  0.0  10.4
other current liabilities  40.6  11.1
accrued expenses and deferred income  34.8  34.2
total  85.9  73.4

accrued expenses and deferred income 
interest and financial items  2.0  24.6
personnel expenses  3.7  4.3
taxes  0.2  –
investments  25.0  –
other items  3.8  5.3
total 34.8  34.2

33. financial instruments

Financial risk management
the purpose of risk management in Sponda is to minimize 
the unfavourable impacts of changes in the financial markets 
on the company’s profits and cash flow. Sponda plc’s Board of 
directors decides on the goals for risk management, defines 
the risk management policy and is responsible for monitoring 
risk management. the company’s treasury unit identifies and 
assesses risks and is responsible for practical risk management 
measures within the framework of the risk management poli-
cy. the internal audit is responsible for checking the effective-
ness of the risk management system. Regular reports are made 
to the Board about financing. Sponda’s main financial risks are 
the interest rate risk, risks concerning access to financing, the 
credit risk and the exchange rate risk. the Group’s financing 
activities are centrally handled by its treasury unit, which is re-
sponsible for financial risk management. 

1. Interest rate risk 
the Group mainly uses floating rate loans in financing its 

operations, and these are the source of the company’s in-
terest rate risk. the company may if it wishes also use fixed-
rate loans. the Group uses interest rate derivatives to re-
duce growth in future interest flows caused by a rise in short-
term market rates. with interest rate swaps Sponda pays a 
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fixed-rate interest and obtains floating-rate interest. interest 
rate options are bought.

according to the risk management policy, the aggregate 
nominal value (hedging rate) of the Group’s fixed-rate loans 
with a maturity of more than one year and of the interest rate 
derivatives used to manage interest rate risk must be at least 
60% and at most 100% of the Group’s interest-bearing liabil-
ities. the Group’s hedging rate was 58%. the duration of the 
interest-bearing debt portfolio must be at least one year. the 
duration of the Group’s portfolio was 1.7 years. 

derivative contracts have been made for the purpose of 
hedging the loan portfolio and they are valued in the financial 
statement at fair value.  the fair value represents the result if 
the derivative position had been closed on the balance sheet 
date. the fair values presented are based on assessments by 
the counterparty banks. in addition Sponda plc checks the size 
of the assessments using assessing methods that are generally 
available on the market.  the fair values and nominal values of 
interest rate derivatives are presented in table 33.3. 

interest rate derivatives have been defined as cash flow 
hedging or as derivatives that do not meet the criteria for 
hedge accounting. Sponda applies group hedging, in which the 
behaviour of the loan portfolio is compared with the interest 
rate derivative portfolio. the interest rate derivative portfolio 
is divided into interest rate options and interest rate swaps. in 
addition Sponda may use forward rate agreements and inter-
est rate futures, to which hedge accounting is not applied.

amounts recognized in the result and shareholders’ equity 
during the financial year are presented in the annual report 
section ‘changes in the Group’s shareholders’ equity’.  Hedge 
accounting is applied to interest rate derivatives throughout 
their period of validity, if they meet the criteria for hedge ac-
counting as stated in iaS 39.

the Group analyzes its interest rate position by simulating 
changes in market interest rates.  the treasury unit calculates a 
forecast of interest expenses for the coming year and its inter-
est rate sensitivity. the following assumptions have been made 
when calculating the sensitivity to change in interest rates: 

   the short-term market rates at the stated balance sheet •
date change by one percentage point 
 the calculation includes interest-bearing liabilities •
 the calculation includes current derivative contracts. •

the calculation aims to measure the impact of short-term 
market rates on the interest expenses of the company’s loans 

and correspondingly on the interest income to be obtained 
from interest rate derivatives or on the interest costs to be 
paid in the following year. the figures are presented net.  the 
financial instruments used in the calculation are accounted 
for in accordance with the ifRS definitions mentioned n the 
company’s accounting principles for the financial statements.  
the interest rates used are the official interest rates quoted 
on the last banking day on the balance sheet date. 

in its 2008 financial statements Sponda plc applied hedge 
accounting to 98% of interest rate derivatives, compared 
to about 94% in 2007. in the sensitivity analysis, changes in 
the fair value of interest rate derivatives to which hedge 
 accounting is not applied are presented in full through profit  
and loss. the Group’s interest-bearing liabilities increased 
during 2008 by about eUR 170 million. 

sensitivity to interest rate risk
the effect of a change of one percentage point in short-
term market rates on the company’s result and fair value 
reserve.
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one percentage  
point rise in market rates  -7  +22  -5  +33
one percentage point  
fall in market rates  +9  -23  +11  -31

the calculation does not include the impact of deferred taxes.

2. Liquidity and refinancing risk
the Group seeks continuously to assess and monitor the 
amount of financing required by its business operations  to 
ensure the sufficiency of liquid funds for financing purposes  
and to repay maturing loans. the risk related to access to 
finance is reduced by making financial contracts with sev-
eral financial sources and using a variety of financial instru-
ments. the Group seeks to spread the maturity of its new 
borrowings  so that as loans mature, the amount needing refi-
nancing each year remains stable. tables 33.4 and 33.5 show 
the maturity analysis based on the Group’s agreements. the 
average loan period of the Group’s loans on 31 december 
2008 was 3.0 years (31 december 2007: 2.6 years). 
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for short-term financing purposes, the company uses a 
commercial paper programme. the size of the commercial 
paper programme is eUR 350 million. the Group’s loans 
maturing in 2009 total some eUR 285 million. commercial 
papers account for eUR 136 million of this and credit lim-
its taken, forming a reserve for the commercial paper pro-
gramme, for eUR 135 million. despite the weaker state of 
the commercial paper market, Sponda considers that it will 
be able to renew some of the commercial papers that are 
maturing.

the Group assures its liquidity with sufficient credit lim-
its and bank account limits. a reserve for the commercial 
paper programme is provided at the moment by unused 
short-term credit limits, which at the balance sheet date to-
talled eUR 115 million. the company considers that it will 
be able to renew the credit limits that mature in 2009. in 
addition, the Group had unused bank account limits of eUR 
10 million.”cash surpluses are invested in short-term mon-
ey market instruments or bank deposits in accordance with 
the financial policy confirmed by the Board. on 31 decem-
ber 2008 the Group’s cash and cash equivalents totalled eUR 
16 million.

in addition, the risks relating to access to finance are re-
duced by maintaining the company’s reputation as a trust-
worthy debtor. Sponda’s financial contracts contain normal 
covenants to protect the creditors, which concern for ex-
ample the equal status of financiers, certain financial indi-
cators, and the use of collateral. the most important cov-
enants used are  

 interest coverage ratio (eBitda/net interest cost) the •
acceptable minimum ratio of which is 1.75 
 equity ratio, the determined minimum ratio of which •

is 28%.

3. credit risk
credit risk arises from the possibility that the counterpar-
ty in a contract fails to fulfil their obligations as given in the 
contract. the Group’s most significant credit risks at the bal-
ance sheet date arose from investments in the money mar-
kets, from derivative contracts, and from rent receivables, 
selling price receivables and trade receivables.  the Group 
has no major concentrations of receivables or credit risks.    
to avoid risks from counterparties, the Group uses only fi-
nancially solid banks with a good credit rating as counter-

parties in its money market investments and derivative con-
tracts. the banks’ credit rating must be classified as at least 
a- by S&p (or a similar credit rating company). 

Sponda plc may invest in the commercial papers issued 
by well-known, financially solid companies operating in fin-
land.  Sponda plc’s Board of directors decides on accept-
able counterparties, on counterparty limits and on the per-
mitted financial instruments. in derivative trading, Sponda plc 
observes the stipulations given by iSda (international Swaps 
and derivatives association, inc.) or the finnish Bankers as-
sociation with counterparties. the maximum amount of the 
credit risk is the carrying amount of the financial assets and 
the positive fair value of derivatives.

the risk arising from tenants is managed by analyzing the 
creditworthiness of tenants before leases are signed, by re-
quiring rent deposits, and by the monthly collection of rent. 
the business units responsible for leasing properties are re-
sponsible for arranging collateral for rents. the maximum 
amount of the risk is the total carrying amount of the receiv-
ables less the amount of the collateral. collateral for rent is 
mainly bank deposits or bank guarantees.  ovenia oy mon-
itors the Group’s rent receivables. 

the total amount of rent receivables on the balance sheet 
date was eUR 1.4 million. the total rent unpaid for more 
than three months was eUR 0.1 million. the Group record-
ed credit losses of eUR 0.4 million for rent receivables in 
2008. the Group recognizes a final credit loss when a tenant 
is found to be without means in the debt collection process 
or when the company’s share of a bankruptcy is confirmed. 
the Group uses external well-known external debt-collec-
tion firms to collect receivables.

the collateral for a selling price receivable is almost al-
ways a real security. the real security for selling price receiv-
ables is typically real estate mortgages for the sold property 
or shares. the Group had no selling price receivables at the 
balance sheet date. the total amount of trade receivables 
at the balance sheet date excluding rent and selling price re-
ceivables was eUR 8.6 million. the Group considers the risk 
from trade receivables to be small.

in addition the company has given guarantees as security 
for the commitments of the property companies it owns. 
the guarantees are typically guarantees relating to the con-
struction phase of a new company, in which the beneficia-
ry is almost always the city. the amount of the guarantees is 
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small in proportion to the carrying amount of the proper-
ties owned. the guarantees given are not expected to cause 
significant costs to the Group.

4. currency risk
the Group has international operations in Russia.  changes in 
the exchange rate between the Russian rouble and the euro 
and between the US dollar and the euro may affect Sponda  
Group’s financial position and operations. the Group is  exposed 
to currency risk since balance sheet items for  foreign subsidiar-
ies and revenue and expenses from properties  are translated 
into the business currency of the parent company, into euros.

Sponda’s Russian companies receive their rents monthly 
in US dollars, in Russian roubles or in euros. the companies 
pay most of their expenses in Russian roubles. USd-denom-
inated net cash flows from lease agreements are some USd 
+14 million annually and (eUR 10 million) and RUB-denom-
inated net cash flows some RUB 52 million (eUR 1.3 million). 
in accordance with the Board’s decision, Sponda hedges for-
eign currency denominated future net cash flows for a period 
of six months. the company may use currency denominated 
 forwards, options and currency swaps in hedging. one cur-
rency derivative will mature and be renewed in each month 
during the next six months, so that a total corresponding to 
the net position for six months is always effective.

on the balance sheet date the company had currency 
 forwards to the value of USd 7 million to hedge the USd net 
cash flows. incoming cash flows denominated in Russian  roubles 
and outgoing rouble-denominated expenses are more or less 
equal, so it has not been considered necessary to hedge this net 
cash flow. the net euro-denominated positon is not hedged. 
the company does not apply hedge accounting as defined in 
iaS 39 to currency derivatives. changes in the fair values of 
currency derivatives are recognized in the income statement. in 
accordance with the Board’s decision, Sponda does not hedge 
the translation risk from Russian companies. if the euro/USd 
exchange rate changed 10% from that on the balance sheet 
date, the change in the fair value of the forwards would be 
recognized in full through profit and loss, and would be some 
eUR +/- 0.5 million. in fact the company can, at the same time 
as the currency derivative matures monthly, sell the net cash 
flow based on the roughly USd 1.2 million rental  income, which 
would have an impact on the result (some eUR -/+ 0.1 million) 
opposite to that of the currency forward. 

on the balance sheet date, 31 december 2008, the Group 
had no loans denominated in foreign currency. the Group has 
a receivable denominated in Russian roubles, with a par value in 
euros of eUR 2.1 million. the Group finances its capital expen-
diture in Russia with internal loans denominated in euros.

5. managing the equity structure
the objective of managing the Group’s equity structure is to 
optimize the equity structure in relation to prevailing mar-
ket conditions at any particular time. the goal is an equity 
structure that best assures conditions for the Group’s long-
term strategic operations in all circumstances.

factors affecting the Group’s equity structure, in addition 
to the result, include capital expenditure, asset sales, dividend 
payments, equity-based facilities and assessment at fair value. 
in June 2008 Sponda issued a eUR 130 million equity bond 
(hybrid bond) to finnish institutional investors. the bond is 
treated in the ifRS financial statements entirely as equity. 
the bond improves the company’s solvency.

”Sponda plc’s Board has decided that the Group’s long-
term equity ratio should be 33%. on 31 december 2008 
the equity ratio was 32%. the Group’s equity ratio at the end 
of 2007 was also 32%. Sponda’s net interest margin on 31 
 december 2008 was 1.9. Sponda Group’s interest -bearing  
liabilities increased during 2008 by eUR 167 million and at  
the end of 2008 totalled eUR 1,828 million. Sponda Group 
sold property assets during 2008 for altogether eUR 123 mil-
lion. with the funds received it paid off some of its loans and 
financed property development investments. the  formula 
for calculating the equity ratio is shown in the annual report 
under ‘calculation of financial ratios.’

the Group’s capital structure and equity ratio were as 
follows:

20
08

20
07

meUR 

interest-bearing liabilities  1,828  1,663
cash, funds in bank   
and interest-bearing receivables  16  102
interest-bearing net liabilities  1,812  1,561
Shareholders’ equity, total  1,003  935
Balance sheet total  3,167  2,899
equity ratio, %  32  32
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33.1 Carrying amounts of financial assets  
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2008 Balance SHeet item, meUR

Non-current financial assets
non-current receivables    3.7    3.7  3.7
derivative contracts   0.0    1.0  1.0  1.0
Current financial assets
derivative contracts   0.0     0.0  0.0
trade and other receivables    29.3    29.3  29.3
cash and cash equivalents    16.0    16.0  16.0
Carrying amount by category   0.0  49.0  0.0  1.0  50.0  50.0

Non-current financial liabilities
interest-bearing liabilities     1,543.8   1,543.8  1,493.9
derivative contracts      26.3  26.3  26.3
Current financial liabilities
interest-bearing liabilities     284.5   284.5  284.2
derivative contracts   -0.0    0.7  0.7  0.7
trade and other payables     16.6   16.6  16.6
Carrying amount by category   -0.0  0.0  1 844.9  27.0  1 871.9  1 821.7

2007 Balance SHeet item, meUR

Non-current financial assets
non-current receivables    1.7    1.7  1.7
derivative contracts   0.1    24.6  24.7  24.7
Current financial assets
trade and other receivables    105.3    105.3  105.3
cash and cash equivalents    27.4    27.4  27.4
Carrying amount by category   0.1  134.4   24.6  159.1  159.1

Non-current financial liabilities
interest-bearing liabilities     1,056.4   1,056.4  1,057.5
Current financial liabilities 
interest-bearing liabilities     606.3   606.3  606.3
derivative contracts        
trade and other payables     34.9   34.9  34.9
Carrying amount by category       1,697.6   1,697.6  1,698.7

the credit risk for financial receivables is at most the carrying amount of the receivables.
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33.2 The Group’s interest-bearing liabilities 
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lonG-teRm liaBilitieS, meUR

Bonds     249.8  241.1  258.3  258.1
loans from financial institutions     1,294.0  1,252.8  796.7  797.7
foreign currency loans     0.0  0.0  1.4  1.4
total     1,543.8  1,493.9  1,056.4  1,057.3
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Bonds     8.6  8.6  137.2  137.4
loans from financial institutions     275.9  275.6  469.1  469.1
foreign currency loans     0.0  0.0   
total     284.5  284.2  606.3  606.5
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BReaKdown of GRoUp’S foReiGn cURRency loanS, meUR

loans in Russian rouble     0.0  0.0  1.4  RUB 50.9 milj.
total foreign currency loans     0.0  0.0  1.4  

the fair values of bonds are based on market prices.
the fair values of loans from financial institutions and of 

commercial papers are calculated using margins at which cor-
responding loans could have been refinanced on the closing 

date. the estimated margins are based on the estimates of 
company management.

due to the exceptional state of the market, the estimate 
for long-term loans is subject to uncertainty.
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 interest rate derivatives        
interest rate swaps     -27.0  915.0  10.0  660.0
interest rate caps, bought     1.0  187.5  14.7  557
forward rate agreements     –  –  0.0  50.0

foreign currency derivatives        
currency swaps     0  5.1  –  –

the company has entered into interest rate derivatives to 
hedge the loan portfolio and currency derivatives to hedge 
the currency risk.

derivatives are valued in the financial statements at fair 
value. the fair value represents the result that would have 

arisen if the derivative position had been closed at the bal-
ance sheet date. the fair value is calculated in the manner 
generally approved in the market. Sponda uses an external 
valuer for valuations. 
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33.4 Maturity of non-current liabilities
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33.4 matURity of non-cURRent liaBilitieS 31.12.2008, meUR

Bonds  8.6  100.0  150.0      
loans from financial institutions  5.3  50.8  356.3  505.0  225.0  25.0  133.8
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matURity of non-cURRent liaBilitieS 31.12.2007, meUR

Bonds   137,0  8.6  100.0  150.0    
loans from financial institutions   15.0  19.1   200.0  480.0  100.0 

the average interest rate of the total loan portfolio was   
4.6% (4.6) including derivatives, and the average maturity  
was 3.0 (2.6) years.

Shown here is the maturity of non-current liabilities, show-
ing the nominal value when the loan was taken.

Sponda Plc’s most significant loans
Syndicated Credit Facility Agreement
in october 2008 Sponda plc signed an agreement for a 
3-year eUR 150 million syndicated credit facility. the facili-
ty was used to refinance bonds that matured and long-term 
loans. the credit facility is unsecured.

Bilateral loans
Sponda plc signed an agreement in march 2008 with dans-
ke Bank a/S, Helsinki Branch for a 7-year eUR 150 million 
credit facility and an agreement with ilmarinen mutual pen-
sion insurance company for a 7-year eUR 50 million credit 
facility. the loans were used to finance the company’s prop-
erty development and Russian investments. the credit facil-
ities are unsecured. 

Bilateral loans
Sponda plc signed an agreement in february 2008 with 
Swedbank for a  5-year eUR 100 million credit facility and 
an agreement with oKo Bank for a 7-year eUR 50 million 
credit facility. the loans were used to finacne the compa-
ny’s property development investments. the credit facili-
ties are unsecured. 

Bilateral loan
Sponda plc signed an agreement in november 2007 with 
Bank dnB noRd a/S for a 5-year eUR 100 million credit 
facility. the loan was used to refinance the company’s loan 
portfolio, and it replaced credit facilities raised in 2002 and 
2003. the loan was unsecured.

DualTranche Syndicated Credit Facility Agreement
in June 2007 Sponda plc signed an agreement for a five year 
syndicated credit facility for a total of eUR 350 million. the fa-
cility was used to refinance the remainder of the short-term 
commercial paper raised in december to finance Sponda’s 
Kapiteeli acquisition. the loan  was unsecured. 

MultiTranche Syndicated Credit Facility
Sponda plc signed in april 2006 a eUR 300 million multi-
tranche syndicated credit facility. the facility comprises a 
5-year eUR 100 million credit limit and two eUR 100 mil-
lion syndicated credit instalments: one for 5 years and the 
other for 7 years. the maturity dates are 5 april 2011 and 
5 april 2013. the credit facility is unsecured. 

Bonds
in april 2007 Sponda plc issued a private-placement bond 
of eUR 150 million to domestic institutional investors. the 
loan period is 4 years. the loan is floating-rate,  and the 
bond’s coupon was confirmed as the three-month euribor 
plus 0.40%. no request was made for listing for the bond. 
the bond was part of the refinancing of the short-term loan 
raised for the Kapiteeli acquisition. the bond is unsecured. 



116    sponda plc annual report 2008

33.5 Cash flows for repayments and financing expenses for financial liabilities based on loan contracts

cash flows for repayments and financing expenses for financial liabilities 
based on loan contracts on 31 december 2008 were as follows:
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meUR

Bonds  20  108  153      
loans from financial institutions  195  94  392  533  233  29  135
commercial papers  136        
interest rate derivatives        

- in hedge accounting, net  0  9  6  4  2  1  1
- not in hedge counting, net  0       

currency derivatives        
- currency forwards not included  
in hedge accountingt, net  0       

trade payables  3       
other liabilities  14       
 367  210  550  537  235  29  135

cash flows for repayments and financing expenses for financial liabilities 
based on loan contracts on 31 december 2007 were as follows:
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Bonds   157  21  110  154    
loans from financial institutions   212  56  42  236  504  103 
commercial papers   312       
interest rate derivatives        

- in hedge accounting, net   10  9  8  5  2  1
- not in hedge counting, net   0      

trade payables   13      
other liabilities   21      
  725  86  160  395  506  104 
 

Sponda issued two notes in april 2005 totalling eUR 100 
million. the annual coupon of the eUR 20 million fixed-rate 
notes was confirmed as 3.75%. the coupon of the eUR 80 
million floating-rate notes was confirmed as six-month eu-
ribor plus 0.60%. the notes mature on 8 april 2010. the 
facility is unsecured.

Hybrid bond
in June 2008 Sponda issued a eUR 130 million equity bond 
(hybrid bond) to finnish institutional investors. the bond has 

no maturity, but Sponda is entitled to redeem the  bond in 
five years time. the bond will be treated in Sponda’s ifRS fi-
nancial statements in its entirety as equity. the hybrid loan 
improves the company’s solvency. the loan is subordinat-
ed to the company’s other debt instruments. the bond has 
been publicly listed. the loan has a coupon of 8.75%. the 
interest on the bond is paid if the shareholders’ meeting de-
cides to pay a dividend. if no dividend is paid, the company 
decides separately on whether to pay the interest. Unpaid 
interest accumulates.
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34. Collaterals and contingent liabilities
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loans from financial institutions, covered by collateral       50.3  12.1

mortgages       109.2  81.9
carrying amount of pledged shares       17.0  0.0
Guarantees       57.6  0.0
collateral, total       183.8  81.9
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commitmentS aRiSinG fRom land leaSe contRactS, meUR

lease liabilities     44.6  28.1  –  –
mortgages     3.0  2.2  –  –
Guarantees     7.3  7.5  7.3  7.5
total     54.9  37.8  7.3  7.5
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opeRatinG leaSeS, meUR

contractual maturities on lease contracts:
during the following financial year     0.4  0.5  0.4  0.5
due after the following year     0.5  0.7  0.5  0.7
total     0.9  1.2  0.9  1.2

operating leases consist of leases for vehicles and office 
equipment.
the leases have lengths of 3 – 5 years and they have no 
redemption obligations.

other commitments

VAT reductions made on renovation investments
liabilities in accordance with §33 of the Vat act have 
been calculated for all Group companies and they have an 
 aggregate value of meUR 50.4 (88.3).

Interest on hybrid bond
accumulated on the hybrid bond at the balance sheet date 
was eUR 5.9 million. (See note 33.4)
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35. Related party transactions

related party
the related parties of Sponda Group are the parent company , 
subsidiary and associated companies, and joint ventures.

other related parties are the Board of directors,  members 
of the executive team, the president and ceo, and close mem-
ber of theirs families, as well as the finnish State, which owns 
through Spondium oy 34.3% of the shares of  Sponda plc.

the Group’s parent and subsidiary relationships are 
 presented in note 37.

the following related party transactions were carried out:

20
08

20
07

manaGement employee BenefitS, meUR

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits  2.3  2.3
Share-based payments  0.3  0.2
total  2.5  2.5

20
08

20
07

SalaRieS and feeS, eUR

president and ceo  462,270  467,087
Board of directors  281,500  253,120
total  743,770  720,207

management salaries and other short-term employee bene-
fits as well as long-term employee benefits and share-based 
benefits are described in more detail in note 10.

Rental income from state institutions and companies to-
talled eUR 23.9 million in 2008 (2007: eUR 24.9 million).

there were no outstanding loans receivable from key 
management on 31 dec. 2008 or on 31 dec. 2007.

members of the Board of directors held 4,600 shares 
and members of the executive Board 107,981 at the end of 
2008. ( 2007: 3,970 and 31,368 shares respectively).

36. Events after the balance sheet date

Sponda announced on 19 december 2008 that it had signed 
an agreement to sell three logistics properties for altogether 
eUR 16.3 million to the Sponda fund ii real estate fund. the 
transaction was closed on 9 January 2009. the properties 
sold are located in Kuusankoski, mikkeli and oulu. 

in a ruling issued on 19 January 2009, the Helsinki court 
of appeal has ordered Sponda plc to pay interest, penal 
 interest and court costs totalling eUR 7.6 million to Sampo 
Bank plc based on a credit agreement. the decision is final 
unless  appeal has been made by 20 march 2009.

the amount of Sampo Bank’s suit for payment, eUR 7.6 
million, was recognized as an expense under provisions in 
the 2006 financial statements, so the ruling has no impact 
on Sponda’s result. eUR 0.6 million was recognized as an 
interest expense under provisions in 2007 and eUR 0.1 
 million in 2008, so the total provision is eUR 8.3 million on 
31  december 2008.
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37. Shares and holdings  
owned by the Group and parent company
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mUtUal Real eState companieS

aleksi-hermes  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

arkadiankatu 4–6  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda 

atomitie1  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

Backaksenpelto  vantaa  100.00  100.00  sponda

Bulevardi1  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

dianapuisto  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda 

design house hattutehdas   helsinki  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

elovainion Kauppakiinteistöt  ylöjärvi  100.00  100.00  sponda 

espoon Juvanpuisto  espoo  100.00  100.00  sponda

espoon Komentajankatu 3  espoo  100.00  100.00  sponda 

espoon Kuusiniementie 2  espoo  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

espoon pyyntitie 1  espoo  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

espoonportti  espoo  100.00  100.00  sponda 

estradi  helsinki  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

Fabianinkatu 23  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda 

Gohnt-talo  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda 

hankasuontie 13  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda 

hannuksentie 1  espoo  100.00  100.00  sponda

haukilahdenkatu 4  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

heimola  helsinki  59.66  59.66  sponda

helsingin ehrensvärdintie 31–35  helsinki  100.00    sponda Kiinteistöt

helsingin energiakatu 4  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

helsingin erottajanmäki  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

helsingin harkkoraudantie 7  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda 

helsingin hämeentie 105  helsinki  60.63    sponda Kiinteistöt

helsingin Itäkatu 11  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

helsingin Itämerenkatu 21  helsinki  100.00    sponda Kiinteistöt

helsingin Itämerentalo  helsinki  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

helsingin Kaivokatu 8  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

helsingin Kalatori  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

helsingin Kalevankatu 30  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

helsingin Kirvesmiehenkatu 4  helsinki  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

helsingin Kuntotalo  helsinki  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

helsingin lampputie 12  helsinki  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

helsingin lautatarhankatu 2 c  helsinki  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

helsingin neonpolku   helsinki  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

helsingin nuijamiestentie  helsinki  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

helsingin ohrahuhdantie 4  helsinki  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

Helsingin Pieni Roobertinkatu 9  helsinki  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

helsingin porkkalankatu 22  helsinki  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

helsingin ruoholahden parkki  helsinki  90.78   sponda Kiinteistöt

helsingin salmisaarentalo  helsinki  100.00    sponda Kiinteistöt

helsingin tulppatie 1  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

helsingin silkkikutomo  helsinki  100.00    sponda Kiinteistöt

helsingin valimotie 25 a  helsinki  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

helsingin valimotie 25 B  helsinki  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

helsingin valimotie 25 c  helsinki  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

helsingin valimotie 27 a  helsinki  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

helsingin valimotie 27 B  helsinki  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

helsingin valimotie 27 c  helsinki  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

helsingin valimotie 27 d  helsinki  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

helsingin valokaari  helsinki  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

helsingin valuraudankuja 7  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

helsingin vanhanlinnantie 3  helsinki  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

helsingin veneentekijäntie 8  helsinki  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

helsingin värjäämö  helsinki  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

henrik forsiuksentie 39  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda 

hermian pulssi  tampere  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

hitsaajatalo  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

holkkitie 8 a  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda 

hyvinkään varikko  hyvinkää  100.00  100.00  sponda

hämeenkatu 20  tampere  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

hämeenportin yritystalo  vantaa  100.00  100.00  sponda

hämeentie 103  helsinki  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

höyläämötie 5  helsinki  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt 

Insinöörinkatu  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

Iso-Roobertinkatu 21–25  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda 

Isontammentie 4  vantaa  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

Itälahdenkatu 20  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

Itälahdenkatu 22  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

Kaivokadun tunneli  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

Kaivokatu 12  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

Kalkkipellontie 6  espoo  100.00  100.00  sponda

Kappelitie 8  espoo  100.00  100.00  sponda

Karapellontie 4 c  espoo  100.00  100.00  sponda

Kasarmikatu 36  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

Kaupintie 3  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

Keskuskatu 1 B  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

Kilonkallio 1  espoo  100.00  100.00  sponda

Korkeavuorenkatu 45  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

Kumpulantie 11  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

Kuninkaankaari  vantaa  100.00  100.00  sponda

Kuninkaankruunu  vantaa  100.00  100.00  sponda

Kylvöpolku 1  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

Kymen logistiikka  Kuusankoski  100.00  100.00  sponda

läkkitori  espoo  100.00  100.00  sponda

länsi-Keskus  espoo  58.64  58,64  sponda

lönkka  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

malmin Kankirauta  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

malmin yritystalo  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

mannerheimintie 6  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda
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manhattan  turku  52.85   sponda Kiinteistöt

mansku 4  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

martinkyläntie 53  vantaa  100.00  100.00  sponda

melkonkatu 26  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda 

messukylän castrulli  tampere  100.00  100.00  sponda

messukylän Kattila  tampere  100.00  100.00  sponda

messukylän turpiini  tampere  100.00  100.00  sponda

miestentie  espoo  100.00  100.00  sponda

mäkkylän toimistotalo  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

niinilahti  tampere  100.00  100.00  sponda

olarintörmä  espoo  100.00  100.00  sponda

oulun alasintie 3–7  oulu  100.00  100.00  sponda

oulun liikevärttö 1  oulu  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

oulun liikevärttö 2  oulu  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

oulun liikevärttö 3  oulu  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

Pieni Roobertinkatu 7  helsinki  99.79   sponda Kiinteistöt

piispanpiha 5  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

poijupuisto  espoo  100.00  100.00  sponda

porkkalankatu 20  helsinki  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

pronssitie 1  helsinki  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

ratapihantie 11  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

ratinan Kauppakeskus  tampere  100.00  40.00  sponda

ratinanlinna  tampere  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

Robert Huberintie 2  vantaa  100.00  100.00  sponda

ruoholahden sulka  helsinki  100.00  sponda Kiinteistöt

ruoholahdenkatu 4  helsinki  94.95   sponda Kiinteistöt

ruosilantie 14  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

ruosilantie 16  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

ruosilantie 18  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

salmisaaren liiketalo  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

Scifin Beta  espoo  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

Scifin Gamma  espoo  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

Sibylla Tehdaskiinteistö  helsinki  64.39   sponda Kiinteistöt

sinikalliontie 10  espoo  100.00  100.00  sponda

sinimäentie 14  espoo  100.00  100.00  sponda

sp-kiinteistöt oy Kilo  espoo  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt 

säästötammela  tampere  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt 

Tallbergintalo  helsinki  100.00    sponda Kiinteistöt

tampereen enqvistinkatu 7  tampere  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

tampereen hallituskatu 8  tampere  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt 

tampereen naulakatu 3  tampere  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt  

tampereen 

näsilinnankatu 39–41  tampere  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt  

tapiolan Kulttuuritori  espoo  100.00  100.00  sponda

tapiolan liiketalo  espoo  100.00  100.00  sponda

tiistilän miilu  espoo  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

tiistinhovi  espoo  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

tonttipaino  vantaa  100.00  100.00  sponda

turun Ilmarisenkulma  turku  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

Turun Julinia Fastighets Ab  turku  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt 

turun Kauppiaskatu 9 B  turku  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

turun Kurjenmäki  turku  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt 

turun rautakatu  turku  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt 

turun yliopistonkatu 12 a  turku  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

turun yliopistonkatu 14  turku  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

turunlinnantie 12  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

tuusulan teollisuuskuja 4  tuusula  100.00  100.00  sponda

tuusulan teollisuuskuja 6  tuusula  100.00  100.00  sponda

tuusulan tärkkelystehdas  tuusula  100.00  100.00  sponda

unioninkatu 18  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

unioninkatu 20-22  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

unioninkatu 24  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

upseerinkatu 1  espoo  100.00  100.00  sponda

valuraudankuja 6  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

vanhajämerä  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

vantaan alfa  vantaa  85.00  85.00  sponda 

vantaan harkkokuja 2  vantaa  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

vantaan honkatalo  vantaa  100.00  100.00  sponda

vantaan Kuussillantie 27  vantaa  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

vantaan Köysikuja 1  vantaa  100.00  100.00  sponda

vantaan omega  vantaa  100.00  100.00  sponda

vantaan santaradantie 8  vantaa  100.00  100.00  sponda

vantaan simonrinne  vantaa  77.18   sponda Kiinteistöt

vantaan sähkötie 1  vantaa  100.00  100.00  sponda

vantaan tähtäinkuja 3  vantaa  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

vantaan vanha porvoontie 231  vantaa  100.00  100.00  sponda

vantaan väritehtaankatu 8  vantaa  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

vantaan Äyrikuja 3  vantaa  100.00  100.00  sponda

vepema  vantaa  100.00  100.00  sponda

vitikka 6  espoo  100.00  100.00  sponda

vuosaaren logistiikkakeskus  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

vuosaaren porttikeskus  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

vuosaaren service center  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

värtönparkki 1  oulu  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

ylä-malmintori 6  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

zeppelinin city-Keskus  Kempele  88.91   sponda Kiinteistöt

zeppelinin Kauppakeskus  Kempele  91.47   sponda Kiinteistöt

zeppelinin Kauppakulma  Kempele  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

zeppelinin Kauppapörssi  Kempele  88.64   sponda Kiinteistöt

zeppelinin markkinapaikka  Kempele  58.71   sponda Kiinteistöt

zeppelinin pikkukulma  Kempele  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

zeppelinin tavaratori  Kempele  78.87   sponda Kiinteistöt

limited liaBility companieS 

Drawer  Oy  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda 

hextagon oy  helsinki  100.00    sponda

Inkeroisten Koekeskus oy  anjalankoski  100.00  100.00  sponda 
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sponda Kiinteistöt oy  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

porkkalankadun alitus oy  helsinki  62.64   sponda Kiinteistöt

ruoholahden yhteissuoja oy  helsinki  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

russia europe oy ltd  helsinki  100.00    sponda

sponda am oy  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

sponda asset management oy  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

sponda asset management II oy  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

sponda russia oy ltd  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

sponda russia finance oy ltd  helsinki  100.00    sponda

srK-Kiinteistöt oy  helsinki  100.00  100.00  sponda

tamforest oy  tampere  100.00  100.00  sponda

tamsilva oy  tampere  100.00  100.00  sponda

turku high tech centre oy  turku  100.00   sponda Kiinteistöt

aSSociated companieS 

asunto oy lönnrotinkatu 28  helsinki  30.81    sponda

creax oy  helsinki  25.00  25.00  sponda

erottajan pysäköintilaitos oy  helsinki  49.29  49.29  sponda

puotinharjun puhos oy  helsinki  20.43  20.43  sponda

zeppelinin Kulmatori  

Kiinteistö oy  Kempele  49.67   sponda Kiinteistöt

HoldinGS in aSSociated companieS 

ovenia oy  helsinki  45.10   sponda Kiinteistöt

Real eState fUnd companieS

first top luxco 1 s.a.r.l  Luxemburg  20.00  20.00  sponda

sponda fund I Ky  helsinki  46.10    sponda

sponda fund II Ky  helsinki  43.75    sponda

yess Ky  helsinki  60.00  60.00  sponda

foReiGn SUBSidiaRieS

Korbis K LLC Moscow, Russia 100,00  sponda

slavjanka cJs Moscow, Russia 100,00  sponda

Rowina Holding Limited cyprus 100,00  sponda

makentrax limited cyprus 100,00  sponda

ooo adastra  St. Petersburg, Russia  100.00    sponda

ooo europe terminal  Moscow, Russia  100.00    sponda

ooo Inform future   St. Petersburg, Russia  100.00    sponda

ooo Inno center   St. Petersburg, Russia  100.00    sponda

ooo nrc  St. Petersburg, Russia  100.00    sponda

ooo veika  St. Petersburg, Russia  100.00    sponda

zao ankor  Moscow,  Russia  100.00    sponda

ooo western realty  

(ducat)  Moscow, Russia  100.00    sponda

changes in Group structure in 2008 

companieS acQUiRed

ooo western realty (ducat)

Korbis K Limited Liability Company

slavjanka closed Joint-stock company

Rowina Holding Limited

makentrax limited

helsingin valuraudankuja 7 

helsingin harkkoraudantie 7 

Kodofin Oy 

Iso-Roobertinkatu 21–25, minority interest 8.82%

turku high tech centre oy 

companieS eStaBliSHed 

creax oy

tuusulan teollisuuskuja 4

helsingin energiakatu 4

ratinan Kauppakeskus

sponda fund II Ky

companieS Sold

espoon asematori

Kluuvikatu 8

lönnrotinkatu 13

museokatu 8

suutarilan lampputie 4

tampereen länsikeskus

tapiolan toimitalo

diSSolVed companieS

Kouvolantie 227

meRGed companieS

Ruoholahden Poiju A was merged with Porkkalankatu 20

Ruoholahden Poiju B was merged with Porkkalankatu 20

Ruoholahden Poiju C was merged with Porkkalankatu 20

cHanGeS of name

Kiinteistö Oy Helsingin Valuraudankuja 7, previous name was Valuraudankuja Oy 

Sponda Asset Management II Oy, previous name was Kodofin Oy

Kiinteistö Oy Niinilahti, previous name was Kiinteistö Oy Tampereen Vihiojantalo
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Parent company  
income statement (FAS)

meUR       

total revenue      1  118.1  107.4
fund management fees       7.2  6.8
fund dividends and share of fund profits       4.7  3.3
      130.0  117.5

expenses from leasing operations       -72.1  -57.2
direct expenses from funds       -2.0  -1.3
      -74.1  -58.5

Gross profit       55.9  59.0

Sales and marketing expenses       -1.2  -1.3
administrative expenses      2, 3, 6  -9.5  -10.9
other operating income      4  0.2  0.3
profits on sale of investment properties       25.8  2.7
other operating expenses      5  -1.1  -0.2

Operating profit      70.1  49.6

financial income and expenses      7  -69.4  -50.3
Profit / loss before one-time items       0.7  -0.7

extraordinary items      8  -0.5  –
Profit / loss before tax       0.2  -0.7

Profit / loss for period      0.2 -0.7

1 J
an.–3

1 d
ec

. 2
00

8

1 J
an.–3

1 d
ec

. 2
00

7

note



sponda plc annual report 2008    123

31
 d

ec
. 2

00
8

31
 d

ec
. 2

00
7

Parent company  
balance sheet (FAS)

meUR

assets
non-current assets        
intangible assets      9  27.7  23.0

property, plant and equipment      10    
land and water       4.8  4.8
Buildings and structures       1.3  1.3
machinery and equipment       0.3  0.4

      6.4  6.5
investments      11   

Holdings in Group companies       1,731.7  1,552.5
Receivables from Group companies       867.8  826.0
Holdings in associated companies       7.5  3.0
investments in real estate funds       49.7  33.5
other investments       15.6  15.8

      2,672.3  2,430.8

total non-current assets       2,706.4  2,460.3
 
current assets        

current receivables      12  65.2  48.7
cash and bank deposits       4.7  16.6

total current assets       69.9  65.3

total assets      2,776.3 2,525.6

Shareholders’ equity and liabilities
Shareholders’ equity      13   

Share capital       111.0  111.0
Share premium reserve       159.1  159.1
invested non-restricted equity reserve       215.7  215.7
Retained earnings       147.7  203.9
loss for the period       0.2  -0.7

total shareholders’ equity       633.7  689.0
 
depreciation differences      14  0.2  0.2
provisions      15  8.3  8.2

liabilities        
non-current liabilities      16  1,807.2  1,205.5
current liabilities      17  326.9  622.7

Total liabilities       2,134.1  1,828.2

Total shareholders’ equity and liabilities      2,776.3 2,525.6 

note
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Parent company 
statement of cash flows (FAS)

meUR

Cash flow from operating activities
net profit for the period       0.2  -0.7
adjustments      1)  56.4  51.7
change in net working capital      2)  -11.0  -74.9
interest received       23.4  24.8
interest paid       -66.9  -79.6
other financial items       -23.8  -0.7
taxes received/paid       –  0.7

Net cash generated by operating activities       -21.7  -78.7

Cash flow from investing activities
investments in shares and holdings       -33.9  -52.3
acquisition of property, plant and equipment        
and intangible assets       -16.2  -6.1
other investments       –  –
proceeds from disposal of shares and holdings       80.4  4.7
proceeds from disposal of        
tangible and intangible assets       –  0.1
loans granted       -307.0  -292.2
Repayments of loan receivables       36.4  153.4

net cash used in investing activities       -240.3  -192.4

Cash flow from financing activities
proceeds from share issue       –  247.5
non-current loans, raised       812.4  1,076.0
non-current loans, repayments       -323.4  -393.5
current loans, raised/repayments       -183.4  -599.5
dividends paid       -55.5  -44.4

Net cash generated from financing activities       250.1  286.1

change in cash and cash equivalents       -11.9  15.0
cash and cash equivalents at 1 Jan.       16.6  1.6
cash and cash equivalents transferred in merger       –  –

cash and cash equivalents at 31 dec.      4.7 16.6
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noteS to tHe caSH flow Statement, meUR

1) adjustments
the following adjustments change the accrual-based items in the income statement to cash-based items,
 and they reverse items shown elsewhere in the cash flow statement.

other operational expenses       0,8  –
other operational income       -25,8  -2,8
depreciation and amortization       11,5  4,2
financial income and expenses       69,4  50,3
merger loss       0,5  –
taxes       –  –
adjustments, total       56,4  51,7

2) Statement of change in net working capital
current receivables increase (-), decrease (+)       -22,1  -17,1
non-interest-bearing current liabilities increase (+), decrease (-)      11,1  -57,8
Change in net working capital       -11,0  -74,9
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Accounting principles for the 
parent company accounts

the financial statements of Sponda plc, the parent company,  
have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the 
finnish accounting act, the finnish companies act and the 
finnish Securities markets act.

Measurement and timing principles

contractual improvements
costs arising from renovation work for individual tenants are 
entered as an annual expense or capitalized to other long-
term expenditure of the landlord, Sponda plc. Repair costs 
and tenant improvements are capitalized over the duration 
of the lease when they generate income in several account-
ing periods. for open-ended leases, costs are capitalized over 
the period until the date that is defined in the lease agree-
ment as the first possible termination date. 

fixed assets and straight-line depreciation
fixed assets are valued at cost less straight-line depreciation. 
Straight-line depreciation on machinery and equipment and 
on buildings and building materials is calculated using the de-
clining balance method. Renovation costs related to tenant 
improvements and capitalized to other long-term expendi-
ture are depreciated over the lease period.

other machinery and equipment    3–10 years
Buildings    50 years
Building materials    25 years
other long-term expenditure    1–19 years

in addition to capitalized tenant improvements, other long-
term expenditure includes computer software and renovation 
of the business premises occupied by Sponda plc itself.

Investments
property investments are shares in subsidiaries and associat-
ed companies, loans granted to Group companies and asso-
ciated companies, investments in real estate funds and oth-
er investments. investments are valued at cost in the parent 
company’s balance sheet. permanent writedowns are de-
ducted from cost.

research and development costs
the company has no research activities. Building project costs 
equivalent to R&d costs are capitalized when the technical 
implementation of the project is completed and the proj-
ect can be considered to generate income over a period of 
several years. otherwise research and development costs 
are entered as an expense.

Financial assets, liabilities and derivative contracts
financial assets and non-interest-bearing debt are recognized 
at cost. interest-bearing debt is measured at  amortized cost 
using the effective interest rate method. interest rate swap 
contracts made to hedge the risk exposure  associated with 
long-term loans are not entered in the balance sheet but 
 instead are listed in the notes to the financial statements. 
interest arising from these contracts is recognized in the 
 income statement as it is incurred.

extraordinary income and expenses
extraordinary income and expenses consist of gains and 
 losses on mergers.

Income tax
income tax includes tax in the period and adjustments to 
 taxes for previous periods. the current tax expense is based 
on taxes calculated on the result for the period and tax rules. 
no deferred tax liabilities or credit are entered in the parent  
company balance sheet.

foreign currency denominated items
transactions denominated in foreign currency are recognized 
at the exchange rate on the transaction date. Balance sheet 
items in foreign currency outstanding on the closing date are 
valued at the exchange rate on the closing date.

Other principles
the Group has arranged statutory pension insurance for its 
personnel with a pension insurance company. the pension 
costs are entered as an expense in proportion to salaries. 

fees arising from leasing assignments are recognized over 
the duration of the leasing contract.

interest payable during construction projects in progress 
are entered as an expense.

the Group has no significant finance leases.
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Notes to the parent company 
financial statements

1) Total revenue
20

08
20

07

total ReVenUe By type of pRopeRty, meUR

office & Retail properties  83.9  78.2
logistics propertiest  33.2  28.7
property development  1.0  0.5
total  118.1  107.4

total ReVenUe By GeoGRapHical aRea, meUR

Helsinki metropolitan area  113.1  103.3
Rest of finland  5.0  4.1
total  118.1  107.4

2) Personnel expenses 
and number of employees

20
08

20
07

meUR

Salaries and fees  9.7  10.2
pension costs  1.8  1.5
other personnel costs  0.6  0.4
total  12.1  12.1

president and ceo*  0.5  0.5
members of the Board of directors  0.3  0.3
total  0.7  0.7

* Does not include bonus under the incentive scheme

the president and ceo is paid a full salary and in addition 
he is included within the long-term incentive scheme for top 
management that was introduced on 1 January 2006. any 
bonus paid under this scheme is based on the cash flow from 
operations per share and the return on investment. the bo-
nuses, less tax, are used to purchase company shares for the 
person. the shares may not be disposed of within two years 
of their receipt. the bonus is paid annually. Board members 
are not paid an incentive bonus.

20
08

20
07

meUR

Bonus from incentive scheme  0.4  0.3

personnel expenses are included in the income statement 
under administrative expenses.

loans and commitments to related parties
there were no loans to related parties. the president and 
ceo is eligible to retire at the age of 63. the pension ob-
ligation is covered by pension insurance policies. the sala-
ries and fees paid to the Board of directors, and the pen-
sion obligations and termination benefits payable to man-
agement, are described in note 10 to the consolidated fi-
nancial statements “employee benefit expenses and number 
of employees”.

20
08

20
07

peRSonnel on aVeRaGe

white collar, number of employees  125  126

3) Depreciation, amortization 
and impairment losses

20
08

20
07

meUR

intangible assets   
other long-term expenditure  11.4  3.9

property, plant and equipment   
machinery and equipment  0.2  0.2

total  11.6  4.1

depreciation, amortization and impairment losses are in-
cluded in the income statement under administrative ex-
penses.
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8) Extraordinary items
20

08
20

07

meUR

merger loss  -0.5  –
  -0.5  –

9) Intangible assets
other
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2008, meUR  

acquisition cost 1 Jan.   38.6  0.8  39.4
increases   19.9  8.8  28.7
transfers   -5.7  -6.9  -12.6
acquisition cost 31 dec.   52.8  2.7  55.5

accumulated amortization 
and impairment losses 1 Jan.   -16.4  –  -16.4
amortization for the period   -11.4  –  -11.4
accumulated depreciation 31 dec.   -27.8  –  -27.8

net carrying amount 31 dec. 25.0 2.7  27.7

other
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2007, meUR

acquisition cost 1 Jan.   31.8  0.1  31.9
increases   30.5  1.2  31.7
transfers   -23.7  -0.5  -24.2
acquisition cost 31 dec.   38.6  0.8  39.4

accumulated amortization 
and impairment losses 1 Jan.   -12.5  –  -12.5
amortization for the period   -3.9  –  -3.9
accumulated depreciation 31 dec.   -16.4  –  -16.4

net carrying amount 31 dec. 22.2 0.8 23.0

4) Other operating income
20

08
20

07

meUR

Share of bankruptcy estate  0.2  0.3
total  0.2  0.3

5) Other operating expenses
20

08
20

07

meUR

losses on disposal of investments  0.8  –
other expenses  –  0.1
doubtful receivables  0.3  0.1
total  1.1  0.2

6) Auditor fees
20

08
20

07

meUR

authorized public accountants KpmG oy
audit  0.1  0.1
other services  0.2  0.5
  0.3  0.6

7) Financial income and expenses
20

08
20

07

meUR

interest income from long-term investments
in Group companies  52.0  36.1
other interest income  1.0  1.3
other financial income  0.1  –
Total interest and financial income  53.1  37.4

interest expenses paid to Group companies  -13.8  -11.3
other interest expenses  -85.2  -63.1
other financial expensest  -2.4  -13.3
finance charge to subsidiaries  -21.1  –
total interest expenses 
and other financial expenses  -122.5  -87.7

Total financial income and expenses -69.4 -50.3
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10) Property, plant and equipment
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2008, meUR  

acquisition cost 1 Jan.    4.8  1.8  1.2  –  7.8
increases    –  –  0.1  –  0.1
acquisition cost 31 dec.    4.8  1.8  1.3  –  7.9

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses 1 Jan.    –  -0.5  -0.8  –  -1.3
depreciation for the period    –  –  -0.2  –  -0.2
accumulated depreciation 31 dec.    –  -0.5  -1.0  –  -1.5

net carrying amount 31 dec.   4.8 1.3 0.3 – 6.4
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2007, meUR  

acquisition cost 1 Jan.    4.8  1.8  1.1  1.6  9.3
increases    –  –  0.2  –  0.2
decreases    –  –  -0.1  -1.6  -1.7
acquisition cost 31 dec.    4.8  1.8  1.2  –  7.8

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses 1 Jan.    –  -0.4  -0.6  –  -1.0
depreciation for the period    –  -0.1  -0.2  –  -0.3
accumulated depreciation 31 dec.    –  -0.5  -0.8  –  -1.3

net carrying amount 31 dec.   4.8 1.3 0.4 – 6.5
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11) Investments

2008, meUR

acquisition cost 1 Jan.   1,552.5  826.0  3.0  33.5  15.8  2,430.8
increases   234.9  502.0  4.5  16.2  10.6  768.2
decreases   -55.7  -460.2  –  –  -10.8  -526.7
net carrying amount 31 dec.   1,731.7  867.8  7.5  49.7  15.6  2,672.3
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otHeR inVeStmentS, meUR *)

acquisition cost 1 Jan.   5.0  7.6  3.1  –  0.1  15.8
increases   –  10.6  –  –  –  10.6
decreases   -0.2  -10.6  –  –  –  -10.8
net carrying amount 31 dec.   4.8  7.6  3.1  –  0.1  15.6

rec
eIv

aBl
es

fr
om G

ro
up

compa
nIes

sh
ares

 In

Gro
up

compa
nIes

In
ves

tmen
ts

In
 pr

ope
rt

y

fu
nds

other
 

In
ves

tmen
ts*

)

hold
In

Gs I
n

ass
ocIa

ted

compa
nIes

to
ta

l

2007, meUR

acquisition cost 1 Jan.   1,495.6  669.9  2.7  16.8  15.2  2,200.2
increases   58.2  352.1  0.3  16.9  4.9  432.4
decreases   -1.3  -196.0  –  -0.2  -4.3  -201.8
net carrying amount 31 dec.   1,552.5  826.0  3.0  33.5  15.8  2,430.8
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otHeR inVeStmentS, meUR *)

acquisition cost 1 Jan.   5.5  9.0  –  0.6  0.1  15.2
increases   –  1.8  3.1  –  –  4.9
decreases   -0.5  -3.2  –  -0.6  –  -4.3
net carrying amount 31 dec.   5.0  7.6  3.1  –  0.1  15.8

Shares and holdings are listed in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.
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12) Current receivables
20

08
20

07

meUR

trade receivables  3.4  2.3
other receivables  4.0  –
prepaid expenses and accrued income

from Group companies  39.1  19.5
from other companies  18.7  26.9

prepaid expenses and accrued income, total  57.8  46.4

Current receivables, total 65.2 48.7

main items in prepaid expenses and accrued income   
interest and financial items  7.5  15.8
other items  50.3  30.6

total  57.8  46.4

13) Shareholders’ equity
20

08
20

07

meUR

Share capital 1 Jan.  111.0  79.3
increase in share capital  –  31.7
share capital 31 dec.  111.0  111.0
 
Share premium 1 Jan.  159.1  159.1
share premium reserve 31 dec.  159.1  159.1

invested non-restricted equity reserve 1 Jan.  215.7  –
increase in share capital and share issue  –  215.7
Invested non-restricted equity reserve 31 dec.  215.7  215.7

Retained earnings 1 Jan.  203.2  248.3
dividend payment  -55.5  -44.4
retained earnings 31 dec.  147.7  203.9

profit / loss for period  0.2  -0.7

shareholders’ equity, total 633.7 689.0

20
08

20
07

calcUlation of diStRiBUtaBle fUndS, meUR

Retained earnings  147.7  203.9
invested non-restricted equity reserve  215.7  215.7
profit / loss for period  0.2  -0.7
total  363.6  418.9

14) Depreciation differences
20

08
20

07

meUR

accumulated depreciation differences 1 Jan.  0.2  0.2
accumulated depreciation differences 31 dec.  0.2  0.2

15) Provisions
20

08
20

07

meUR

other provisions 1.Jan.  8.2  7.6
increases  0.1  0.6
other provisions 31. dec.  8.3  8.2

in a ruling issued on 19 January 2009, the Helsinki court of 
appeal ordered Sponda plc to pay interest, penal interest 
and court costs totalling eUR 7.6 million to Sampo Bank plc 
based on a credit agreement. the decision is final unless ap-
peal has been made by 20 march 2009.

the amount of Sampo Bank’s suit for payment, eUR 7.6 
million, was recognized as an expense under provisions in 
the 2006 financial statements, so the ruling has no impact 
on Sponda’s result. eUR 0.6 million was recognized as an in-
terest expense under provisions in 2007 and eUR 0.1 mil-
lion in 2008, so the total provision is eUR 8.3 million on 31 
december 2008. 

16) Non-current liabilities
20

08
20

07

non-cURRent inteReSt-BeaRinG liaBilitieS, meUR

Serial bonds  249.8  249.7 
loans from financial institutions  1,373.2  779.0 
other non-current debt  
payable to Group companies  184.2  176.8
Non-current interest-bearing liabilities, total  1,807.2  1,205.5

loans from financial institutions include a eUR 130 million 
hybrid bond, which is treated in the consolidated balance 
sheet as an equity item.

20
08

20
07

deBt matURinG afteR fiVe yeaRS, meUR

loans from financial institutions  158.8  100.0 
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17) Current liabilities
20

08
20

07

meUR

current interest-bearing liabilities    
loans from financial institutions  270.6  554.0

current interest-free liabilities   
advances received  0.3  2.3
trade payables   

to Group companies  19.8  20.4
to other  companies  0.3  1.3

Total trade payables  20.1  21.7
accrued expenses and prepaid income   

payable to Group companies  1.8  1.6
payable to other companies  30.6  19.9

total accrued expenses and prepaid income  32.4  21.5
other current debt receivable from Group companies  2.6  11.3
other current debt  0.9  11.9
Total current interest-free liabilities  56.3  68.7

Total current liabilities 326.9 622.7

main items in accrued expenses and prepaid income   
interest and financial items  25.6  15.1
personnel expenses  3.7  4.3
other items  3.1  2.0
total  32.4  21.4

18) Derivative instruments
20

08
20

07

meUR

Interest derivatives
interest rate swaps, nominal value of principal  915.0  660.0
interest rate swaps, fair value  -27.0  10.0
interest options, nominal value  187.5  557.0
interest options, fair value  1.0 14.7
forward rate agreements, nominal value  –  50.0
forward rate agreements, fair value  –  0.1

currency derivatives
currency forwards, nominal value  5.1  –

19) Collateral and contingent liabilities   

20
08

20
07

collateRal GiVen on BeHalf  
of GRoUp companieS, meUR

Book value of pledged shares  9.3  –

20
08

20
07

continGent liaBilitieS GiVen  
on BeHalf of GRoUp companieS, meUR

Guarantees given on behalf of Group companies  57.6  –

leaSe liaBilitieS, meUR

payments based on agreements fall due as follows
during the following year  0.4  0.5
after the following year  0.5  0.7
total  0.9  1.2

other lease agreements consist of leases for vehicle and 
 office equipment. the leases have lengths of 3–5 years and 
they have no redemption obligations.

20
08

20
07

otHeR commitmentS, meUR

Vat deductions made on renovation investments
commitments under §33 of the Vat act  –  32.1
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Proposal by the Board of Directors on the disposal of the profit for the year
the parent company’s distributable funds total eUR 363,605,484.37.  

the Board proposes to the annual General meeting that no dividend be paid for 2008.

  Helsinki,  6 february 2009

  Signatures of the Board of directors and ceo 
  for the report by the Board of directors
  and for the financial statements

  Sponda plc
  Board of directors

 Klaus cawén  tuula entelä  timo Korvenpää

 lauri Ratia arja talma erkki Virtanen

  president and ceo
  Kari inkinen

     Auditors’ statement  
  we have today submitted our report on the audit conducted by us. 

  Helsinki, finland, 12 february 2009

   KpmG oy ab
 Raija-leena Hankonen apa  Kai Salli apa

Distribution of profit
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Auditors’ report

To the annual general meeting of Sponda Plc
We have audited the accounting records, the financial statements, 
the report of the Board of Directors and the administration of 
Sponda Plc for the year ended on 31 December 2008. The 
 financial statements comprise the consolidated balance sheet, 
income statement, cash flow statement, statement of changes 
in equity and notes to the consolidated financial statements, as 
well as the parent company’s balance sheet, income statement, 
cash flow statement and notes to the financial statements. 

The responsibility of the Board of Directors  
and the Managing Director
The Board of Directors and the Managing Director are 
 responsible for the preparation of the financial statements 
and the report of the Board of Directors and for the fair  
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in 
 accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS) as adopted by the EU, as well as for the fair presentation 
of the parent company’s financial statements and the report 
of the Board of Directors in accordance with laws and regu-
lations governing the preparation of the financial statements 
and the report of the Board of Directors in Finland. The Board 
of Directors is responsible for the appropriate arrangement 
of the control of the company’s accounts and finances, and 
the Managing Director shall see to it that the accounts of the 
company are in compliance with the law and that its financial  
affairs have been arranged in a reliable manner. 

Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to perform an audit in accordance with 
good auditing practice in Finland, and to express an opinion on 
the parent company’s financial statements, on the consolidated 
financial statements and on the report of the Board of Direc-
tors based on our audit. Good auditing practice requires that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the finan-
cial statements and the report of the Board of Directors are 
free from material misstatement and whether the members 
of the Board of Directors and the Managing Director have 
complied with the Limited Liability Companies Act.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
 evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements and the report of the Board of Directors. The pro-
cedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 

the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
 financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by manage-
ment, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the finan-
cial statements and the report of the Board of Directors.

The audit was performed in accordance with good audit-
ing practice in Finland. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion on the consolidated financial statements
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true 
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and 
cash flows of the group in accordance with International Finan-
cial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU.

Opinion on the company’s financial statements  
and the report of the Board of Directors
In our opinion, the financial statements, together with the 
consolidated financial statements included therein, and the 
report of the Board of Directors give a true and fair view of 
the financial performance and financial position of the compa-
ny in accordance with the laws and regulations governing the 
preparation of the financial statements and the report of the 
Board of Directors in Finland. The information in the report 
of the Board of Directors is consistent with the information 
in the financial statements.

Opinion on the discharge from liability  
and disposal of distributable funds
The consolidated financial statements and the parent compa-
ny’s financial statements can be adopted and the members of 
the Board of Directors and the Managing Director of the par-
ent company can be discharged from liability for the period 
audited by us. The proposal by the Board of Directors regard-
ing the disposal of distributable funds is in compliance with the 
Limited Liability Companies Act.

this document is an english translation of the Finnish auditor’s report. 
only the Finnish version of the report is legally binding.

Helsinki, 12 February 2009
          KPMG Oy Ab
 Raija-Leena Hankonen APA Kai Salli APA
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Information for shareholders

Annual General Meeting

The 2009 Annual General Meeting of 

Sponda Plc will be held in the Helsinki 

Room at Finlandia Hall (Mannerheimintie 

13, 00100 Helsinki, door M3 or K3) on 

Wednesday, 25 March 2009, starting at 

2.00 pm. Instructions for registering for 

the AGM are given on Sponda’s website 

at www.sponda.fi .

To attend the meeting, shareholders 

must be entered in the company’s share-

holder register maintained by the Euro-

clear Finland Ltd no later than 13 March 

2009.

Dividend payment

The Board of Directors proposes to the 

Annual General Meeting that no dividend 

be paid for the fi nancial year 2008. The 

reasons for the proposal are the uncer-

tain state of the fi nancial markets and de-

velopments in Sponda’s equity ratio.

Changes of name and address

Shareholders are kindly requested to 

notify their bank or the Euroclear Fin-

land Ltd, whichever holds the sharehold-

er’s book-entry securities account, of any 

changes of address.

Financial information

Sponda publishes its interim reports in 

2009 on the following dates:

Interim report 

Jan–Mar / 2009  Thursday, 7 May 2009

Interim report

Jan–Jun /  2009  Thursday, 6 August 2009

Interim report 

Jan–Sep / 2009  Thursday, 5 November 2009

Sponda publishes all its material for inves-

tors in Finnish and English. The material 

is available on its website www.sponda.fi . 

Releases can be ordered at www.sponda.

fi  › In English › Investors › Order releases, 

or by contacting:

Sponda Plc

Corporate Communications

P.O. Box 940

FI-00101 Helsinki, Finland

tel. +358 (0)20 43131

e-mail: tuija.hakama@sponda.fi .

Sponda Plc

P.O. Box 940

FI-00101 Helsinki

Street address:

Korkeavuorenkatu 45

FI-00130 Helsinki

Telephone +358 (0)20 431 31

www.sponda.fi 

fi rstname.lastname@sponda.fi 

Sponda’s Investor Relations

The main task of Sponda’s Investor Re-

lations function is to provide the market 

with suffi  cient, accurate information so 

that investors can assess the com pany’s 

appeal as an investment today and in the 

future. IR ensures that the com pany’s 

communications are balanced, timely and 

transparent.

Sponda’s Board of Directors is respon-

sible for publication of the company’s in-

terim and annual fi nancial statements. The 

President, the Chief Financial Offi  cer and 

the Vice President, Communications and 

IR are responsible for communications 

with Sponda’s investors. The quiet period 

begins three weeks before the publication 

date of the fi nancial results. This means 

that Sponda does not issue comments 

during this period and does not meet rep-

resentatives of the capital markets.

Information on the banks and stock-

brokers who have announced that they 

conduct investment analyses of Sponda’s 

business operations is provided on the 

company’s website at www.sponda.fi . The 

list may be incomplete. Sponda takes no 

responsibility for the assessments con-

tained in these analyses.

 

Investor relations and communications

Robert Öhman 

Chief Financial Offi  cer

Telephone +358 (0)20 431 3320

robert.ohman@sponda.fi 

Pia Arrhenius

Vice President, 

Communications and Investor Relations

Telephone +358 (0)20 431 3454

pia.arrhenius@sponda.fi 

Anita Riikonen

Communications Manager

Telephone +358 (0)20 431 3470

anita.riikonen@sponda.fi 06 Sponda in brief
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